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Chairman Bette Grande opened the hearing on HB 1379. This was held in the Brynhild 
Haugland Room . 

Senator Dick Dever, District 32, Bismarck, appeared. Attachment 1. 

Rep. Bill Amerman: A lot of these amendments are certainly new and they are quite 
lengthy so I haven't had a chance to read through them a whole lot. If I hear you correct in 
your testimony, the new administrative committee with five veterans, is it an advisory 
committee? Do they have voting power in any way? 

Senator Dick Dever: They would have voting power within their committee. They would 
provide advice to the commissioner and to the administrator of the veterans' home. They 
would also as it says in the bill operate an advisory committee to any state agency that 
deals with veterans' issues. By the way there is a summary of each section on the back of 
the sheet that you have 

Chairman Bette Grande: This isn't as unfamiliar as you think. We heard this basically 
last session too. 

Rep. Bill Amerman: You are correct, Chairman Grande, but I think I am a couple years 
older. I need reminding. 

Rep. Lonny Winrich: In your written testimony that you passed out about in the middle of 
the first page it says the bill moves responsibility for the appointment of the commissioner 
of veterans' affairs to the governor. It places oversight of the commissioner under a board 
consisting of the state treasurer, the secretary of state, and the director of the department 
of human services. In your bill amendment, however, in Section 4 I just read that the 
governor shall appoint the commissioner. The commissioner must be a veteran as defined 
in Section 37-01-40 and shall serve at the pleasure of the governor, nothing about the three 
person board. 
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Senator Dick Dever: That is a good observation on your part, but my reference in my 
testimony was prior to the mention of the amendment and that is how the bill was 
constructed as it was introduced. I agree that veterans certainly need to have input into 
that process. They certainly have my ear. 

Rep. Lonny Winrich: As the proposed hoghouse amendment, the commissioner would 
simply be appointed by the governor and essentially serve at his pleasure under his 
direction and so on? 

Senator Dick Dever: That would be correct just as heads of other agencies do. 

Rep. Lonny Winrich: Yes, I understand. In fact if the three person board was found 
someplace I was going to ask you if that wasn't a little unusual to have someone serving at 
the pleasure of the governor but directed by another committee. 

Senator Dick Dever: I would have agreed with you. 

Opposition: 

Chairman Bette Grande: I will ask opposition to be looking at the amendments. I had 
about 40 copies out. As was duly noted by committee, the original bill was drafted a bit 
flawed and we would like to work off of what we were working off of last session and that is 
what the draft of the hog house is. 

Lyle Schuchard, Chairman of the Administrative Committee on Veterans' Affairs, 
appeared in opposition. Attachment 2. 

Rep. Vicky Steiner: I am a freshman legislator. Could you explain to me? Do you see 
why this bill was brought before us today? 

Lyle Schuchard: I don't know why it was brought forth. As the chairman of the ACOVA 
and I know the department commanders for all the veterans' organizations, I don't think 
anybody was asked for input into the preparation of this bill. I don't have any idea why it 
was presented except for what Senator Dever presented here that would be what I know. 

Rep. Lisa Meier: Have you had a chance to review Senator Dever's amendments that he 
is proposing? 

Lyle Schuchard: No I have not. This is the first I heard of it today. 

Rep. Lisa Meier: If it is alright I will give you the amendments and then if you want to 
review them and if later we can visit with you about those amendments? 

Lyle Schuchard: I would be willing to do that. 

Chairman Bette Grande: You did pick up a copy or you did not? 

Lyle Schuchard: I was handed a copy just before I came up here. 
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Daryl Beard, Member of governing board for ND Veterans' Home, appeared. I am not 
testifying today in my capacity as a board member nor am I speaking for the board. I must 
make it clear for the committee that the governing board of North Dakota has taken no 
action on this bill because we have not had a meeting since the bill was submitted. 
Attachment 3. 

John Jacobsen, Chairman of the Legislative Committee of the ND Veterans' 
Coordinating Council, appeared in opposition. Attachment 4. 

Rep. Karen Karls: How is the ND Veterans' Coordinating Council different from ACOVA? 

John Jacobsen: It is an organization that is not governor appointed. It is an organization 
of three members selected by each of the veterans' organizations to work with A COVA. 
They deal mostly with the legislation. 

Chairman Bette Grande: They are a stand-alone committee that are not in code. 
ACOVA is laid out in code. 

Larry Vetter, State Commander of the North Dakota American Legion, appeared. 
Attachment 5. 

Rep. Glen Froseth: This isn't a question for Mr. Vetter. We are hearing testimony that 
pertains to the original bill, not the amendment. The amendment has been offered so I 
would think we should be working from the amendment. I don't know when you want to 
take committee action on this, but would it be possible to let the veterans' organizations 
review the amendment until next Thursday and come back. They don't have to testify again 
or open the hearing-just come back with a statement whether they support or reject the 
new amendment proposal. We are working off two different complete programs. 

Chairman Bette Grande: Are you referring to hearing from each of the five major 
veterans' groups or are you referring to 

Rep. Glen Froseth: Yes. 

Chairman Bette Grande: Okay, I see what you are saying. I do feel that it would be good 
for each of the groups and each of the veterans present whether they are represented by a 
group or not to have the opportunity to review those amendments and offer us input. I will 
not take action on this bill until next week, so that will give everybody an opportunity to 
review those, get back to each of the committee members as you were on the first set of the 
bill. I will gladly listen to input. We will not take action today on this, because I believe as 
Rep. Froseth has said there are substantial changes and we want to make sure they have 
all had an opportunity to review, look through it, and participate in the process. 

Rep. Glen Froseth: Thank you. That is my intent. 

Rep. Bill Amerman: I know you haven't had much chance if any at all to review the 
amendments and I don't want to put you on the spot speaking as commander of your 
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organization but personally is there any kind of an amendment or whatever that if it does 
dismantle the 15-member board, would you support any amendment that does that? 

Larry Vetter: The American Legion would not support any amendment that would 
dismantle the ACOVA as it is now. 

James Martel, Veteran and retired from the United States Air Force after 23 years, 
appeared in opposition. I am a member of good standing in two of the five veterans' 
organizations. I am currently employed by the state and working with the department of 
mineral resources. I am on leave for this hearing and the views expressed during my 
statement are solely my own. I did have testimony prepared but thanks to Senator Dever 
my testimony is essentially rendered mute for the most part. I am here to express my 
disapproval and my concerns on parts of the bill. I will agree that the structure needs some 
work. The commissioner now has 15 bosses and that makes for a very difficult process for 
anyone to function under. Having been in the military I worked for one person. The 
commissioner often times is not held totally accountable for actions simply because this 
system is so large and fragmented. You have 15 people and each of them has their 
passions for how things should be done for the veteran. It is my belief that if HB 1379 
passes in its current state, the veterans will not adequately be represented. I have spoke to 
other veterans who cannot be present at this hearing and they expressed a concern about 
the lack of voting members on the administrative committee for veterans' affairs as the bill 
exists when presented. Many of us feel that unless you have walked a mile in our shoes 
how can you adequately represent us. Therefore, I propose a change to make up the 
committee a bit different but as the amendment sits it should be left out. I also did note that 
in there that the administrator for the veterans' home was no longer clearly addressed in the 
bill. However, Senator Dever's changes do address that. As for the rest of the bill, I agree. 
The commissioner for veterans' affairs needs to be appointed by and serve at the pleasure 
of the governor and on the cabinet and located in Bismarck. Right now the commissioner is 
in Fargo. If you have a question if he is in Fargo, the only way he can answer is via 
telephone or drive all the way over here causing delays in the system. If he is appointed by 
the governor and is on the governor's staff, he is here and we the veterans have a direct link 
to senior governmental officials by being on the cabinet. I urge you to amend the bill 
changing the committee members so that there is at least a minimum of five veterans on the 
committee and if you can't do that, I urge you do not pass. As it exists right now, this bill is 
severely flawed. 

Rep. Lisa Meier: You had a chance to review the amendments? 

James Martel: No. The first I saw them was when they were presented on the table. I will 
go over them and then I will forward my comments to you. 

Dan Stenvold, Park River, Representative of the North Dakota Vietnam Veterans of 
America, appeared. We would not support any changes to the ACOVA. We feel that this 
system is not broken. Why are we trying to fix it? As a mayor of Park River, I have to pick 
and choose my battles for fear of embarrassing my city if you will. When this bill came out, 
it was a no brainer but I published an article and I don't want to go behind anybody's back, it 
was published in a lot of the papers. I am very adamant about leaving it the way it is 
because in my life I served three tours in Vietnam, ate some of the same jungle mud that Bill 
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Amerman did here. We are classmates from Foreman, North Dakota. Over there we 
developed a band of brothers. It still exists today. When we came home, our government, 
the VA system, nobody would help us. We had to go out and find our people to help 
ourselves and ended up we bonded together as veterans. That is what this administrative 
committee is about. It is a band of brothers. It is veterans taking care of veterans and that 
is the way it has to stay. 

No one was neutral to this bill. 

The hearing was closed. 

THE FOLLOWING DISCUSSION ON THIS BILL TOOK PLACE LATER ON THE SAME 
DAY. 

Chairman Bette Grande opened the discussion on HB 1379. 

Rep. Glen Froseth: I hope that I didn't convey the message that I wanted to cut off any 
opposition testimony on that bill. I just thought that it would be good if they would have the 
opportunity to review the amendment and then come back with just a statement saying 
whether they approve or disapprove or what portions they didn't like in it, but we were 
hearing testimony in regard to the original bill. It really didn't do the people that were 
testifying any justice and also the committee. I hope it wasn't taken in the wrong manner 
because I certainly didn't intend to slight anyone by not allowing them to present their 
testimony. 

Chairman Bette Grande: From what I gathered I don't think anybody took it that way 
especially from me, Rep. If I would stated that, I think it would have been taken that way so 
I am glad that you duly noted that and I appreciate that. I had mentioned it but it wasn't 
going to matter if I said it. All those that wanted to make their point made their point. Dan 
has made his point to me on more than one occasion, and I am sure he is not done either. 
That is fine too. 

At first the committee had an overview of several veterans' bills, 1429 and 1316. 

Rep. Karen Rohr: What is the deal with this commissioner being terminated? I am so 
clueless about all of the extraneous factors that have arrived us to this point. Can you fill us 
in a little bit on that? 

Chairman Bette Grande: The best thing to do would be go back and get the audit report 
from about six years ago. The third bill we heard today as you can see it obviously was 
very controversial to even bring the matter up. Those of us who sat through that same 
hearing it was probably the exact same crowd last time. The bill last time had this bill plus 
the CVSO bill in it, and it also had James Martel who said he wanted the commissioner 
moved to Bismarck. That was also part of that bill. I didn't include that leap in this particular 
piece because that again is a whole other bucket of issues that have come up. They have 
arrived due to various problems. Some will call them problems. Some will say that there is 
no issue. I will tell you I have heard from veterans and I have heard from ACOVA members 
that are in favor of that bill, but they would not have felt comfortable speaking in front of that 
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crowd. Some of the emails I have received got very personal and some of them were not 
very polite. I think that they all feel that same thing back to them if they were going to show 
any support towards this bill, words short of threatening to Senator Dever and I. It has been 
real hard on Senator Dever. 

Rep. Lisa Meier: With the amendments that Senator Dever brought forward and I am 
maybe looking at past history has there ever been any discussion about having any 
legislative members that are perhaps veterans appointed to this ACOVA? 

Chairman Bette Grande: There may have been discussion, not this past interim, the 
interim prior, but unless they are a veteran and a legislator, it wouldn't be accepted anyway. 

Rep. Lisa Meier: We have put a few veterans that are legislators. That might be 
something worth considering or talking about. 

Rep. Glen Froseth: There are two parts to this, the ACOVA and the veterans' home. The 
veterans' home board and the administration I think needs a little bit more responsibility. If 
we don't do anything with the second part, maybe we should take a good look at the way 
the veterans' home is governed. Maybe that hasn't had a problem, but it seems to me that it 
would be better under the prevue of the governor's appointment of the board to take care of 
the administration of that veterans' home. 

Chairman Bette Grande: You are correct. The tough part is as you heard the ACOVA 
always agrees and yet there is disagreement. What has happened with the subcommittee 
that is with the veterans' home there has been a bit of consternation between them and the 
administrator although detail cannot be discussed because those that are involved have 
asked for it to be kept private in fear of job and other things. There is a desperate need for 
qualified persons to be on a board of a nursing home and to run the nursing home like a 
nursing home. That is why that is a very critical piece to this bill and as you noticed no one 
questioned that. I think that is very important that we note that. They had dealt with part of 
that in past sessions where they were having what they called the commandant that ran the 
nursing home and the qualification always fell under that they must be the veteran but there 
wasn't one that was qualified in nursing home care. Things became difficult out there and 
so they removed that language so now this particular director doesn't happen to be a 
veteran and as you heard in testimony today if you are not a veteran you don't know 
anything about veterans' needs. I think it is critical that a board be properly appointed to 
address nursing home issues. 

Rep. Glen Froseth: Another comment on that. There is a distinct difference in the needs of 
a person in the veterans' home than the needs of a person that still is basically as active as 
he can be in his everyday life. Once you get in that veterans' home your needs have 
changed and your type of care and everything else is completely different. 

Chairman Bette Grande: I think what was pointed out, when one of the gentlemen and I 
think it goes back to being Jim again with the nursing home which he is the only one who 
brought up the topic, they really need somebody on the board that is dealing with mental 
health issues, addiction issues, all those types of things. Those need to be addressed by 
the board. I think that is a critical piece that the governor in his responsibility of appointment 
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is to find qualified personnel to serve on that board. I think that is going to be very important 
to the further running of that facility. We have a new facility that is going on line and trying to 
work towards that. Now is a good time to make that shift to make sure they are best served 
in Lisbon there. One other thing regarding the ACOVA piece I want you to go back and 
picture the testimony that we received. Is anybody under 30, 40, 50 represented by that 
group? Go back and see the grants. When I asked that question of some of the groups I 
was told I shouldn't ask questions, you are not a veteran. I was told it was their problem. 
They don't want to fit in with us. I just found that real hurtful. I want to keep an eye on that 
as to making sure all veterans are served. That is just my take especially as I looked 
around and saw that in the room today because it made my point to myself what I had tried 
to make a point to some of them and just even asking the question about isn't a veteran a 
veteran and I was literally thought going to get poked right in the chest and sat in my chair. 

Rep. Lonny Winrich: When you talked about the relationship like the veterans coming 
back from Afghanistan and Iraq and so on, I rarely read USA Today but I get a free one 
every day at my hotel, and I couldn't help but notice recently there was a front page article 
about what a difficult time our society is having to adjusting to being at war for so long. 
Even World War II didn't last as long as what we have been in the Middle East. There are 
very few impacts here in the United States. There is no rationing. In World War II you 
couldn't buy a new car because all the production went to the military. It is such a different 
situation that we are not accommodating these people as our society normally has. It is 
causing some real severe effects. One thing you said struck me as perhaps certainly a 
different interpretation than I had about there not being any objection to the part about the 
veterans' home. I certainly agree with much of what you said. In fact if you go back to the 
previous commandant so to speak that is where some of the audit problems existed very 
severely. I certainly interpreted Lyle Schuchard's testimony to say no changes should be 
made to the ACOVA. They should keep that same subcommittee structure and everything 
the way it is. 

Chairman Bette Grande: That is the objection of when ACOVA and Coordinating Council 
get up what they are saying, you are correct, in that they will be accepting of no change at 
any time for any reason. Never. When I asked about the young veterans talking about 
wanting to have a nationally recognized organization such as Amvet and have it for the 
Desert Storm and I brought that up as far as what do you feel of that being a voting member 
of the ACOVA and you would have thought I had gone mad. No, they should belong to the 
clubs that are here. I just can't grasp that. When I said that I don't understand why that 
couldn't be acceptable again right in my face you know nothing because you are not a 
veteran. I don't know what to say to that. 

Rep. Glen Froseth: Following that line and I don't know what the possibility would be to 
change but rather than have just all of ACOVA board chosen from the different veterans' 
organizations, maybe some of those people should be chosen from the different eras of 
conflict. There would be more of an age representation all the way down from the present 
conflicts through World War II . 

Chairman Bette Grande: That is certainly definitely something to look at. That is why if 
you look at it and it says 5 instead of the 15, we remove the representation of the clubs and 
we said veteran and we used the formal definition of veteran so that all are included. All 
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names can be offered up. If you don't belong to one of the clubs, you cannot serve on 
ACOVA. You must belong to one of the five. We thought that if we could open that up to 
any veteran in the state that we could see representation. We would hope that we would 
see that form of representation. 

Rep. Karen Karls: I think we should have a homework assignment this weekend. Go 
home and find a young vet or two or three or four and see what they think because I can 
see where the standing veterans' groups want them to join their groups because they need 
young blood. They need young members. If these young veterans returning from 
Afghanistan and Iraq don't feel welcome or don't feel comfortable, we have a problem. 

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: One of the handouts we received, Century Code 37-
01-40 (Attachment 6) references to what the veteran is. According to our state law it would 
be World War I, Korean War, Vietnam War, Gulf War, and another period starting 
September 11, 2001. There are five distinct eras of veterans. How does that match up with 
what is in the bill for the five voting members? Could we do one from each era? That way 
we would have it covered in law. 

Chairman Bette Grande: I think the committee could look at that. 

The discussion ended for this time around . 
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Chairman Bette Grande opened the discussion on HB 1379. A report had been 
distributed yesterday and Treasurer Schmidt has been asked to present this information. 
Attachment 1. 

Kelly Schmidt, State Treasurer, appeared. The first is a summary of the study. The 
second item is a copy of power point presentation, and the third item is the complete study 
in itself. This study originated from talking with the department of veterans' affairs and 
some of our veterans' groups there was discussion about possibly working through the 
session this year in an effort to add some dollars to the veterans' post war trust fund for the 
use of grant opportunities for our veterans. Knowing that and knowing how appropriations 
works we felt it was important to find and gather some statistical information so that we 
would be able to come down as trustee of the fund to better give information to the 
appropriations committee so that they would be able to make some good decisions based 
on that information. We did accomplish this in this report. The expenditure portions of the 
trust fund are administered through the administrative committee of veterans' affairs and 
they can help identify what they do with the funds once we make that transfer. The people 
of North Dakota through a constitutional resolution in 1996 established the veterans' post 
war trust fund with the amount of $4.1 million. That money is put in the hands of the state 
treasurer who is trustee and does the investing of the fund. The income of that fund is then 
transferred to the department of veterans' affairs with the administration of ACOVA to 
provide.benefits for veterans. There are approximately 55,768 veterans that live in North 
Dakota. This is according to the 2006-2008 data. That population is expected to decrease 
on an annual basis through 2030 mostly due to the higher number of deaths than that of 
new veterans. The grant categories as you can see in the table are defined based on 
years and period of time in which they were established and the calendar year caps that 
were placed on them. Most of the grants have been to hearing, eye glasses, dentures, and 
special grants which are defined at the commissioner's discretion to deal with in special 
situations. They did add a portion to the study relating to traumatic brain injury because 
that is such a current topic to see if indeed there are benefits to be considered moving 
forward and there was no data specific to North Dakota to show that a need for benefits 
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related to TBI at this time. We learned that 1,493 people are approved for grants from 
1993 to 2010. Out of the 1,493 applicants, 963 people actually received those grants. If 
you are approved does not necessarily mean you have went to the doctor and done 
everything you need to do in order to receive the dollar amount. We did notice some of the 
usage of the grant fund and that information is available to you. The eligibility requirements 
are set by ACOVA relating to household size and income. That is defined in the study and 
the projections which is the real number that we were looking for. Using the assumed rate 
in the population of North Dakota veterans to be approximately 3%, the assumed increase, 
and using a 3% rate of inflation based on the current benefits costs, we were able to 
determine using the current benefits that ACOVA has in place, that as we move through the 
table on the last page of the summary, the income dollar amounts that would need to be 
necessary in order to maintain the current programs. As we see it right now in the current 
biennium we need approximately $179,000 through the 09-11 biennium and currently the 
department of veterans' affairs using the current model receives $200,000. As we move 
forward to the biennium 2017-2019 they have increased the denture portion of that and 
through the table would determine that we would need approximately $541,000 of income 
to accommodate the benefit structure that they presented. 

Chairman Bette Grande: Are they saying here that they feel that there is that high of a 
need in the population right now of an increase of 90 people per biennium for need for 
dentures? Was there something that drew them to that? That is the biggest leap out of all 
these numbers. 

Kelly Schmidt: I am going to answer this because I think I know. I believe that there was 
a higher number of applications for dentures prior to a time where we had to reel back in 
some of the benefits and with the anticipation that the income would increase as the 
economy changes that they would like to see that number come back up and that is why 
the number was increased. She asked Lonnie Wangen if that was a correct answer. He 
said yes and that the denture part was eliminated for awhile. The remainder portion of it 
talks about the different ages. It talks about how our veterans are broke up by gender and 
age. The largest group of folks that currently use the veterans' post war trust fund grant 
program are those between the ages of 55 and 64. It talks again about how they 
administer it and some of the other benefits that are available. It defines the hardship 
grants. Slide 10 talks about the income levels, what those levels are relating to the 
household size. Those are set by ACOVA and then again it talks about the unused grant 
portion which is the portion of what is approved and what is received and the grant dollars 
that are expended. Slide 13 shows the grant dollars approved for and the amounts used 
and the difference between those two. On Page 14 are the amounts that have been paid 
out of the post war trust fund and the amounts that the OVA has discussed and the 
difference between the two. Relating to Slide 14 I had a discussion with the commissioner 
this morning and we have been able to line up some of those numbers now and some of 
that is relating to timing. If a veteran applied for a grant in December for dentures and had 
the lower set done in December but both top and bottom were approved, there may have 
been a timing issue with some of those dollar amounts so we have been able to kind of 
bring those two together. 

Rep. Lonny Winrich: What is in the constitution? Did you say ACOVA is in the 
constitution? 
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Kelly Schmidt: Yes, ACOVA is in the constitution. The constitution specifically states that 
a trust fund named the veterans' post war trust fund has been established in the state 
constitution will be administered by the administrative committee of veterans' affairs 
meaning AC OVA and that the trustee shall be the treasurer of the state of North Dakota. 

Lonnie Wangen, Commissioner of Veterans' Affairs, appeared. Attachment 2. 

Rep. Karen Karls: Toward the bottom of your testimony it says eligible grants are 
approved. Is that by ACOVA or a subcommittee of ACOVA? 

Lonnie Wangen: The ACOVA authorizes the use for the programs. They do the policies 
and what not. Our office has a person named Andrea that they all go to and so she would 
work those grants and check the eligibility as far as income level based on the number of 
people in the family and then asset level is looked at and then are they a veteran or an 
eligible dependent or spouse. If they are eligible, it is approved. 

Chairman Bette Grande: The persons that are looking for a grant are they usually 
referred to Andrea from their CVSO? 

Lonnie Wangen: Yes. These grants are all completed by either a county veterans' 
service officer or done by one of our state service officers. Andrea does not like to work 
directly with the veterans on that part. It is best to have somebody who knows the veteran 
and can help them with the forms. 

Chairman Bette Grande: Do you track in your office like are you seeing the vast majority 
coming out of Williams County or out of Cass? Do you track where the grant applications 
are coming from? 

Lonnie Wangen: Yes we do. Andrea does do a report and she keeps that tracked out for 
us so we can see from each county how many were applied for, how many were denied 
because they weren't eligible, and how many were approved. 

Chairman Bette Grande: The denial process--the CVSO was the one who worked with 
them and filled out the grant. They should have been pretty clear that ii was going to be 
something that worked, wouldn't it be? 

Lonnie Wangen: They wouldn't have access to their banking accounts and things like 
that. Normally what they will do is they will come in and put in the information they can. 
The credit reports and what not get requested to our office and then Andrea looks at those. 

Chairman Bette Grande: The CVSO is not looking at the areas of finance. They are just 
looking at first, need. They refer you on a needs basis. Then you go from there into the 
next phase of qualification. 

Lonnie Wangen: That is pretty clear, yes. Some CVSOs do help them with the banking 
and may have a lot of that information but once we send that information to a bank they 
might find that the average-they go by the average balance of the last 90 days and from 
there they say your average balance can't be over the $2,000 or what not. The banking 
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statements they bring into the CVSO may look good, but when we run it with the bank 
again or if it takes longer to run it, it might have gone up a little bit. Then we will work with 
the veteran to see if they have deducted everything that they can if it is close. 

Chairman Bette Grande: That criteria is set by the ACOVA, your office, or the federal 
government? 

Lonnie Wangen: That would be the criteria pretty much set by the ACOVA. 

Rep. Gary Paur: You said $25,000 available for grants as an example. If you have 
$30,000 or $35,000 of requests, then what is the process? 

Lonnie Wangen: It would be the same process. 

Chairman Bette Grande: I think what he is looking for is you have been given say 
$200,000 for the year, by quarterly you get the $25,000. With that $25,000 and he is 
saying in that quarter you got grant needs for $35,000 what do you with that other $10,000? 

Lonnie Wangen: If the $25,000 came in and we had balances left from the last quarter, of 
course we could probably pay that, but if we do not have the funds in our account, our 
current policy is we do not approve that grant until there is funding in that account. Right 
now we do have the funding so all current grants are covered. 

Rep. Gary Paur: You have seven $5,000 requests for grants. You only have enough 
money for five. Who determines which five you take? 

Lonnie Wangen: That only has been a small time period in the history that we have really 
had to do that. For the most part the funding has been there. In that situation it would be 
by date order and critical need. 

Rep. Gary Paur: Who determines this? 

Lonnie Wangen: That would be determined by myself and Andrea. 

Rep. Mark Sanford: I probably missed it in the explanation but the difference between the 
approved grant and the amount used and then it stays in the account so what would be the 
difference? If it is in the trust fund I am assuming it is earning at a certain rate. What 
happens to it when it sits in the revolving account or whatever you want to call it? 

Chairman Bette Grande: Is there interest on the 410 account? Note: I think Chairman 
Grande received a nod of a no. 

Rep. Karen Karls: Is there any way of knowing what the balance is in that 410 account? 

• Kelly Schmidt: I checked it about 10 days ago and it was about $50,000. 

Chairman Bette Grande: Something just kind of intrigues me when you say $50,000 and 
we are in January. If it is $25,000 per quarter, when does the $25,000 usually go in? 
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Kelly Schmidt: Recently in the last several quarters usually at the very beginning of each 
quarter we get a request from OVA to make a transfer of $25,000 based on the $200,000 
per biennium expense. At their request we transfer $25,000 into that account at which time 
it no longer does have interest earning to it and then once it goes into their account I don't 
know what their procedure is. 

Chairman Bette Grande: We have twice as much in there so would have there already 
been two transfers of $25,000 if we are at $50,000 and I am only in February? 

Kelly Schmidt: The most recent transfer made was in January and normally it has been 
based on calendar year. 

Chairman Bette Grande: There must have been a carryover of $25,000? 

Lonnie Wangen: There are two different ways that this has been run and this is the way it 
has been run since 2009. Prior to 2009 what would happen is--we have no visual contact 
on that account. We can't see the balance on it or know anything about what is in there 
right now. As the vouchers part would come through, Cathy would look at the vouchers 
and she has kind of an idea what is in that account and she would call the treasurer's office 
and say this is what I figure. How much do you have in the account? I have this much in 
vouchers. Transfer some more over. With the economic downturn that we had and during 
that time we had a big influx of grants, we ended up with a lot of claims waiting for the 
funding to come in. What we did from that point on is we cut back on the amounts of the 
grant amount and I said we are not going to be doing this anymore from now until we get 
well ahead. We are going to be waiting until the money is in the account, then approve, 
and get that done. We got caught up back in October and the history says December
January area we get piggyback. What they do is they will come in and have a grant at 
some point in this year and our rules say you can only have $3,000. If it costs $3,000 for 
lower dentures, you do it this year. Next year you will apply and get your uppers done. We 
usually see a big influx. We didn't see that in December and January like we figured, but 
this last month I have had stacks of these grants coming in. That money is sitting there and 
we probably won't be making that next request for $25,000. We are going back to the old 
system but the money that is there is going to be probably eaten up in the next month or so 
and we still have a van to purchase. If we get all that taken care of, we are going to be 
going back to the old way of keeping that amount as low as possible in the future. 

Chairman Bette Grande: Currently that other $25,000 is really kind of that rollover you 
were talking about, those turn back grant dollars and so they were still waiting in there for 
that second set of dentures or that type of thing? 

Lonnie Wangen: We just had a lot of grants coming in and a lot of those what we call the 
piggybacks where they got half the work done this year and will do the next half next year. 

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: You are talking all the grants and all of a sudden you 
slip the van in. Where does the van come in with the grants? 
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Lonnie Wangen: The post war trust fund has many programs that it funds. The grants are 
just one portion of that. We did keep requesting those quarterlies and cover our grant 
program. We did keep those requests coming because we were expecting that big influx, 
but we are in the need of one more transportation van and whether or not we will have the 
funding for that-we probably will-or if the grants are that big we need to be purchasing 
that pretty soon here so we can get it by spring. That is totally separate. This wouldn't be 
covered in the study. 

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: You are going to use post war trust fund money that is 
going to take away from dentures and optical and purchase a van? 

Lonnie Wangen: We are hoping that doesn't happen. We are hoping we have enough 
money to purchase a van without that. We would prioritize those grants over that and we 
are working with the federal VA to allow some of the vans that we have to have higher 
mileage on it. They have a mileage mark. We buy the vans and give it to them. They 
insure them and license them. CVSOs get someone to volunteer drive them so it costs us 
nothing except for some housing for the drivers when they have to stay over. It is a good 
program but to save themselves on having to pay the maintenance on these vehicles they 
set a mileage cap and at that point they say you need to replace this van because we don't 
want to have to start putting in engines and transmissions in because they have to return a 
good van to us to sell. 

Chairman Bette Grande: Did you put in a request in your budget to purchase a van 
instead or is it normal to take it out of the post war trust fund? 

Lonnie Wangen: That has always been normal through that. The DAV has I believe it is 
called a Colorado Trust where they help purchase vans and so they normally will split a van 
with them or if we need two vans, we will buy one and the DAV will come up with the 
money that way. We will be working with them also to try to alleviate the costs here so we 
won't have to dip in the post war trust fund. 

Chairman Bette Grande: What is the Colorado Trust? 

Lonnie Wangen: It is through the DAV. It is a trust they have to buy vans for the country. 

Chairman Bette Grande: Sorry, I was thinking DVA, not DAV. 

Lonnie Wangen: Through them you can get a discounted rate for these vans. They 
negotiate them and they do give away some free ones. Every year we apply for that and 
show them the need, and we were hoping we would have gotten a free van from them but 
our state wasn't chosen. 

Kelly Schmidt: This discussion came up years ago relating to the purchase of vans using 
veterans' post war trust fund monies. I have in my office a copy of a letter that was written 
by a former commissioner of the department of veterans' affairs to the attorney general 
requesting an opinion relating to the purchase of vans. That informal letter did approve the 
opportunity to purchase vans using post war trust fund money because it does benefit our 
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veterans by bringing them from private areas to the different satellite clinics and to the VA 
hospital in Fargo. 

Rep. Bill Amerman: I don't know if it was in the study. All the emails and things flying out 
there that I don't understand have something to do with the $450,000. Will you please 
explain that to me. 

Kelly Schmidt: It would be my pleasure to give you an explanation on that. Years ago in 
1996 when this fund was established and the policy was put into place by the former 
treasurer that was in office at that time. That policy was established that the ACOVA had 
the opportunity to spend any dollars that were available through the post war trust fund. 
Let me give you an example. If the treasurer purchased the stock for $100 and it went up 
in value to $120 there was reporting that was given to ACOVA that showed they could 
spend $20. Twenty dollars is only on paper. Until you sell that stock you don't know what 
that stock is worth, so if the stock sold for $110, you would really only have $10 to sell. 
That was something that went on for several years and in 2009 we went forward because 
there were so many questions about what was being able to be spent. What was 
happening when that policy had been established and those additional dollars were set up 
that treasurer also determined that there could be a savings fund or a set aside account. 
Instead of let's say as I said again you buy $100 stock and on paper it shows that it is worth 
$120 they would spend $10 on grants and the other $10, for example, they would put in an 
account or they'd put it in their savings account. Mind you it never left the post war trust 
fund because that would be against the law. You cannot establish the second account 
unless you have authority in statue. That $10 instead of being spent on grants or vans was 
set aside. That money they had set aside on unrealized gains sat on paper and 
accumulated to $400,000. When we did the entire fiscal analysis in 2009 where we hired 
an independent public certified accountant to come in and take a look at this fund and 
working with the attorney general's office and also using the Uniform and Income Act it was 
determined that by law we have to follow the Uniform and Income Act and the policy in 
which this program was established in the very beginning was inaccurate. Knowing what 
we know now in order to follow the law we can only spend income. If you buy a stock for 
$100 and it is worth $120 and you sell it for $120, you can't use that $20 because it is a 
realized gain. You can only use interest that came from that $120 or you can use dividends 
that were paid from that $120. The $20 stays in the principle. 

Chairman Bette Grande: That 400 to 450 to 480, because I have been getting all the 
same emails and I have received all kinds of numbers-I have seen it written in the paper 
all different kinds of numbers that you stole this money. I stole it too in a couple 
newspapers. That was paper money and it stayed in the post war trust fund? 

Kelly Schmidt: The only transfers that are made out of the post war trust fund go to the 
410 account that was previously mentioned. Otherwise, they are in secured accounts like a 
CD account or they are in our investment account which is managed by our investment firm 
and our custodial bank. 

Chairman Bette Grande: All that was happening was that somebody was drawing a line 
and putting certain dollar amounts in another account by paper not literally physically taking 
money and putting it in another account? On paper somebody drew money into another 



• 

• 

House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
HB 1379 
February 17, 2011 
Page 8 

account but it was being put there illegally so when this was found it was put back to the 
post war trust fund where it belonged? 

Kelly Schmidt: I will make just one correction. I don't think anyone did it illegally. I think it 
was just a policy that was established and the way it was originally established was wrong. 
I do not believe for any second there was any malicious intent or any way to do it in any 
other way but what they thought was best. 

Chairman Bette Grande: That person didn't do it with vicious intent and neither did in 
removing it back. Is that correct? 

Kelly Schmidt: All we have tried to do is follow the law. 

Chairman Bette Grande: Can we share that with all of our friends? 

Kelly Schmidt: I received a call today regarding the post war trust fund but he was very 
upset because he thought this bill did something with the post war trust fund and I was able 
to explain and communicate to him. There is a whole lot of misinformation out there. 

Chairman Bette Grande: My email just before coming down here accused me of taking 
that money again too. I thought I would clear that up. I did not take any money nor am I 
trying to take any money. 

Rep. Glen Froseth: The balance of the post war trust fund is $4.1 million. If that came out 
of there, could that have shown a loss to the principles and then when you put it back in 
would show a gain? How could you wash that out? 

Kelly Schmidt: No, because at one time the post war trust fund was worth a lot more than 
$4.1 million. We have been over $5 million. 

Chairman Bette Grande: In the spending prior to 96 they were spending into the 
principle? 

Kelly Schmidt: Had this policy been established correctly from the onset, this fund would 
be worth a lot more than $4.1 million. 

Chairman Bette Grande: That was part of the issue and I am new to what was going on 
prior to the constitutional amendment to that. Prior to it being established in the constitution 
it was not managed to the point where principle was not being spent and that is why there 
was some consternation and problems and it was voted in to make it constitutional so no 
one could touch it again. 

Rep. Mark Sanford: In power point 13 could the commissioner help me on that, where we 
have the amount approved for grants, the amount used, and the difference. That seems 
like a big number. I am trying to reconcile that to this and I am not succeeding. 

Lonnie Wangen: When the study was brought to us by NDSU, we met with them and 
provided them with much information if we could. What they did was to come into our grant 
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computer to download information so that they can work on their own on this. When the 
new computer system came in, a lot of things weren't brought over from other grants and 
filled into this and there are a lot of different places you can make payments. Initial 
payments may have showed up on a different spot in the program so when this was 
downloaded, the lady doing it brought this to our attention and we looked at that and our 
records retention is three to five years so we have got easily the last two full bienniums and 
maybe the biennium before we can provide exact data. That is why I did hand out the one 
sheet that shows what has been done in those past bienniums. If you look at Page 9 of the 
actual study on the bottom she does reference that. We tried to do what we can to fix 
those numbers but requesting the vouchers from 0MB to show those vouchers that were 
paid they didn't have the records retention on those either. Going back to 2003 forward I 
am pretty sure we can get really good records to show those but her intent wasn't to look at 
the overall dollars. Her intent was to look at the individuals, their ages, and all that. That 
would have to come out of that system. 

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: On power point 13 under amount approved grants for 
the period 7-1-05 through 6-30-09 there was $744,000 of grants approved but there is only 
$457,000 of that amount used. What happened to that other approximately $300,000 that 
wasn't used or approved but wasn't granted or are these numbers not accurate? 

Lonnie Wangen: The 7-1-05 through the 6-30-07 is the biennium so you have two 
bienniums added up there if you go four lines. He found the correct power point slide. We 
do have a lot of people that cancel because they die, they can't afford to pay the amount 
over that. Without actually going back and looking at those I couldn't tell you exactly why 
there is such a big discrepancy there. The reports that we have is the actual amounts that 
we paid out and that would line up with what the treasurer would have. On these reports 
these looked at the individuals and a lot of grants do get canceled or they don't follow 
through on them. Just because a grant is canceled, it may be that went from dental to 
denture so we cancel the one and it becomes a denture grant. It will show that we 
canceled $1,000 and what we did is actually add $2,000 to it. It is now a $3,000 grant. 

Rep. Karen Rohr: Basically this middle column it is just the amount. It is not the amount 
disbursed. It is the amount that was probably on the application. Is that what you are 
saying? 

Lonnie Wangen: That is the amount that was actually used. Looking at the information 
that was missing in there, when the information was pulled out of a system if you had a 
grant for dentures for $3,000, your first payment is probably $100 or $200 to get the exam 
or what not, the cleaning. That goes in the line that shows payment. There are other areas 
where we track the following payments and that is where there are some discrepancies in 
showing what was actually paid on those. 

Chairman Bette Grande: Just a point of clarification and I know you probably didn't mean 
it like this but when he pays a voucher, he pays it to the vendor. The vet does not receive 
the cash. The vendor does. For some reason I am taking all of the Vietnam Veteran loan 
money. I am. not aware of what that is. Is there a way I can address that in my emails. 
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Lonnie Wangen: The Vietnam adjusted compensation money is where the post war trust 
fund comes from. It comes from money left over from the bonuses for the Vietnam War. 
That is where the whole post war trust furid comes from. The Vietnam loan program was 
never part of the post war trust fund or the Vietnam Veteran so I have no idea. 

Chairman Bette Grande: I wasn't quite sure what I had done wrong on that one. I just 
want to be able to answer the questions. I am just a little nervous sometimes with some of 
the accusations I am trying to get through. 

Lonnie Wangen: We are going to do our best to get more information on our website so it 
is clear. 

Rep. Mark Sanford: I am going to try one more time to do a better job of understanding. 
On that Slide 13 the actual amount expended is certainly close to what you show on this 
and the amounts spent are very close. I am still not understanding the amount approved. 
What happens when it is approved? Does that mean that you get that money from the trust 
fund at that time or not so this difference that Rep. Boehning was alluding to, that 
$300,000, is that money that you received or is that just a paper transaction that was 
approved? You didn't really get it. What you got was the amount that was actually 
expended? 

Lonnie Wangen: The pre 2009 or the way we do it now is irrelevant to that part. Your 
question is basically if you know the money is there, we will approve it and they are 
eligible? No money moves anywhere at that point. The only time money moves is when 
we pay the vendor. They are approved for it. They go get their help and then on our own 
internal accounting for money we know that if they didn't use a full $3,000 that we could put 
more towards another veteran's grant based on the budget. The ACOVA will work with the 
treasurer and kind of do a budget for the year for the biennium and that gets adjusted by 
the income that comes in. Sometimes they may say we are looking at $300,000 in grants 
in the next biennium and it might be less or it might be more and so it gets adjusted a little 
bit. That ends up more toward the end of the biennium. 

Rep. Mark Sanford: It probably is my interpretation of the table and it is getting me in 
trouble so I'll stop. 

Carlee Mcleod, Deputy State Treasurer, appeared. I think maybe I can help clarify this. 
That amount approved column is the total dollars that have been approved. If you have a 
grant that was approved for $500 but only $400 was spent that $100 is going to keep 
showing up in that column over and over as it is reapproved for other grants. It is kind of 
aggregated so that column will be higher than the amount paid out. 

Chairman Bette Grande: I have a copy of an amendment that I would like to replace the 
first amendment with. Attachment 3. I will walk you through the bill. The biggest changes 
will be the first one compared to the discussion from last Thursday. When we left last 
Thursday one of the things that Rep. Froseth had asked for and I had agreed to was that 
over the course of the week that we take some input from veterans' groups. A couple of 
things that I had in discussion with either veterans that came to my desk to speak to me, 
that I was able to reach by phone, communicated with emails, they offered some 
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suggestions and some of those are in here. Section 1, 2, 3 are the sections that deal with 
the government of the veterans' home. In those sections I was asked if we could have the 
administrator of the veterans' home be appointed by the governor just as I had written in for 
the commissioner to be appointed by the governor. I also took under consideration having 
spoke to some of those that are involved on that governing board the concern wasn't a 
majority of veterans in there so that changes there making ii a majority so it is four veterans 
and three other instead of the other way around. If the governor was to appoint four 
veterans and another person's name was brought up that was a veteran, you could end up 
with seven veterans there. It is not limited to. 

Rep. Lonny Winrich: On the top of Page 2, Paragraph 3 the last sentence says if a 
committee member with an expiring term qualifies as a veteran under Section 37-01-40 the 
governor shall appoint a member qualifying as a veteran under that section. Does that 
mean that if the situation ever arose where there were seven veterans on the committee 
there would always have to be seven veterans on the committee? 

Chairman Bette Grande: I think what it is saying is that we never want to go below four. 
Oh, I see what you are saying. 

Rep. Lonny Winrich: I think it would say if a committee member with an expiring term 
was appointed as a veteran member 

Chairman Bette Grande: Very good point. ... was appointed as a veteran. Point 5 gets 
to that a little bit. If a position becomes vacant, the governor shall fill the vacancy for the 
unexpired portion of the term in the same manner as the initial appointment. That will cover 
that also that if they were initially appointed as the veteran that seat needs to stay as the 
veteran. In that Section 3 still we talk about the chairman will be appointed. Committee 
must meet at the call of that chair. Powers and duties, the governing board is responsible 
for the administration of the veterans' home. Performance evaluations needed to be done. 
Implementation of the strategic plan. It is all pretty standard board language. We did put 
compensation in. If anybody is wondering that is the standard compensation for boards. I 
didn't know where the $135 came from, but council said that is standard. At the end of last 
hearing it was brought to our attention by 0MB that we had some old language that had 
been transferred in and I am going to have Rep. Steiner address that amendment. 
Attachment 4. 

Rep. Vicky Steiner: It is not in typical code form. It basically just removes language by 
warrant check drawn by the office of management and budget upon the submission of a 
paper voucher to it, signed so it is cleanup language. They don't do that warrant check 
paper voucher. 

Chairman Bette Grande: She is on Page 2, down to the bold topic of veteran home 
governing board-compensation-expenses and you will see where you need to read that in 
about the bottom four lines . 

Rep. Vicky Steiner: The payment must be made upon approval of the administrator of 
the veterans' home is the change. 
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Chairman Bette Grande: We are striking the language by warrant check drawn by the 
office of management and budget upon the submission of the paper voucher all the way 
through to the word signed. We are going to insert upon approval of the administrator and 
goes on. We will have that same language issue on Page 6. 

Rep. Vicky Steiner: It is on Page 6, the last page of the amendment 02006. It is the 
same language where at the last four lines again the payment must be made by warrant 
check. The payment must be made upon approval of the commissioner of veterans' affairs. 
This has to do with paying the voting members for expenses for the meeting, $135 per day 
for the voting members. 

Chairman Bette Grande: Label that Number 2. We are now onto Section 4. On Section 
4 and 5 is the description and talking about the commissioner of the department of 
veterans' affairs and that lends to the same language you saw in the previous amendment 
where it still stays governor shall appoint the commissioner, working at the pleasure of the 
governor. The significance of that is the OVA is an executive branch. The executives of 
other branches are all appointed by the governor. This stays with consistency of that. In 
Section 5 we are just talking about what his current authority and direction is there. 

Rep. Karen Karls: I must say I have never seen the term clerkhire before. 

Chairman Bette Grande: I know I haven't either. Section 6 is the elimination of that 
language and then it starts into the administrative committee on veterans' affairs. I have an 
amendment to that on Subsection 1 on the bottom of 3, there is created an administrative 
committee on veterans' affairs which for the purpose of this chapter is referred to as the 
committee. The committee shall consist of, and I would like to entertain 7 as the number 
there, voting members and 3 ex officio members and then we have to change that again 
thus. The veterans are the voting members. The others are nonvoting members and they 
are made up-I want to finish correcting Paragraph 1. We go on 3 ex officio nonvoting 
members. The 5 needs to go to 7 again. Now here's your ex officios, adjutant general, 
director of department of human services, executive director of job service. Currently that 
is the makeup. The commissioner used to be listed and I changed that to the department 
of human services because the commissioner isn't on that committee really. He is 
separate. Since human services really plays a role in this in that they can help with 
information regarding what are the poverty levels, what are they seeing for veterans' 
issues, what are they seeing coming into their things? What information can they give to 
this voting group that helps them make decisions as to what they want to do with the post 
war trust fund, what they would want to do as further change or develop inside a strategic 
plan that might meet the needs in another way? What kind of input can they give them to 
make a decision? Is job service seeing a higher number of veterans out there that are 
seeking employment and then maybe there is something they could be doing different to 
work through veterans' preference issues. Part of me says 7 might be too small. Maybe 9 
is a better number and I would entertain discussion on that. 

Rep. Roscoe Streyle: Right now they have 15. 

Chairman Bette Grande: Of that 15 there are ex officious, but they are not counted in 
that 15 so really there is 18. From the 15 right now it is down to 7. I don't know if the 
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committee feels that should be a little bit bigger number. I am willing to discuss that. You 
received a handout that had the description of veteran, the portion of the code and if you 
want to look at that how that works and what means we can certainly have a discussion at 
this time on that. Attachment 7. My thought is you are still looking at each of the service 
groups. That is five. If each of them were to put names forward, there is five people and a 
couple other kind of more at large veterans that are not members of the group. Maybe the 
women's veterans' group wants to put a name forward. That would be another option. 
They talk about the periods of service. There is WW 11, Korean, Vietnam, Gulf, and the 
period beginning September 11 on. 

Rep. Roscoe Streyle: What about keeping the five in and having four at large or are we 
getting too large then? That would alleviate some pain of we are getting kicked off of it. 
Could we say one of each of those groups, four at large, leave the three nonvoting? 

Chairman Bette Grande: If we were to look at not using a seven there but going to a nine 
and maybe take that language from up above where we would say that five of those would 
be one from each of the service groups and four just as listed as veterans using the 
definition of 37-01-40. Rep. Boehning was wondering if we were taking one from each of 
the a, b, c, d, e and I said no the five service groups not the eras. You were referring to the 
service groups, correct? 

Rep. Roscoe Streyle: Correct which it is how it is now . 

Rep. Lonny Winrich: When you say four at large, you mean veterans? 

Chairman Bette Grande: Correct, not necessarily connected. They could be connected 
or they don't have to be. 

Rep. Lonny Winrich: All of them will still be veterans? 

Chairman Bette Grande: Correct. All nine are veterans. Steven, in Section 6 we are 
going to be using the number nine. Five will be listed out of, and you will have to find the 
language of the service groups, and four will be listed under the veteran language. We still 
go on and continue on with the three ex officios. On the top of Page 4, Number 2, on 
August 1-of those numbers there I am going to let Steven play with those to make sure 
they match up. There will be nine members of the committee and he is going to have to 
break it down in those three, three, and three in the various terms. I believe it is going to 
work. The governor shall appoint three of the members at that point for a three year term. 
Three of the members for a two year term, three of the members on a one year term, and 
then they will all start rotating in. 

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: That refers to all of the members of the board 
including ex officios? 

Chairman Bette Grande: No. Ex officio is a permanent set position. This is only dealing 
with the veterans' group. 
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Rep. Bill Amerman: In going back up to Number 2, I have been trying to follow this. 
Each five of the organizations, one from each. In Number 2 it says any organization or 
citizen may nominate an individual for appointment to the governor. 

Chairman Bette Grande: That is the other four. Steven is going to have break out that 
language for us. The first three are going to be from the service groups. The next three 
will be from the service group plus one at large and then we will add in two more at large. 
They are all going to come on at the same time but just so we have a way of appointing it. 
You will see on Point 4 that on that three year term rotation if it is Am Vet, VFW, and DAV, 
then those three are the reappointed on that next rotation so we don't lose that person as 
they rotate through. On Section 7 let us go with three voting members can call. Meeting 
must be called by the chair upon the written request of three of the members. The minority 
should be able to still call for that but the quorum has to be brought in. According to the 
last audit which I think was 07 there was discussion that there was a strategic plan being 
developed and put together. They can use that same that is being developed, rework it, 
whatever this new group is looking at, and submit that and then we can start having a 
strategic plan to work off of it that more eyes are looking at and more direction goes to 
then. The new governing board I believe has put together or is putting together a strategic 
plan also. This will allow for that to continue. I want this to be considered part of 
amendment 2006. 

Steven Podoll, Law Intern, appeared. I want to make sure that I have everything that was 
discussed. On Page 1 there is nothing that was changed? 

Chairman Bette Grande: Correct. 

Steven Podoll: Page 2 I have at the top for Number 3 the second sentence if a committee 
member appointed as a veteran and continues on. That is the only change there? 

Chairman Bette Grande: Yes. 

Rep. Lonny Winrich: ... is redundant. It would be better to say if a committee member 
appointed as a veteran with an expiring term 

Chairman Bette Grande: Go to the committee member on 3. 

Rep. Lonny Winrich: I think it scans better if it goes after the thing about expiring term. If 
a committee member with an expiring term was appointed as a veteran the governor shall 
appoint a member qualifying as a veteran under Section such and such 

Chairman Bette Grande: I see where you are putting it. 

Steven Podoll: So I'll read that back. If a committee member with an expiring term was 
appointed 

Rep. Lonny Winrich: If a committee member with an expiring term was appointed as a 
veteran then cross down to the governor shall appoint a member qualifying as a veteran. 
Delete the redundancy there. 
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Steven Podoll: Delete from qualifies to the comma? 

Chairman Bette Grande and Rep. Lonny Winrich: Yes. 

Steven Podoll: Right before the comma and instead I'll replace that was appointed as a 
veteran. If a committee member with an expiring term was appointed as a veteran, the 
governor shall appoint a member qualifying as a veteran under Section 37-01-40. 
Nothing else on Page 2? 

Chairman Bette Grande: Go on Page 2 under veterans' home governing board 
compensation expenses. In that paragraph the last three lines it should read the payment 
must be made and then overstrike the words by warrant check drawn by the office of 
management and 

Steven Podoll: Okay, that part. Is that amendment 2? 

Chairman Bette Grande: Yes, it is amendment 2. We are going to meld this all into one 
and take one motion. 

Steven Podoll: Page 3? 

Chairman Bette Grande: I think we will give you the gist of this but I have a feeling Mr . 
Dawson is going to have put this language for you. We are going to a nine. 

Steven Podoll: Fives to nines. 

Chairman Bette Grande: On the top of 4, we are going to need to rework Paragraph 2, 
but I still think back on Paragraph 1 we still might have to do something different. I think we 
have to spell out that nine. I want to see that nine spelled out as five and then the groups 
and then four at large using the definition of veteran. 

Steven Podoll: On to Page 4 we have right away in Number 2 there is a five that needs to 
be changed to nine. When we get down to the final four lines when the governor shall 
appoint we will change those twos to threes and then you also want me to make sure that 
we get the five members spelled out groups, get those in the first three, the second three, 
and the remaining four will be those veterans at large. It will be three .. 

Chairman Bette Grande: You know what, though, I think we almost have to go every 
other one as a service member because otherwise you are going to have three rotate off at 
the same time. 

Rep. Lonny Winrich: My inclination would be to leave that up to the governor. 

Chairman Bette Grande: I think the only language you are going to need to do is appoint 
nine members of the committee. Each member and then we are going to have to spell that 
out the five and the four again instead of leaving that other language. Under the chairman 
duties meetings, meetings must be called by the chairman upon the written request of any 
three voting members so we can have a minority call of the chair. 
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Rep. Glen Froseth: I would move the amendments (2006) and I would also recommend 
that you probably appoint a subcommittee of three to review these amendments prior to 
sending to the floor. I would suggest you, Vice Chairman Boehning, and Rep. Winrich. 

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning seconded the motion. 

Rep. Bill Amerman: A lot of hard work went into these amendments and a lot of 
frustration. I just look at Page 3. We over struck 28 lines that had how the veterans' affairs 
committee worked. We sat here all afternoon. We went from five members to seven 
members to nine members, under the governor, how they should be appointed. We 
already had the system that is there. I don't know exactly what we are doing so why are we 
doing this? Why do we overstrike the words that were there and try to stay all afternoon to 
come up with this system? I just need to know why. 

Chairman Bette Grande: A lot of that overstrike will probably become un struck through 
the development of what we just did. I think there has been enough issue that this had 
come to the forefront two years ago. It has been studied for a whole interim prior. There 
were issues that were coming up that some people felt that we could address this and this 
is the form that it has come up in. 

A voice vote was taken on the amendments. Motion carried. 

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning handed out some amendments. Attachment 5 and 6. 
Basically what 2007 would do is it would be the audit of the veterans' post war trust fund 
during the interim 2011-12. 

Rep. Vicky Steiner: When you say every entity's transaction isn't that a little detailed? 
Don't you just want to say shall conduct an audit? You want them to go through every 
single voucher, every single thing? 

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: When I talked to council I told them to draft up what 
normal language would be. I told them my intent was to do a normal audit. 

Chairman Bette Grande: When I look at this, every entity's. I don't want to get into the 
point where we have to look at Dr. Joe's records to make sure he did the dental work that 
the voucher came from. Rep. Winrich, if you look at that what is your thought on taking out 
the words every entity's transaction and just authorizing an audit? Have you looked at any 
audit language on any other things recently? 

Rep. Lonny Winrich: I have not looked at language in code like this. I know from service 
on the audit and fiscal review committee that when, for example, the treasurer's office is 
audited, we get a report on the funds which she manages and the veterans' post war trust 
fund is included in that. 

• Chairman Bette Grande: That is the income side, but this would be the outside. 

Rep. Lonny Winrich: I am kind of wondering what we mean by every entity here? Are 
we in fact talking about every expenditure under all of these grants whether it is for 
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dentures or anything else? That is going to be a horrendous audit, probably looking at 
records all over the state. 

Chairman Bette Grande: I am concerned about that language too. 

Rep. Lisa Meier: Do we have any idea of what the cost of an audit like this would be? 
Perhaps we might want to ask. I am assuming that it would be pretty expensive. 

Chairman Bette Grande: If it is every entity like this, this is horrendously large. 

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: Reading through the state auditor shall conduct the 
financial audit of the veterans' post war trust fund expenditures and then overstrike every 
entity's transaction authorizing and. Then after expenditures overstrike from that fund. 
Would that be proper then? 

Rep. Roscoe Streyle: Couldn't we just request a ledger instead of having an audit? 

Chairman Bette Grande: This would be in addition to the current audit that takes place 
for the OVA. This would be an expanded piece to their regular audit. 

Rep. Glen Froseth: These last two amendments that were passed out is it the intent to 
hoghouse this entire bill and replace it with one of these? 

Chairman Bette Grande: No. That is what your amendment says. 

Rep. Glen Froseth: Page 1, Line 1 after a bill replace ... 

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: No, it shouldn't be a hoghouse. 

Chairman Bette Grande: I would say it would say Section 11, not Section1 and strike 
those first few lines. 

Rep. Glen Froseth: If you want to add this as the legislative study to the end of this bill, 
that is fine. I think in that legislative study you can look at any type of an audit or review of 
the expenses. You can include that in the legislative study. I would move to include the 
legislative study as an amendment to 2006, but not as a hoghouse. 

Chairman Bette Grande: You are adding 2008 with audit language? 

Rep. Glen Froseth: No, 2008 with legislative study. Section 10. 

Rep. Lisa Meier: What is the process? Doesn't your organization already go through an 
audit every year and isn't that up for public review? 

Lonnie Wangen: Every biennium we have an audit and the post war trust fund is part of 
that audit. That should begin here in the next month or so. 
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Chairman Bette Grande: The expenditures are included in that audit? I didn't see any in 
the last audit. 

Lonnie Wangen: There must not have been any errors. 

Chairman Bette Grande: The audit piece would not be necessary then, so we could just 
be looking at the 2008 handout that you had. 

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: The 2008 amendment is going to study the veterans' 
benefits and delivery system for veterans' benefits including benefits from the federal and 
state sources and in particular from the national guard and the department of veterans' 
affairs. Basically what I am trying to do is find out what benefits are out there so when we 
come back in two years to see if we are overlapping in some places. 

Rep. Bill Amerman: I understand the intent of Rep. Boehning's amendment, but I don't 
know if it needs to be shored up because if you go federal and state sources and all the 
benefits and the benefits depend on the circumstances of the veteran and what benefits 
come from the federal government and what benefits come from-I don't know how you are 
going to study this thing. This is pretty big. 

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: Maybe we could just do a state and national guard 
and cross out the federal? 

Chairman Bette Grande: I think what you are trying to get to is we have service centers 
that are going up, we have been talking about stand downs, we have been talking about 
grants, loans so is there a way that all the services-you are looking for a how to and what. 
You are looking almost more of an overview of how services are delivered. 

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: Correct. 

Chairman Bette Grande: We could do something more to the effect of study veterans' 
benefits and the delivery systems of veterans' benefits including benefits from the national 
guard and the department of veterans' affairs. I took out the words from federal and state 
sources and in particular. 

Rep. Lisa Meier: About two weeks ago we passed a bill out of this committee doing a 
study for benefits for veterans. 

Chairman Bette Grande: For national guard. 

Rep. Lisa Meier: For national guard. We did. Could we further maybe look at amending 
that bill in the senate? 

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning: We possibly could do that. It would be two separate 
studies but they could study either or of them. This would probably be cleaner and we 
could send it over there and if they want to take it off and change it over there that would be 
up to them. 
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Rep. Gary Paur: With this study aren't we trying to do the job of the organization you are 
trying to create here? That's their job isn't it? 

Chairman Bette Grande: I think what Rep. Boehning is saying what are the two entities 
doing that they could be doing together. I know what you are saying. The entities should 
work together without us telling them to. That national guard bill was Rep. DeKrey's. We 
can certainly talk with him and see about working that language into his bill. I think we are 
better to do that. 

Rep. Glen FrQseth: I withdraw my motion. 

Vice Chairman Randy Boehning made a motion for a Do Pass as amended. 

Rep. Glen Froseth seconded the motion. 

Rep. Bill Amerman: I am just not sure what we are doing. We had a system. We sat 
here all afternoon with amendments flying around. I really don't know what we are talking 
anymore. We are taking a system that has worked for years and the reason it has worked 
is because they built it over the years. There have been mistakes, but they built it up to 
where it is today. Now we are dismantling it and we are putting into whatever we are 
putting it into. I'll surprise you that I will probably vote against a do pass. 

- Chairman Bette Grande: After the letter you wrote I am not surprised at all. 

DO PASS AS AMENDED, 6 YEAS, 7 NAYS. MOTION FAILS. 

Rep. Lisa Meier made a motion for a Do Not Pass as amended. 

Rep. Mark Sanford seconded the motion. 

DO NOT PASS AS AMENDED, 8 YEAS, 5 NAYS. Rep. Bill Amerman is the carrier of 
this bill. 

Attachments 8-11 are written testimony and statements provided by various 
individuals. 
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Amendment to: HB 1379 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

02/22/2011 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to 
fundina levels and annrooriations anticioated under current law. 

2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $1 $C $ $0 $ $( 

Expenditures $25,00( $C $44,44 $0 $46,440 $( 

Appropriations $( $C $( $0 $ $( 

1B. Countv, citv, and school district fiscal effect: ldenti"' the fiscal effect on the annrooriate oolitical subdivision. 
2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

School School 
Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities 

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the 
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

School 
Districts 

Changes membership of the Administrative Committee on Veterans Affairs and allows for compensation along with 
meals, mileage and lodging. 

• B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have 
fiscal impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Administrative Committee to be receiving compensation. The present board chooses not to receive the $135 a day. 
The department only pays for meals, miles, and lodging at this time. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in IA, please: 
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and 

fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

No revenue connected with this bill. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line 
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

Expenditure amounts based on compensation for 9 committee members along with expennses. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency 
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and 
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a 
continuing appropriation. 

Included in department general funding. 

Cathy Halgunseth Veterans Affairs 
701-298-4692 02/24/2011 
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Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1379 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/19/2011 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to 
fundina levels and annronriations anticinated under current law. 

2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 
General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $ $1 $( $1 $( $( 

Exoenditures $ $1 $( $( $( $( 

Annronriations $1 $1 $( $( $( $( 

1B. Countv ci'" and school district fiscal effect: ldentiw the fiscal effect on the annrooriate oolitical subdivision. 
2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

School School School 
Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts 

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the 
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

• 

Changes membership of the Administrative Committee on Veterans Affairs. Allows Commissioner to form advisory 
committees. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have 
fiscal impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Advisory committees may be reimbursed for travel expenses. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in fA, please: 
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and 

fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget 

No revenue connected with this bill. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line 
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

Expenditure amounts based on advisory committee size and number of meetings. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency 
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and 
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a 
continuing appropriation. 

Funding neutral. 

Name: Veterans Affairs 

- Phone Number: ared: 01/24/2011 



• I 

• 

11.0599.02006 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Grande 

February 15, 2011 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1379 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and 
enact four new sections to chapter 37-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
governance of the veterans' home; to amend and reenact sections 37-15-03, 37-15-07, 
37-18-07, 37-18-12, 37-18.1-01, 37-18.1-02, 37-18.1-03, and 37-18.1-04 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to county veterans' service officers, governance of the 
veterans' homo, the commissioner of tho department of veterans' affairs, and tho 
administrative committee on veterans' affairs. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 37-15-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-15-03. Government of veterans' home. 

The general supervision and government of tho veterans' homo is vested in the 
aElmiRistFali',o eommitteo OR \'eleFaRs' affaiFSvoterans' homo governing board. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 37-15-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-15-07. Administrator of veterans' home -Appointment Q11alifieatieRs. 

The 8JlJlOiRlmeRt, q11alifieatioRS, teFm of offiee, aREI salafY of tho aElmiRiStFOtOF of 
tho votoFaRs' homo m11st be as JlFeseFibeEI iR seslioR 37 18.1 oagovemor shall appoint 
the administrator. The administrator serves at the pleasure of the governor. The 
aElmiRislFativo sommillee OR •,eteraRs' affaiFsveterans' home governing board may 
designate the administrator as commandant of the veterans' home if the administrator 
is an honorably discharged veteran. 

SECTION 3. Four new sections to chapter 37-15 of the North Dakota Century 
Code are created and enacted as follows: 

Veterans' home governing board - Membership -Appointment. 

1. The governing board for the veterans' home consists of seven voting 
members appointed by the governor. 

2. On August 1, 2011, the governor shall appoint seven members of the 
committee. Of the appointments, four members must qualify as a veteran 
under section 37-01-40. The governor shall appoint persons based on 
experience and qualifications. Tho governor shall appoint three of the 
members to a term of three years, two members to a term of two years, 
and two members to a term of one year, or until their successors are 
appointed and qualified. 

Page No. 1 11.0599.02006 
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3. On the first day of August in each year beginning in 2012. the governor 

shall appoint members to fill the expiring terms of committee members. If a 
committee member with an expiring term qualifies as a veteran under 
section 37-01-40. the governor shall appoint a member qualifying as a 
veteran under section 37-01-40. 

4. Beginning in 2012. each appointment must be for a term of three years. or 
until a successor is appointed and qualified. All terms begin on August first 
and end on July thirty-first in the year specified. 

5. If a position becomes vacant. the governor shall fill the vacancy for the 
unexpired portion of the term in the same manner as the initial 
appointment. 

Veterans' home governing board - Chairman - Duties - Meetings. 

The governor shall appoint the chairman of the veterans· home governing board 
from among the membership of the board. Meetings of the governing board must be 
held upon the call of the chairman. at such times and places as may be selected by the 
chairman, and upon due notice to members by the chairman. Meetings must also be 
called by the chaionan upon the written request of any four voting members of the 
board. 

Powers and duties of veterans' home governing board. 

The governing board is responsible for the administration of the veterans' home. 
The governing board has all ordinary powers required of a governing board. The 
governing board shall assure compliance with applicable federal and state laws in the 
administration of the veterans· home. The governing board shall conduct an annual 
performance evaluation of the administrator and create and implement a strategic plan 
for the veterans· home. The governing board annually shall report on the status of the 
strategic plan to the governor and the legislative management. 

Veterans' home governing board - Compensation - Expenses. 

The veterans· home governing board members may receive compensation of 
one hundred thirty-five dollars per day for the performance of their official duties. 
Members may be reimbursed for travel expenses and meals and lodging expenses in 
connection with their official duties at the same rate and in the same manner as are 
elected officials and employees of the state. Payment for compensation and expense 
reimbursement must be made by the veterans· home. The payment must be made by 
warrant-check drawn by the office of management and budget upon the submission of 
a paper voucher to it, signed by the administrator of the veterans· home. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18-07. Commissioner• Appointment - Qualifications - Term - Salary. 

The appoiRtmeRt, E11:Jalifi0ati0Rs. term ef offiee. aREI salary of ti'le semmissieRer 
m1:Jst Ile as pressrilleEI iR seetioR 37 18.1 03governor shall appoint the commissioner. 
The commissioner must be a veteran as defined in section 37-01-40 and shall serve at 
the pleasure of the governor. The commissioner must be allowed such amounts for 
travel. clerkhire. and expenses as may be prescribed from time to time by legislative 
appropriations. 

Page No. 2 11.0599.02006 
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SECTION 5.AMENDMENT. Section 37-18-12 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18-12. Funding authority - Continuing appropriation. 

The department of veterans' affairs may accept and expend funds from any 
source, including federal or private sources, to be used to assist veterans or qualified 
veterans' spouses in obtaining assistance and to pay other expenses authorized by law 
incurred in carrying out programs of benefit and service for resident North Dakota 
veterans as al:JIReFii!eel lly !Re aelmiAis!Fali..,e Bemmillee eA •;eleFaAs' affaiFS with the 
approval of the emergency commission. However, all interest earnings from the 
veterans' postwar trust fund received by the department of veterans' affairs from the 
administrative committee on veterans' affairs are appropriated to the department on a 
continuing basis. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18.1-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18.1-01. Administrative committee on veterans' affairs - Membership -
Appointment. 

Tl'leFe is ReFelly GFeateel QA aEIFAiAislFOfr;e Bemmillee 8A ... eleFOAS' affaiFS, WRiBR, 
faF pl:lFpeses ef IRis BRapleF, FAl:JSI ReFeiAafteF Ile FefeFFeel le as !Re BeFAFAillee. The 
Bemmillee FAl:Jsl GeRsist af IRFee e!E effieie R8R¥8liRg memeeFS BREI fifteeR veliRg 
memlleFs. TRe aEljl:JtaAI geAeFel, !Re oeA!eF elireoteF ef !Re veteFaRs' aelmiRiS!FO!ieR, aREI 
!Re elEeB1:Jtive EliFeBleF ef jell seFVioe NertR Dal~eta a Fe !Re e!E effiBie ReA..,eliAg memlleFs 
'NRe SRall seFVa iA QA ael ... isOFy BapaBily le !Re BeFAFAillee. OR eF llefoFe dl:JAe 20, 1971, 
!Re ,o,meFiGaA legieA, !Re veleF8AS ef faFei!)R 'NaFS, !Re elisallleel AFAeFiGaA \'eleFaAs, !Re 
..,eleFOAS of 'Nenel WaF II, KeFea, aAel Vie!Aam, (amvets), aAel Vietnam ,•eleFans of 
AmeFioa, iAG0FpeFaleel, SRall eaoR pFepaFe a list G0A!ainiR!) !Re names of SilE peFS0AS 
Efl:lalifyiAg as ·;eteFaAs 1:JneleF !Re pFe..,isieAs Bf seotien 37 01 40, faF appeiAIFAeAt as 
... eting memlleFS of !Re G0FAFAittee. OR BF eefeFe d1:Jly 1, 1971, !Re ge•,erneF SRall seleot 
lifteeA neminees, IRFee fFSFA ea BR list, fi•;e ef wRem FRl:Jsl Ile appeiAtea to a leFFA ef 
li'IFee yeaFs, live of WRem FAl:Jsl Ile appeiAteEI to a leFFA of tv>1e yeaFs, aAel fi·1e of 1.vRem 
FR1:Jst Ile appeinteel le a leFFA ef ene yeaF, er 1:JA!il !ReiF slcloeessers aFe appeiAteel anel 
Efl:J0lilieel. OR eF eefaFe IRS tweAlielR elay of dl:JAe iA eaBR yeaF, lleginAiA!J iA !Re yeaF 
1072, eaeh of the abe1t•e listeel Aefflinating o~ani2ati0Rs sl=lall s1;1bR1it a list eontaining 
!Re Rames of 1\110 perseAs WRO Efl:lalify as ·,eteFaAs 1:JAeleF the pFe¥isioAs of seolien 
37 01 40, to tl'le go,•eFner faF appein!FRen! er reappeintmeRt as ¥eling FReFRlleFs ef !Re 
GOFRmillee. OR 8F llefaFe IRS first elay of d1:Jly iA eaBh yeaF, llegiAniA!J iA !Re yeaF 1972, 
tAe ga,,eFnor shall seleet ene FlOFAinee fFam eaoR list, a tetal of fi1,e neminees, ta fill 
elEpiriAg leFFRS ef ... eliA!J memeers of IRS eemmittee. Eaeh 61:JGh appeiAIFRenl FRl:JSI Ile 
faF 8 leFFA ef IRFee yeaFS, eF 1:JA!il 8 Sl:JGGesseF is appeiAleel ane Efl:Jalilieel. All leFFRS llegiA 
en !Re liFst elay of d1:Jly anel eAd en the IRirtielR elay ef d1:JAe in !Re yeaF speeilieel. In 
ease ef !Re inallility BF fail1:JFe ef any ,;eliRg memlleF ef !Re eemmillee le seFVe, !Re 
geveFASF sRall appoiA! ane!Rer FRemeeF fFSFR a list of two perseAs Efl:J0lifyiAg as 
veterans 1:JneleF !Re pre·;isiens ef seslieA 37 01 40, s1:JllFAilleel ey !Re nemiAaliAg 
ergani:z:ation reJ3resenteel by tf:le member who \•,as 1;.1nable er faileel to seFYe. St;Jsl=I 
appein!FAenls FAl:Jst Ile maele feF !Re Femaineler of !Re 1:JAe!Epireel leFFA. 

1. There is created an administrative committee on veterans' affairs, which for 
the purposes of this chapter, is referred to as the committee. The 
committee consists of five voting members and three ex officio nonvoting 
members. The five voting members are members appointed by the 
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4. 

5. 

governor. The adjutant general, director of the department of human 
services, and the executive director of job service North Dakota are ex 
officio nonvoting members of the committee. 

On August 1, 2011, the governor shall appoint five members of the 
committee. Each member must qualify as a veteran under section 
37-01-40. The governor shall appoint members based on experience and 
qualifications while attempting to fairly represent the state's veterans' 
population. Any organization or citizen may nominate an individual for 
appointment to the governor. The governor shall appoint two of the 
members to a term of three years, two of the members to a term of two 
years, and two of the members to a term of one year, or until their 
successors are appointed and qualified. 

On the first day of August in each year beginning in 2012, the governor 
shall appoint members to fill the expiring terms of the committee members 
in the same manner as the initial appointment. 

Beginning in 2012, each appointment must be for a term of three years, or 
until a successor is appointed and qualified. All terms begin on August first 
and end on July thirty-first in the year specified. 

If a voting member position becomes vacant, the governor shall fill the 
vacancy for the unexpired portion of the term in the same manner as the 
initial appointment. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18.1-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18.1-02. Chairman• SeorotaF)' Duties• Terms Meetings. 

A el'laiFA'laA aAEI a eeeFelal)' ef ll'le eeA'lA'littee A'lust be appeiAteEI by tl'le 
!Je·1eFAer ffeA'l aA'leA!J ll'le ·,etiA!J A'leA'lbersl'lip ef tl'le eeA'lA'littee. Suel'l appeiAIA'leAt 
A'lust lie A'laEle aAAually, witl1 tl1e teFA'l ef effiee te lle!JiA eA tl'le fiFet Eley ef July ef tl'le 
yeaF speeifieEI aAEI te eAEI eA tl'le tl1iFtiell1 Eley ef JuAe ef tl'le fellewiA!J year. The governor 
shall appoint the chairman of the committee from the membership of the committee. 
Meetings of the committee must be held upon the call of the chairman, at such times 
and places as may be selected by the chairman, and upon due notice to committee 
members by the seeFelaptchairman. Meetings must also be called by the chairman 
upon the written request of any f&lffiwo voting members of the committee. A majority of 
the members of the committee is required for a quorum, and a majority of the members 
present voting in favor thereof is required for any action. 

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18.1-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18.1-03. Powers and duties of committee CFeatien of subeommitteo 
and ge•10Fning lleaFd. 

The committee is respeAsiele feF eF!JaAii!alieA, peliey, aAEI !JeAeFal 
aEIA'liAistratieA ef all \'eteraAs' affaiFs iA !Re state ef NeFIR Oal~eta. It has the following 
powers and duties: 

1. TRe eRairA'laA aAEI seeretal)' ef !Re eeA'lA'littee, aetiA!I jeiAlly, sRall appeiAt a 
seveA A'leA'leer !JeYeFAiA!I eeaFEI fer aEIA'liAistratieA ef !Re veleFaAs' ROA'le, 
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fFern •.villlin eF e1:1lsiae Ille oernrnillee, s1:1ejeel le ralifioalien ef a rnajeFily 
11ote of the eoFRmittee, and shall estaBlisf:I tefffl lengtAs fer servioe on the 
ge·,eFning beara. Tile ge\•eFning beara llas all eFainaF)' peweFS Fe(11:1irea ef 
a ge..,eming beaFEl, inol1:1ain9 tile peweF le establisll ei1:1alifioatiens feF ana 
seleelien ef an aElrninislFaleF anEI le eslablisll aR appFepFiate salaFy 
stF1:1el1:1re, s1:1ejeel le lirnitatiens ef legislative appFepFiatien. The 
aarninistFaler sef\Jes al the pleas1:1Fe ef Ille ge..,eming beaFEl. 

Tile sllairman ana seoretary ef tile oemmitlee jeintly sRall appeint a 
s1:11leernmillee te Ile Fespensillle fer s1:1pervisien ana ge..,ernment ef !Re 
aeparlmenl ef ..,elerans' affairs. Ones appeinlea, a s1:11leemmillee mernller 
may eontin1:1e to seFYe as Ieng as tf=le FflemBer reFRains a •,sting member of 
!Re eernrnillee, 1:1nless rarne•;ea frern tile s1:11leemmillee by jeinl aetien ef 
Ille eernrnillee ellairrnan ana seoretary. /'. rnernbeF ef !Re s1:1beemrnillee 
may not seFYe on the governing BoaFEI of the veterans' heme. Eaeh 
neminating erganii!alien lislea in seetien 27 18.1 Q1 m1:1sl lla..,e at least ene 
't'eliR§ mernbeF nerninelea by !Re ergenii!alien sef\Jing en the 
s1:1beernrnillee. Tile s1:1beernrnillee sllell seleel by rnajeFily \1ele ef tile 
rnernbeFS a elleiFrnan le presiae feF !Re leFrn ef ene year. 

2. Tile eemrnillee sllell appeint !Re sernrnissiener ef !Re aeparlrnenl ef 
·,eterans' affairs. Tile eemrnissieneF rn1:1sl be a Ilana liae resiaent ef the 
stale, and rn1:1st ei1:1alify as a •;eteran as aefinea in seetien 27 Q1 4Q. The 
eemmissieneF sef\Jee at lhe pleas1:1re ef IRe oernmillee. TRe eernrnillee 
shell aeleFrnine tile salaF)' peia le Ille eernrnissieneF ef !Re department ef 
·,eterans' affairs within the lirnils ef legislaliYe apprepriatien. TRe 
eernrnissiener ef veterans' affairs sllell serve ea Ille eMee1:11ive seerelary feF 
the s1:1beernrnillee. The sernrnissiener has ne "ale in the affairs ef the 
s1:1beernrnillee. 

4--The committee shall, 1:1naer raeernrnenaalien fFern the beaFEl eF the 
s1:1beernrnillee, present any matters needing attention and action to the 
appropriate board, commission, agency, or department of the state, ana 
!he ~lerlR Dakela 't'elerans' seerdineling ee1o1neil. 

&.-2. The committee shall ess1:1re eernplienee with epplieal3Ie feaerel ana state 
laws in the aaminislrelien ef beth the aeparlrnent ef -.,e1erans' affairs ana 
lhe ~lerlh Dekele ·,eterens' heme ana shall eMereise its respensililililies in 
all things neeessary le eerF)' el.ti the pre~•isiens ef !his ehapter in regera le 
ergenii!alien, peliey, ana geReral aarninislralien ef the ageneies seF\Jea ans 
in·,el..,ea in the eena1:1el ef 't'eterens' effaiFS. The beara geverning the 
veterans' llerne ana the s1:1bsernrnittee geverning the deperlrnent ef 
veterans' elfaiFS shell eena1:161 aR enn1:1el perferrnenoe eval1:1atien ef the 
aarninislraleF ena eernrnissiener, respeeli\·ely, willl Ille e..,el1:1alien 
presenlea le the oernrnillee. Tile beeFEl and s1:1boernrnillee shall create-aflEI 
implement a strategic plan for the 110terans' herne ana lhe aeparlmenl ef 
..,elerans' alfaiFS, Fespeeli..,elydelivery of veterans' services by the 
commissioner. The beera end the s1:1bsernrnilleecommittee annually shall 
report as to the status of the Fespeeli110 strategic plan to the semrnittee. 
After reoei11in9 a raper!, lhe oernrnillee shell s1:1brnit the raper! le the 
governor. 

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18.1-04 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 
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37-18.1-04. Committee members nette Feeei¥e eempensatien_ 
Compensation - Expenses permitted. 

GemmilteeVoting members may-Fl8t receiv8-af!Y compensation of one hundred 
thirty-five dollars per day for the performance of their official duties. Voting members 
may be reimbursed for travel expenses and meals and lodging expenses in connection 
with their official duties at the same rate and in the same manner as are elected 
officials and employees of the state, ',\li!R payment te. Payment of compensation and 
expense reimbursement must be made by the department of veterans' affairs anEI !Re 
veteFans· Reme te eaeR ef tReiF respeeti11e sueeeFRFRiltee FReFReeFS ineurFing !Re 
expenses. The payment must be made by warrant-check drawn by the office of 
management and budget upon the submission of a proper voucher to it, signed by the 
commissioner of veterans' affairs er !Re aEIFRinistrater ef !Re veterans' ReFRe, as !Re 
ease may be." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Date: _p;;· ,.___-_..L_J 7-'-------..:.../_/~ 
Roll Call Vote#: 

2011 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE RQ,LL CALL VOTES 
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. l:r17' 

House GOVERNMENT AND VETERAN AFFAIRS 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken 0 Do Pass O Do Not Pass O Amended ~ Adopt Amendment 

D 0 Reconsider 

Motion Made By :-s~ Seconded By 
--:.., 

/ 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Bette Grande Bill Amerman 
Vice Chairman Randv Boehnino Ron Guooisbero 
Glen Froseth Lonnv Winrich 
Karen Karls 
Lisa Meier 
Garv Paur 
Karen Rohr 
Mark Sanford 
Vicky Steiner 
Roscoe Streyle 

Total (Yes) No ----------- ---------------
Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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Date: _'J-----,----;_7_-_l_/---:ar
Roll Call Vote# -2:._ 

2011 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES 
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 1371 

House GOVERNMENT AND VETERAN AFFAIRS Committee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken i;i- Do Pass D Do Not Pass _;;i Amended D Adopt Amendment 

D~ropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By ~ · _____ Seconded By ~ 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Bette Grande V Bill Amerman V 
Vice Chairman Randy Boehninq V, Ron Guooisberri v 
Glen Froseth i./ Lonnv Winrich ,/ 
Karen Karls V I 
Lisa Meier v/ 
Garv Paur V v ✓· 

Karen Rohr v / 
Mark Sanford v/ 
Vicky Steiner \/I 
Roscoe Strey\e ✓ 

. 
7 Total (Yes) D No 

~ 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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11.0599.02009 
Title.03000 

Adopted by the Government and Veterans 
Affairs Committee 

February 18, 2011 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1379 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and 
enact four new sections to chapter 37-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
governance of the veterans' home; to amend and reenact sections 37-15-03, 37-15-07, 
37-18-07, 37-18-12, 37-18.1-01, 37-18.1-02, 37-18.1-03, and 37-18.1-04 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to county veterans' service officers, governance of the 
veterans' home, the commissioner of the department of veterans' affairs, and the 
administrative committee on veterans' affairs. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 37 -15-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-15-03. Government of veterans' home. 

The general supervision and government of the veterans' home is vested in the 
adR'linistFa!i>;e eaR'IR'lillee an veterans' affairsveterans' home governing board. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 37 -15-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-15-07. Administrator of veterans' home • Appointment Qualifieatiens. 

The appeintR'lent, qualifieatians, terR'I af affiee, anel salary af the aelR'linislratar af 
the veterans' heR'le R'IUSI be as pressribeel in seslian 37 18.1 03governor shall appoint 
the administrator. The administrator serves at the pleasure of the governor. The 
adR'linistrative eaR'IR'lillee an veterans' affairsveterans' home governing board may 
designate the administrator as commandant of the veterans' home if the administrator 
is an honorably discharged veteran. 

SECTION 3. Four new sections to chapter 37-15 of the North Dakota Century 
Code are created and enacted as follows: 

Veterans' home governing board • Membership • Appointment. 

.L The governing board for the veterans' home consists of seven voting 
members appointed by the governor. 

£. On August 1, 2011, the governor shall appoint seven members of the 
committee. Of the appointments, four members must qualify as a veteran 
under section 37-01-40. The governor shall appoint persons based on 
experience and qualifications. The governor shall appoint three of the 
members to a term of three years, two members to a term of two years 
and two members to a term of one year, or until their successors are 
appointed and qualified. 
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;L On the first day of August in each year beginning in 2012. the governor 
shall appoint members to fill the expiring terms of committee members. If a 
committee member with an expiring term was appointed as a veteran. the 
governor shall appoint a member qualifying as a veteran under section 37-
01-40. 

4. Beginning in 2012. each appointment must be for a term of three years. or 
until a successor is appointed and qualified. All terms begin on August first 
and end on July thirty-first in the year specified. 

5. If a position becomes vacant. the governor shall fill the vacancy for the 
unexpired portion of the term in the same manner as the initial 
appointment. 

Veterans' home governing board - Chairman - Duties - Meetings. 

The governor shall appoint the chairman of the veterans' home governing board 
from among the membership of the board. Meetings of the governing board must be 
held upon the call of the chairman. at such times and places as may be selected by the 
chairman, and upon due notice to members by the chairman. Meetings must also be 
called by the chairman upon the written request of any four voting members of the 
board. 

Powers and duties of veterans' home governing board. 

The governing board is responsible for the administration of the veterans' home. 
The governing board has all ordinary powers required of a governing board. The 
governing board shall assure compliance with applicable federal and state laws in the 
administration of the veterans' home. The governing board shall conduct an annual 
performance evaluation of the administrator and create and implement a strategic plan 
for the veterans' home. The governing board annually shall report on the status of the 
strategic plan to the governor and the legislative management. 

Veterans' home governing board - Compensation - Expenses. 

The veterans' home governing board members may receive compensation of 
one hundred thirty-five dollars per day for the performance of their official duties. 
Members may be reimbursed for travel expenses and meals and lodging expenses in 
connection with their official duties at the same rate and in the same manner as are 
elected officials and employees of the state. Payment for compensation and expense 
reimbursement must be made by the veterans' home. The payment must be made 
upon approval of the administrator of the veterans' home. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18-07. Commissioner - Appointment - Qualifications - Term - Salary. 

The appoiAIA1eAt, qualifiealions, term of offioe, and salary of the eommissioner 
Fflust 13e as presoril3ed in sestion :37 18.1 0:3governor shall appoint the commissioner. 
The commissioner must be a veteran as defined in section 37-01-40 and shall serve at 
the pleasure of the governor. The commissioner must be allowed such amounts for 
travel, clerkhire, and expenses as may be prescribed from time to time by legislative 
appropriations. 
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SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18-12 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18-12. Funding authority - Continuing appropriation. 

The department of veterans' affairs may accept and expend funds from any 
source, including federal or private sources, to be used to assist veterans or qualified 
veterans' spouses in obtaining assistance and to pay other expenses authorized by law 
incurred in carrying out programs of benefit and service for resident North Dakota 
veterans as authorii!ed by the admiRistFative eommittee OR veteraRs' affairs with the 
approval of the emergency commission. However, all interest earnings from the 
veterans' postwar trust fund received by the department of veterans' affairs from the 
administrative committee on veterans' affairs are appropriated to the department on a 
continuing basis. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18.1-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18.1-01. Administrative committee on veterans' affairs - Membership -
Appointment. 

There is hereey created aR admiRistrative eommittee OR •;eteraRs' affairs, whieh, 
for purposes of this ehapter, must hereiRafler ee referred to as the sommittee. The 
sommitlee must soRsist of three ei< offisio RORvotiRg members aRd fifteeR votiRg 
ffiemeers. The adjutaRI geReral, the eeRter direotor of the veteraRs' admiRistratioR, aRd 
the ei<esutive direstor of job servise ~lorth Dal1ota are the 0JE offieio RORvotiRg ffi0R'leers 
who shall sep;e iA aA advisory sapaeity to the sommittee. OR or before duAe 20, 1971, 
the AmerieaA legioA, the veteraAs of foreigA wars, the disaeled /\R'lerisaA veteraAs, the 
veteraAs of World VVar II, Korea, aAd VielAam, (amvets), aRd VietAam .,,eteraAs of 
/\merisa, iAsorporated, shall cash prepare a list soAtaiAiAg the Rames of sii< persoAs 
qualifyiAg as veteraAs uAder the provisioAs of seotioA 37 01 40, for appoiAtmeAt as 
votiAg members of the eommittee. OA er before duly 1, 1971, the ge•;emor shall seleet 
fifteeA AemiAees, three from eaeh list, five efo.vhem must be appeiAled ta a term of 
three years, fi.,,e of wham must be appoiAled le a term of two years, aAd five of whom 
ffiust be appeiAled le a term of eAe year, er uAlil their sueeessors are appoiRted aAd 
qualified. OA or eefore the tweAtieth day of duAe iA eash year, eegiAAiAg iA the year 
1972, eaeh of the abO','O listed A0miAaliA§ 0r§aAii!atiOAS shall submit a list 60AtaiAiA§ 
the AOR'les of two persoAs who qualify as veteraAs UAder the provisioAs of seetioA 
37 01 40, to the §10','0rA0F for appoiAtmeAt or reappoiAlmeAI as vetiA§ meffibers of the 
eomffiittee. OA er before the first day of duly iA eaeh year, be§iAAiA§ iA the year 1972, 
the s1o•;emer shall seleot DAO AomiAee from eaeh list, a total of five AemiAees, to fill 
OJEpiriAg terms of votiA§ members of the eommittee. Eash sueh appoiAlmeAt must be 
for a term of three years, or UAtil a sueeessor is appeiAted a Ad qualified. All terms be§iA 
OA the first day of duly aAd eAd DA the thirtieth day of duAe iA the year spesified. IA 
ease of the iRaeility or failure of aAy votiA§ member of the eommittee to serve, the 
s1ovemer shall appoiAt aAother member from a list of t•...,o persoAs qualifyiA§ as 
•;eteraAs UAder the provisioAs of seetioA 37 01 49, submitted by the AomiAatiA§ 
ers1aAii!alieA represeAted by the member who was uAable or failed to serve. Such 
appoiAlmeAts must be made fer the remaiRder of the UAOJEpired term. 

1. There is created an administrative committee on veterans' affairs, which for 
the purposes of this chapter, is referred to as the committee. The 
committee consists of nine voting members and three ex officio nonvoting 
members. The nine voting members are members appointed by the 
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governor. The adiutant general. director of the department of human 
services. and the executive director of iob service North Dakota are ex 
officio nonvoting members of the committee. 

2. On August 1. 2011. the governor shall appoint nine members of the 
committee. The governor shall appoint one member each from the 
American legion: the veterans of foreign wars: the disabled American 
veterans: the veterans of world war II. Korea and Vietnam. amvets: and 
Vietnam veterans of America. Each of the remaining four members must 
qualify as a veteran under section 37-01-40. The governor shall appoint 
members based on experience and qualifications while attempting to fairly 
represent the state"s veterans" population. Any organization or citizen may 
nominate an individual for appointment to the governor. The governor shall 
appoint three of the members to a term of three years. three of the 
members to a term of two years. and three of the members to a term of 
one year. or until their successors are appointed and qualified. 

3. On the first day of August in each year beginning in 2012. the governor 
shall appoint members to fill the expiring terms of the committee members 
in the same manner as the initial appointment. 

4. Beginning in 2012. each appointment must be for a term of three years. or 
until a successor is appointed and qualified. All terms begin on August first 
and end on July thirty-first in the year specified . 

.5.,. If a voting member position becomes vacant. the governor shall fill the 
vacancy for the unexpired portion of the term in the same manner as the 
initial appointment. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18.1-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18.1-02. Chairman - Sesretary Duties - Terms Meetings. 

A shairn1an and a sesretary ef the oemmillee must be a19peinted by the 
geverner frem ameng the veting membership ef the oemmillee. Such appeintment 
must be made annually. with the term ef effioe le begin en the first day ef July ef !Re 
year s19eoified and le end en the IRirlieth day ef June ef !Re fellewing year. The governor 
shall appoint the chairman of the committee from the membership of the committee. 
Meetings of the committee must be held upon the call of the chairman. at such times 
and places as may be selected by the chairman. and upon due notice to committee 
members by the seoretarychairman. Meetings must also be called by the chairman 
upon the written request of any feufthree voting members of the committee. A majority 
of the members of the committee is required for a quorum. and a majority of the 
members present voting in favor thereof is required for any action. 

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18.1-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18.1-03. Powers and duties of committee Creation of subcommittee 
and 90•1eming board . 

The committee is respensible for srgani;;atien. 19eliey. and general 
administratisn ef all veterans· affairs in the state sf ~Jsrth Dal~sta. It has the following 
powers and duties: 
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1. The shairR'lan and sesrelary sf !he SSR'IR'lillee, acling jeinlly, shall appeinl a 
se'o'en R'IOR'l80r ge'o'erning 0eard fer adR'linislralien sf !he veterans' heR'le, 
freR'I wilhin er eulside !he CSR'IR'lillee, su0jecl le ralificalien sf a R'lajerily 
'o'Sle sf !he ceR'IR'lillee, and shall esla0lish lerR'I lengths fer service en !he 
ge••erning 0eard. The geverning 0eard has all erdinary pewers required sf 
a ge'lerning 0eard, ineluding !he pewer le esla0lish qualificaliens fer and 
seleolien sf an adR'linislraler and le esla01ish an apprepriale salary 
slruoture, sul3jeel le liR'lilaliens sf legislali'o'e apprepriatien. The 
adR'linistrater serves at !he 13leasure sf !he ge,..erning 0oard. 

2--c The ehairR'lan and seerelary sf lhe comR'lillee jointly shall appoint a 
su0coR'IR'lillee to 00 responsi0le fer supervision and go'o'ernR'lent of the 
departR'lenl of 'o'elerans' affairs. Onee a13peinled, a su0eeR'IR'lillee R'IOR'l80r 
R'lay eonlinue to serve as long as the R'IOR'\0er reR'lains a 'o'eting R'IOR'10er sf 
the CSR'IR'litlee, unless reR'leved froR'I the SU8CSR'IR'lillee 0y jeint aolien sf 
the CSR'IR'lillee ehairR'lan anEI secretary. A R'IOR'l8er sf the su0eeR'IR'lillee 
R'lay net serve en the governing 0eard sf the veterans' heR'le. Eash 
neR'linating erganizatien listed in sectien 37 18.1 01 R'IUSI ha••e at least enc 
'o'S!ing R'IOR'l0er neR'linated 0y the erganizatien serving en the 
su0ceR'IR'lillee. The su0sOR'IR'li!tee shall seleol 0y R'lajerity ••etc sf the 
R'IOR'10ers a chairR'lan ts preside fer the terR'I sf enc year. 

a, The CSR'IR'litlee shall ap13eint the CSR'IR'lissiener sf the departR'lent sf 
veterens' affairs. The ceR'IR'lissiener R'\ust 00 a 0ena fide resident sf the 
state, and R'IUS! qualify as a veteran as defined in seetien 37 01 40. The 
CSR'IR'lissiener serves at the pleasure sf the eeR'IR'lillee. The GOR'IR'lillee 
shall delerR'line the salary paid ts the GOR'IR'lissiener sf the departR'lent sf 
veterans' affairs within the liR'lils sf legislative apprepriatien. The 
COR'IR'lissiener sf veterans' affairs shall serve as the eiwcuti,•e secretary fer 
the su0ceR'IR'lillee. The eeR'IR'lissioner has ne •1ote in the affairs of the 
SU8COR'IR'lillee. 

4, The committee shall, under reeoR'lmendatien from the 0oard or the 
su0eomR'lillee, present any matters needing attention and action to the 
appropriate board, commission, agency, or department of the state,afla 
the ~lorth Dal1ota veterans' ceerdinating council. 

&c2. The committee shall assure eempliance with appliea0le federal and state 
la•,vs in the administralien of 00th the department sf veterans' affairs ane! 
the Nerth Dalrnta 'o'eterans' home ane! shall OJEOrcise its responsi0ilities in 
all things neeessary le carry eut the pro'o'isiens sf this ehapter in regare! le 
organizatien, pelicy, ane! general ae!ministration sf the ageneies served and 
invelved in the cendust sf veterans' affairs. The 0oare! geverning the 
veterans' home and lhe su0commitlee §O'o'erning lhe department sf 
'o'elerans' affairs shall cenduol an annual perforR'lance evaluation of !he 
ae!ministrator ane! eommissiener, res13ec!i'o'ely, with !he e'laluation 
presented lo lhe eommil!ee. The 0eard ane! su0eemR'lillee shall create-a-Fl€! 
im13lemenl a strategic plan for the 'o'e!erans' heme and !he department of 
'o'eterans' affairs, res13eolivelydelivery of veterans' services by the 
commissioner. Tho 0eard and lhe su0eemmitleecommittee annually shall 
report as to the status of thEJ res13eeli'o'e strategic plan to the comR'lil!ee . 
After recei•;ing a re13ert, the eommitlee shall su0mit the report le !he 
governor. 
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SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18.1-04 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18.1-04. Committee members notto resei·,e sompensation -
Compensation - Expenses permitted. 

CommitleeVoting members may-Rel receive-af1Y compensation of one hundred 
thirty-five dollars per day for the performance of their official duties. Voting members 
may be reimbursed for travel expenses and meals and lodging expenses in connection 
with their official duties at the same rate and in the same manner as are elected 
officials and employees of the state, •,vith payment to. Payment of compensation and 
expense reimbursement must be made by the department of veterans' affairs and the 
veterans' home to eaeh of their respeetive suesommitlee memeers ineurring the 
eJEpenses. The payment must be made ey warrant sheel\ drawn ey the offiee of 
management and eudget upon the suemission of a proper ·•oueher to it, signed eyupon 
approval of the commissioner of veterans' affairs or the administrator of the veterans' 
home, as the ease may ea." 

Renumber accordingly 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1379: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Rep. Grande, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO NOT PASS (8 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1379 was 
placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and 
enact four new sections to chapter 37-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating 
to governance of the veterans' home; to amend and reenact sections 37-15-03, 
37-15-07, 37-18-07, 37-18-12, 37-18.1-01, 37-18.1-02, 37-18.1-03, and 37-18.1-04 of 
the North Dakota Century Code, relating to county veterans' service officers, 
governance of the veterans' home, the commissioner of the department of veterans' 
affairs, and the administrative committee on veterans' affairs. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 37-15-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-15-03. Government of veterans' home. 

The general supervision and government of the veterans' home is vested in 
the aelminislralive csmmillee on •;elerans' affairsvcterans' home governing board. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 37-15-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-15-07. Administrator of veterans' home -Appointment Q11alifieatiens. 

The appointment, qualifications, term of office, anel salary of !Re aelminislralor 
of !Re •;eterans' Rome mus! IJe as prescrilJeel in section 37 18.1 Q3governor shall 
appoint the administrator. The administrator serves at the pleasure of the governor. 
The aelminislrative commillee on •;elerans' affairsveterans' home governing board 
may designate the administrator as commandant of the veterans' home if the 
administrator is an honorably discharged veteran. 

SECTION 3. Four new sections to chapter 37-15 of the North Dakota Century 
Code are created and enacted as follows: 

Veterans' home governing board - Membership - Appointment. 

1.,_ The governing board for the veterans' home consists of seven voting 
members appointed by the governor. 

2. On August 1, 2011, the governor shall appoint seven members of the 
committee. Of the appointments four members must qualify as a veteran 
under section 37-01-40. The governor shall appoint persons based on 
experience and qualifications. The governor shall appoint three of the 
members to a term of three years two members to a term of two years and 
two members to a term of one year, or until their successors are appointed 
and qualified. 

3. On the first day of August in each year beginning in 2012, the governor 
shall appoint members to fill the expiring terms of committee members. If a 
committee member with an expiring term was appointed as a veteran the 
governor shall appoint a member qualifying as a veteran under section 37-
01-40 . 

4. Beginning in 2012, each appointment must be for a term of three years, or 
until a successor is appointed and qualified. All terms begin on August first 
and end on July thirty-first in the year specified. 
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~ If a position becomes vacant. the governor shall fill the vacancy for the 
unexpired portion of the term in the same manner as the initial appointment. 

Veterans' home governing board - Chairman - Duties - Meetings. 

The governor shall appoint the chairman of the veterans' home governing 
board from among the membership of the board. Meetings of the governing board 
must be held upon the call of the chairman at such times and places as may be 
selected by the chairman, and upon due notice to members by the chairman. 
Meetings must also be called by the chairman upon the written request of any four 
voting members of the board. 

Powers and duties of veterans' home governing board. 

The governing board is responsible for the administration of the veterans' 
home. The governing board has all ordinary powers required of a governing board. 
The governing board shall assure compliance with applicable federal and state laws 
in the administration of the veterans' home. The governing board shall conduct an 
annual performance evaluation of the administrator and create and implement a 
strategic plan for the veterans' home. The governing board annually shall report on 
the status of the strategic plan to the governor and the legislative management. 

Veterans' home governing board - Compensation - Expenses. 

The veterans' home governing board members may receive compensation of 
one hundred thirty-five dollars per day for the performance of their official duties. 
Members may be reimbursed for travel expenses and meals and lodging expenses in 
connection with their official duties at the same rate and in the same manner as are 
elected officials and employees of the state. Payment for compensation and expense 
reimbursement must be made by the veterans' home. The payment must be made 
upon approval of the administrator of the veterans' home. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18-07. Commissioner - Appointment - Qualifications - Term - Salary. 

The al)l)OiAlmeAI, qualificalioAs, term of office, aAa salary of !Re 
commissioAer must be as wescribea iA seclioA 37 18.1 03governor shall appoint the 
commissioner. The commissioner must be a veteran as defined in section 37-01-40 
and shall serve at the pleasure of the governor. The commissioner must be allowed 
such amounts for travel, clerkhire, and expenses as may be prescribed from time to 
time by legislative appropriations. 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18-12 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18-12. Funding authority - Continuing appropriation. 

The department of veterans' affairs may accept and expend funds from any 
source, including federal or private sources, to be used to assist veterans or qualified 
veterans' spouses in obtaining assistance and to pay other expenses authorized by 
law incurred in carrying out programs of benefit and service for resident North Dakota 
veterans as aulRorizea by !Re admiAistrati~e committee oA ·1eteraAs' affairs with the 
approval of the emergency commission. However, all interest earnings from the 
veterans' postwar trust fund received by the department of veterans' affairs from the 
administrative committee on veterans' affairs are appropriated to the department on a 
continuing basis. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18.1-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 
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37-18.1-01. Administrative committee on veterans' affairs - Membership -
Appointment. 

niere is i'lereey orealed an adminislralive oornrnittee on •;elerans' affairs, 
wi'lioi'l, fer purposes of li'lis oi'lapler, mus! i'lereinafter ee referred to as li'le committee. 
Ti'le committee must consist of ti'lree el< olfioio non·,oting memeers anel fifteen •;oling 
memeers. Ti'le aeljulanl general, !Re center elireotor of ti'le veterans' aelminislralion. 
anel !Re eneouli>,e elireotor of joe service Norti'l Dal10la are li'le el< olfioio non•,oting 
memeers WRO si'lall serve in an aelvisory oapaoily lo ti'le committee. On or eefore June 
2G, 1971, IRe American legion, IRe •;eterans of foreign wars, li'le elisaeleel American 
velerans, !Re velerans of Worlel 1/lJar II, Korea, anel Vielnam, (am•,els), anel Vielnam 
velerans of America, inoorporateel, si'lall eaoR prepare a list containing IRe names el 
Sil< persens eiualifying as •;elerans under li'le provisions of seolien 37 01 40, fer 
appeinlmenl as •,sling memeers sf ti'le committee. On er eefere July 1, 1971, ti'le 
ge•;erner si'lall seleol fifteen neminees, ti'lree from eaoi'l list, fi,•e of wi'lem must ee 
appoinleel lo a lerm sf ti'lree years, five of wi'lem mus! ee appeinled ta a lerm of twe 
years, and fi>,•e sf wi'lem mus! ee appeinled to a lerrn sf one year, or until li'leir 
suooessors are appointed and eiualifieel. On or eefere li'le lwenlielR elay of June in 
eaoR year, eeginning in ti'le year 1972, eaoi'l el ti'le aeeve lisled nominaling 
Sf§anii!aliens si'lall suemil a lisl senlaining !Re names sf twe persens wi'le eiualify as 
veterans under li'le previsions sf sestien 37 01 40, le ti'le ge•,erner fer appeinlrnenl er 
reappeinlment as veting memeers sf IRe semrnitlee. On or eefere ti'le first day of July 
in easi'l year, eeginning in ti'le year 1972. li'le geverner si'lall seleol ene nominee frem 
easi'l list, a lelal sf fi>'e nominees, le fill mcpiring terms el •,sting memeers sf ti'le 
semmillee. Easi'l suoi'l appeintmenl must ee fer a term el li'lree years, er until a 
sussesser is appointed and eiualified. All terms eegin en ti'le first day sf July ana ena 
en ti'le ti'lirtieti'l day el June in ti'le year spesifiea. In ease el ttcie inaeility er failure el 
any •,sting memeer sf ti'le semmitlee ta serve, ti'le governor sl'lall appoint anotl'ler 
memeer from a list sf twe persons eiualifying as •;elerans under ti'le provisions of 
sestion 37 01 40, suemitteel ey ti'le nominating ergani2atien represenleel IJy ti'le 
memeer wl'lo was unaele er failed lo serve. Susi'l appointments mus! IJe maele for li'le 
remainder of ti'le unel<pireel term. 

1.,. There is created an administrative committee on veterans' affairs, which for 
the purposes of this chapter, is referred to as the committee. The committee 
consists of nine voting members and three ex officio nonvoting members. 
The nine voting members are members appointed by the governor. The 
adjutant general, director of the department of human services, and the 
executive director of job service North Dakota are ex officio nonvoting 
members of the committee. 

£. On August 1 2011 the governor shall appoint nine members of the 
committee. The governor shall appoint one member each from the 
American legion· the veterans of foreign wars· the disabled American 
veterans: the veterans of world war II, Korea, and Vietnam amvets: and 
Vietnam veterans of America. Each of the remaining four members must 
qualify as a veteran under section 37-01-40. The governor shall appoint 
members based on experience and qualifications while attempting to fairly 
represent the state's veterans' population. Any organization or citizen may 
nominate an individual for appointment to the governor. The governor shall 
appoint three of the members to a term of three years, three of the 
members to a term of two years, and three of the members to a term of one 
year, or until their successors are appointed and qualified. 

J,. On the first day of August in each year beginning in 2012, the governor 
shall appoint members to fill the expiring terms of the committee members 
in the same manner as the initial appointment. 

4. Beginning in 2012, each appointment must be for a term of three years or 
until a successor is appointed and qualified. All terms begin on August first 
and end on July thirty-first in the year specified. 
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5. If a voting member position becomes vacant. the governor shall fill the 
vacancy for the unexpired portion of the term in the same manner as the 
initial appointment. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18.1-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18.1-02. Chairman - SeeFela,y Duties -TeFms Meetings. 

A ohairman and a seorelary of lhe oommitlee rnust Ile appointed lly lhe 
go•;ernor fforn arnong the •;oting rnernllership of the oornrnitlee. Suoh appointrnenl 
rnust Ile rnade annually, with the terrn of olfioe to llegin on the first day of duly of the 
year speoified and to end on lhe lhirtielh day of dune of lhe following year. The 
governor shall appoint the chairman of the committee from the membership of the 
committee. Meetings of the committee must be held upon the call of the chairman, at 
such times and places as may be selected by the chairman, and upon due notice to 
committee members by the seorelarychairman. Meetings must also be called by the 
chairman upon the written request of any fotlfthree voting members of the committee. 
A majority of the members of the committee is required for a quorum, and a majority 
of the members present voting in favor thereof is required for any action. 

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18.1-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18.1-03. Powers and duties of committee CFealion of subeommiltee 
and goYeming boaFII. 

The committee is responsillle for organication, polioy, and general 
adrninislralion of all veterans' affairs in the slate of ~jorth Dakota. II has the following 
powers and duties: 

1. The ohairrnan and seorelary of lhe oornrnitlee, aoling joinlly, shall appoint a 
seven rnernller go•,•erning lloard for adrninislralion of the •;elerans' horne, 
from within or outside the oomrnitlee, sulljeol lo ralifioalion of a majority 
vole of the oomrnitlee, and shall eslalllish term lenglhs for service on the 
governing lloard. The go•;erning lloard has all ordinary powers required of a 
go•;erning lloard, inoluding the power lo eslalllish qualifications for and 
selection of an adminislralor and lo eslalllish an appropriale salary 
slruolure, sulljeol lo lirnilalions of legislati>;e apprnprialion. The 
administrator sep;es at the pleasure of the governing lloard. 

:le The chairman and seoretary of the oommitlee jointly shall appoinl a 
sulloommitlee lo Ile responsillle for supervision and government of the 
department of velerans' affairs. Onoe appointed, a sulloomrnitlee memller 
may oontinue to serve as long as the rnernller remains a voling memller of 
the oornmitlee, unless removed frorn lhe sulloornrnitlee lly join! aolion of the 
oomrnitlee ohairman and seorelary. A rnernller of the sulloommitlee rnay not 
serve on the go,•erning lloard of the •;elerans' horne. Eash nominating 
organication listed in seotion 37 18.1 91 must have al least one ,·cling 
memller nominated lly the organicalion serving on the sulloomrnitlee. The 
sulloornmitlee shall seleol lly rnajority ,·ate of the rnemllers a ohairman to 
preside for lhe term of one year. 

& The oornrnitlee shall appoint lhe cornrnissioner of the departrnenl of 
•;eterans' affairs. The oommissioner musl Ile a Ilona fide resident of the 
state, and rnusl qualify as a veteran as defined in seolion :37 91 49. The 
oommissioner serves al the pleasure of the oommitlee. The oommitlee shall 
determine the salary paid to the commissioner of the department of 
•,•eterans' affairs within the lirnils of legislati•;e approprialion. The 
oommissioner of velerans' affairs shall serve as the eiieouti,•e seorelary for 
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the sulJsommillee. TAe sommissioner has no •;ale in the affairs of \Re 
sulJsommillee. 

4, The committee shall, under resommendalion from !Re IJoard or !Re 
sulJsommillee, present any matters needing attention and action to the 
appropriate board, commission, agency, or department of the stole, and the 
~lortR Dal,ola veterans' soordinaling sounsil. 

eo-2. The committee shall assure somplianse with applisalJle federal and stale 
laws in !Re administration of IJolR IRe department of ¥elerans' affairs and !Re 
~lertR Dal,ela ,•elerans' heme ana SRall mwrsise its respensilJililies in all 
things neeessary lo earry eul the previsiens of this sRapler in regard lo 
organi2alien, peliey, ana general adminislralien ef IRe agensies served and 
invol,•ed in !Re sondusl of veterans' affairs. TRe IJoard go,·erning the 
,·eterans' Rome and !Re sulJeommillee go•;erning !Re department of 
•;eterans' affairs sRall eendusl an annual perlermanee e•,alualion of the 
administrator and eommissioner, respeeli,•ely, wilR !Re evaluation presented 
lo the eommillee. TAe IJoard and sulJsommittee shall create and implement 
a strategic plan for the velernns' home and the department of veterans' 
affairs, respeeli¥elydelivery of veterans' services by the commissioner. The 
IJoard and the sulJeommilleecommittee annually shall report as to the status 
of the respeelive strategic plan to the sommillee. After reseiving a report, 
the eommillee shall sulJmil the report lo the governor. 

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18.1-04 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18.1-04. Committee members net to reseive sempensatien -
Compensation - Expenses permitted . 

GommilleeVoting members may~ receiv&-aRY compensation of one 
hundred thirty-five dollars per day for the performance of their official duties. Voting 
members may be reimbursed for travel expenses and meals and lodging expenses in 
connection with their official duties at the same rate and in the same manner as are 
elected officials and employees of the state, with payment lo. Payment of 
compensation and expense reimbursement must be made by the department of 
veterans' affairs and !Re veterans' home lo eash of their respeelive sulJsommillee 
memlJers ineurring the e,epenses. The payment must be made IJy waFFanl shesl< 
drawn IJy the offise of management and IJudgel upon the sulJmission of a proper 
•,oueher lo ii, signed IJyupon approval of the commissioner of veterans' affairs~ 
administrator of the veterans' home, as !Re ease may Ile." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Testimony for HB 1379 

A+kc_Aw-..-ert,+ I 
ts,~ 

House Government & Veteran's Affairs Committee 

Senator Dick Dever 

Madam Chair, members of the Committee, for the record, I am Dick Dever, Senator from 

District 32 here in Bismarck. 

In May of 1971, I volunteered for the draft because I thought it was the right thing to do. When 

the draft lottery was drawn three months later, I was in Fort Ord, California and my number 

was 353. I graduated from A.LT. in December of that year. The entire class that graduated 

three weeks ahead of me went to Vietnam. About half of the class two weeks ahead of me 

went. None of my class went. That is how fast the shift happened to Vietnamization of the 

war, as they called it. 

I love my country and I am proud of my service. It is for those same reasons that I, and I am 

sure each of you, serves in the Legislature. 

It is for those reasons that every member of the Administrative Committee on Veteran's Affairs 

serves in that capacity. God bless them everyone! 

So, what does this bill do and why is it here? The bill moves responsibility for the appointment 

of the Commissioner of Veteran's Affairs to the Governor. It places oversight of the 

Commissioner under a Board consisting of the State Treasurer, the Secretary of State, and the 

Director of the Department of Human Services. 

Madam Chair, members of the committee, the bill is certainly flawed. I am offering 

amendments to the bill that will replace the entire bill; a hoghouse. 

I would like to walk through the amendments now: 

Section 1 will provide for a new Veterans' Home governing board. 

Section 2 provides that the administrator of the Veteran's Home will be responsible to that 

governing board. 

Section 3 provides that the governing board will be made up of seven members, including at 

least three of whom will be veterans. The members of the board will be appointed based on 

their experience and qualifications. The chairman will be appointed by the Governor. The 

• 



, 

section also provides for meetings of the board and that the members will be compensated for 

their time at $ 135.00 and expenses. 

Section 4 provides that the Commissioner will be appointed by the Governor and must be a 

veteran. 

Section 5 addresses the continuing appropriation that allows for the use of funds from federal 

and private sources. It removes the required authorization by the Administrative Committee. 

Section 6 recreates the Adminstrative Committee on Veteran's Affairs with five veterans plus 

three ex-officio members including the Adjutant General, the Director of the Department of 

Human Services, and the Director Job Services. 

Section 7 provides 0for the appointment of the chair of the committee by the Governor. 

Section 8 addresses the powers and duties of the committee and to develop a strategic plan. 

Section 9 provides that the members of ACOVA will be compensated at$ 135.00 per day and it 

will cover their expenses. 

So, why is the bill here? Madam Chair, members of the committee, I know that some would 

question the motivation of the sponsors and would question our support for veterans. I will tell 

you that it is because of our support for veterans that we put this bill forward. 

Military units at all levels are groups of troops with a single commander and subject to other 

commanders in the chain of command. 

ACOVA is the opposite of that. It is a group of 15 very dedicated, very passionate veterans with 

oversight of the Commissioner, and separately, the Administrator of the Veteran's Home. 

Individually, they each certainly have their heart in the right place. 

The concern that this bill brings is to the nature of a committee in which all 15 independent 

thinkers must come to a unanimous decision in support of legislation and in oversight of the 

Commissioner and of the Administrator. 

My concern was raised during the organizational session of this Legislature when the 

Commissioner was here looking for sponsors of approximately 15 different bills - and he was 

alone. ACOVA had decided to move all those bills forward and then sent him as a paid lobbyist. 

There appears to me to be a question of control. 

One of those bills was to increase the principal in the Veteran's Postwar Trust Fund by$ 15.9 

million without any real justification except to make it a round number of S 20 million. 
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Perhaps the most difficult issue that ACOVA has had to deal with was the dismissal of the 

previous Commissioner. It seems to me that was something better dealt with through the 

Governor's office with their H.R. resources. 

It seems to me that every function of Government should be accountable to someone who is 

accountable to the people. 

You should have a chart that will show how the new structure will work. ACOVA will continue 

to exist with five veteran members and will operate in an advisory role. 

Madam Chair, I believe that ACOVA has played an important role in bringing veterans of 

different organizations together in support of their legislative agenda. That will continue both 

through ACOVA and also through the Coordinating Council that is not affected by this bill. 

Madam Chair, again, we bring this bill in support of veterans. 

When a bill is introduced in the Legislature, it becomes the property of the Legislature, first in 

the chamber that it is introduced and to the committee it is assigned to. 

If you do not see a problem, kill the bill. If you see a need to change the way that we provide 

services to veterans, but you see a better way, then amend the bill. 

Just remember, this is about providing services to veterans. It should not be about who 

controls that process. 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Grande 

February 9, 2011 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1379 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and 
enact four new sections to chapter 37-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
governance of the veterans' home; to amend and reenact sections 37-15-03, 37-15-07, 
37-18-07, 37-18-12, 37-18.1-01, 37-18.1-02, 37-18.1-03, and 37-18.1-04 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to county veterans' service officers, governance of the 
veterans' home, the commissioner of the department of veterans' affairs, and the 
administrative committee on veterans' affairs. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGILATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 37-15-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-15-03. Government of veterans' home. 

The general supervision and government of the veterans' home is vested in the 
administrative committee on veterans' affairsvoterans' home governing board. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 37-15-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-15-07. Administrator of veterans' home -Appointment - Qualifications. 

The appointment, qualifications, term of office, and salary of the administrator of 
the veterans' home must be as prescribed in seetion 37 1 g_1 03this chapter. The 
administrative committee on veterans' affairsveterans' home governing board may 
designate the administrator as commandant of the veterans' home if the administrator 
is an honorably discharged veteran. 

SECTION 3. Four new sections to chapter 37-15 of the North Dakota Century 
Code are created and enacted as follows: 

Veterans' home governing board - Membership - Appointment . 

.1. There is created a governing board for the veterans' home consisting of 
seven voting members appointed by the governor. 

.f.,_ On August 1, 2011, the governor shall appoint seven members of the 
committee. Of the appointments, three members must qualify as a veteran 
under section 37-01-40. The governor shall appoint persons based on 
experience and qualifications. The governor shall appoint three of the 
members to a term of three years, two members to a term of two years, 
and two members to a term of one year, or until their successors are 
appointed and qualified. 

~ On the first day of August in each year beginning in 2012, the governor 
shall appoint members to fill the expiring terms of committee members. If a 
committee member with an expiring term qualifies as a veteran under 
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section 37-01-40, the governor ~-;ha!i <:.1ppoinl ci memt)E::i" quc1litving 8~-~ s 
veteran under section 37-01-40. 

4. Beginning in 2012. each appointment mus\ be for a term of three years. or 
until a successor is appointed and qualified. All terms begin on August first 
and end on July thirty-first in the year specified. 

§.,. l.f..e...Rosition becomes vacant. the governor shall fill the vacancy tor the 
unexpired portion of the term in the same manner as the initial 
appointment. 

Veterans' home governing board - Chairman• Duties - Meetings. 

A chairman of the veterans" home governing board must be appointed by the 
governor from among the membership of the board. Meetings of the governing board 
must be held upon the call of.the chairman. at such times and places as may be 
selected by the chairman. and upon due notice to members by the chairman. Meetings 
must also be called by the chairman upon the written request of any four voting 
members of the board. A majority of the members of the board is required for a 
quorum. 

Powers and duties of veterans' .home governing board. 

The veterans" home governing board has the following powers and duties: 

.1. The governing board is responsible for·the administration of the veterans" 
home. The governing board has all ordinary powers required of a 
governing board. including the power to establish qualifications for and 
selection of an administrator and to establish an appropriate salary 
structure. subject to limitations of legislative appropriations. The 
administrator serves at the pleasure of the governing board. 

2.,_ The governing board shall assure compliance with applicable federal Emel 
state laws in the administration of the veterans" home. The governing 
board shall conduct an annual performance evaluation of the ac1ministra1rn 
and create and implement a strategic plan for the veterans' home. The 
governing board annually shall report on the status of the strategic plan to 
the governor and legislative management. 

Veteriins' home governing'board ·Compensation· Expenses. 

The vetera·ns' home governing board members may receive compensation of 
one hundred thirty-five dollars per day for the performance of their official duties. 
Members may be reimbursed for travel expenses and meals and lodging e)(penses in 
connection with their official duties at the same rate and in the same manner as are 
elected officials and employees of the state. Payment for compensation and expense 
reimbursement must be made by the veterans' home. The payment must be made by 
warrant-check drawn by the office of management and budget upon the submission of 
a paper voucher to it. signed by the administrator of the veterans' home. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 
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37-18-07. Commissioner -Appointment - Qualifications - Term - Salary. 

The appoiRtment, qualifisations, term of offioe, and salary of the sommissioner 
must be as prescribed in section ;,7 1B.1 0elgovernor shall appoint the commissioner. 
The commissioner must be a veteran as defined in section 37-01-40 and shall serve at 
the pleasure of the governor. The commissioner must be allowed such amounts for 
travel, clerkhire, and expenses as may be prescribed from time to time by legislative 
appropriations. 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18-12 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18-12. Funding authority - Continuing appropriation. 

The department of veterans' affairs may accept and expend funds from any 
source, including federal or private sources, to be used to assist veterans or qualified 
veterans' spouses in obtaining assistance and to pay other expenses authorized by law 
incurred in carrying out programs of benefit and service for resident North Dakota 
veterans as authorized by the administrative eommitlee on veterans' affairs with the 
approval of the emergency commission. However, all interest earnings from the 
veterans' postwar trust fund received by the department of veterans' affairs from the 
administrative committee on veterans' affairs are appropriated to the department on a 
continuing basis. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18.1-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18.1-01. Administrative committee on veterans' affairs - Membership -
Appointment. 

There is hereby created an administrati,•o sommittoo on ,•oterans' affairs, which, 
for purposes of this chapter, must hereinafter be referred to as tho sommittoe. Tho 
oommittoo must consist of throe OJ( officio nonvoting members and fifteen voting 
members. Tho adjutant general, tho senior dirootor of tho veterans' administration, and 
the OJ(0outivo dirostor a/job service North Dakota are tho ex officio nonvoting members 
who shall servo in an advisory sapasity to tho committee. On or before June 20, 1971, 
the /\morisan logion, the veterans of foreign wars, the disabled American veterans, tho 
veterans of World War II, Korea, and Vietnam, (amvets), and Vietnam veterans of 
Amerio□, incorporated, shall each prepare a list containing the names of six persons 
qualifying as veterans under tho provisions of section el? 01 10, for appointment as 
voting members of the committee. On or before July : , 1971., the governor shall solos\ 
fifteen nominees, throe from eash list, five of whom must be a ppointod lo a term al 
throe years, five of whom must be appointed lo a term of two years, and five of whom 
must be appointed to a term of one year, or until their sussessors are appointed and 
qualified. On or before tho twentieth day of Juno in each year, beginning in tho year 
1972, each of the above listed nominating organizcations shall submit a list sonlaining 
the names of two persons who qualify as veterans under tho provisions of seslion 
a7 01 10, lo the governor for appointment or reappointment as voting members of the 
oommittoo. On or before tho first day of July in each year, beginning in the year 1972, 
tho governor shall sole st one nominee !ram oaoh list, a total of five nominees, to fill 
OJ(piring terms al voting members of tho sommittee. each such appointment must be 
for a term of three years, or until a suosossor is appointed and qualified. /\II terms begin 
en tho first day of duly and end on tho thirtieth day of June in tho year specified. In 
ease of the inability or failure of any voting member of the sornmiltoe lo serve, tho 
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§8VefF10f-Sha11-Bflfl0ifl1-anetl'le!~fHember--4fem-a-li&l-ei-twe-f(➔fSE>Flfi-(j(l8lilyiflft-clf: 
veler-ans-1c1n00f-!Ae-f}revisi0ns-0f section 37 01 10, su&mitle,I by trio nomiflatin§ 
eicgaFHi!atiefl-fElf>rese~rnembef-Wlm-was-!c!Rable or failed te-servec-&1c1cri 
a13pointments must be made for the remainder of the unm<pirod term . 

.i There is created an administrative committee on veterans' affairs. which for 
the ourposes of this chapter, is referred to as the committee. The 
committee consists of five voting members and three ex officio nonvolinq 
members. The five voting members are members appointed by the 
governor. The adjutant general, director of the department of human 
services, and the executive director of job service North Dakota are ex 
officio nonvoting members of the committee. 

2. On August 1, 2011, the governor shall appoint five members of the 
committee. Each member must qualify as a veteran under section 
37-01-40. The governor shall appoint members based on experience and 
qualifications while attempting to fairly represent the state"s veterans" 
population. Any organization or citizen may nominate an individual for 
appointment to the governor. The governor shall appoint two of the 
members to a term of,three years. two of the members to a term of two 
years. and two of the members to a term of one year. or until their 
successors are appointed and qualified. 

3. On the first day of August in each year beginning in 2012. the governor 
shall appoint members to fill the expiring terms of the committee members 
in the same manner as the.initial appointment. 

4. Beginning in 2012. each appointment must be for a term of three years. or 
until a successor is· appointed and qualified. All terms begin on August firsl 
and end on July thirty-first in the year specified. 

, 
§.,. If a voting member position becomes vacant. the governor shall fill the 

vacancy for the unexpired portion of the term in the same manner as the 
initial appointment. 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18.1-02 of the North Dakota Cenlury 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18.1-02. Chairman - Secretary Duties -+erms--Meetings. 

A chairrnan and a soorelary of-the commi!lee must be a13pointed by the 
~nor from amcing the voting rneffibership of the oommittee. Suoh appointmefl-l 
must be rnade annually, with the torrn of office to begin on the first day of duly of the 
year speoified and to end on_ the thirtieth day of dune of the following year.The governor 
shall appoint the chairman of the committee from the membership of the committee. 
Meetings of the committee must be held upon the call of the chairman, at such times 
and places as may be selected ·by the chairman. and upon due notice to committee 
members by tho secretarychairman. Meetings must also be called by the chairman 
upon the written request of any folmwo voting members of the committee. A majority of 
the members of the committee is required for a quorum. and a majority of the members 
present voting in favor thereof is required for any action. 

SEC,ION 8. AMENDMENT, Section 37-18.1-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 
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37-18.1-03. Powers and duties of committee Creation of m1bsornrnittee 

and governing board . 

The committee is responsible for organi2ation, polioy, and general 
administration of all veterans' affairs in the state of ~lorth Dal,ota. It has the following 
powers and duties: 

1. The ohairman and seoretary of the committee, acting jointly, shall appoint a 
seven member governing board for administration of the veterans' home, 
from within or outside the commit\ee, subject to ratifioation of a majority 
vote of the oommittee, and shall establish term lengths for service on lhe 
governing board. The governing board has all ordinary powers required of 
a governing board, including tho power to establish qualifications for and 
seleotion of an administrator and lo establish an appropriate salary 
structure, subject lo limilalions of legislative appropriation. The 
administrator serves at the pleasure of the governing board. 

~ The chairman and secretary of the committee jointly shall appoint a 
subcommittee to be responsible for supervision and go,•ernment of the 
department of ,•oterans' affairs. Once appointed, a suboommittee member 
may continue to serve as long as the member remains a voling member of 
the committee, unless removed from the subcommittee by joint action of 
the committee chairman and secretary. A member of the subcommittee 
may not serve on the governing board of the veterans' home. Eash 
nominating organi2ation listed in soolion ;37 18.1 01 must have at least one 
voling member nominated by the organi2alion sor·,ing on the 
subcommilleo. The suboommillee shall select by majority vote of the 
members a chairman lo preside for the lerm of one year. 

~ The oommilloe shall appoint lhe commissioner of the department of 
veterans' affairs. The commissioner must be a bona fide resident of the 
state, and must qualify as a veteran as defined in seotion ;J? 01 40. The 
oommissioner serves at the pleasure of the committee. The committee 
shall determine tho salary paid to the commissioner of the department of 
veterans' affairs within the limits of legislative appropriation. The 
oommissioner of veterans' affairs shall serve as the mwcutive secretary for 
the suboommittee. The commissioner has no vote in the affairs of the 
suboommittoe. 

4, The committee shall, under reoommendation from the board or the 
suboommittee, present any matters needing attention and action to the 
appropriate board, commission, agency, or department of the state,-i'¼f\B 
the ~lorth Dal1ota veterans' ooordinaling counoil. 

&c2. The committee shall assure compliance with applioab'.e federal and stale 
laws in the administration of both the department of veterans' affairs and 
the ~lorth Dakota veterans' home and shall exeroise its responsibilities in 
all things neoessary lo sorry out the provisions of this chapter in regard to 
organi2alion, polioy, and general administration of the agenoies served and 
involved in the oondust of veterans' affairs. The board governing the 
veterans' home and the suboommittee governing the department of 
veterans' affairs shall oonduol an annual performanoe e,•aluation of the 
administrator and oommissionor, respootively, with tho evaluation 
presented lo the oommillee. Tho board and suboommittoo shall create aoo 
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ifflj,lemefl-l a strategic plan for the veter-am,'--Reme-amJ-too---9efaFlment-e1 
veternf\S'-a#ajFs,reSf)eelivelydelivery of veterans' services by the, 
commissioner. The beara-ancl-t-Ae-St1bs-emmitteecommittee annually shall 
report.as to the status of the respeotive strategic plan to the 00rr1mittee,· 
After reoeiving a ropof\, the oornmi-ttee-sAAµ-sHbmii-lhe-FepeF\--lB-t-Ae 
governor. 

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18.1-04 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18.1-04. Committee members flat to receive oompensatiof!, 
Compensation - Expenses permitted. 

CommitteeVotinq members may Flel receive 8flY compensation of one hundred 
thirty-five dollars per day for the performance of their official duties. Voting members 
may be reimbursed for travel expenses and meals and lodging expenses in connection 
with their official duties at the same rate and in the same manner as are elected 
officials and employees of the state, with payment to. Payment of compensation and 
expense reimbursement must be made by the department of veterans' affairs-aRE4he 

. veterans' home to eaoh of theino~p_eoUve suboommittee members inourring #le 
m(penses. The.payment n1ust be made by warrant-check drawn by the office of 
management and budget upon.the submission of a proper voucher to it, signed by the 
commiss_ioner of veierans' affairs or the adffiinis-lrntor of the vetorarn41-0me,-a€.the 
ease mqy be." 

Renumber accordingly 
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• Section 1 

Section 2 

Section 3 

Section 4 

Section 5 

Section 7 

Section 8 

Section 9 

• Section 10 

2 February 2011 

BILL SECTION SUMMARY 

Amends Section 37-15-03 to provide that the general supeNision and governance of the Veterans· Home is 
vested in the Veterans' Home Governing Board. 

Amends Section 37-15-07 relating to the administrator of the Veterans' Home to provide that the Veterans' 
Home Governing Board, not the Administrative Committee on Veterans' Affairs, may designate the 
administrator as commandant of the Veterans' Home if the administrator is an honorably discharged veteran. 

Creates four new sections to Chapter 37-15 to: 
• Establish a Veterans' Home Governing Board consisting of seven voting members appointed by the 

Governor. Of the members, three must qualify as veterans under Section 37-01-40. 
• Provide that the Governor is to appoint a chairman of the governing board. 
• Provide that the governing board is responsible for the administration of the Veterans' Home, including 

selecting an administrator, conducting an annual performance evaluation of the administrator, and 
implementing a strategic plan for the Veterans' Home. 

• Provide that the governing board members may receive compensation of $135 per day and 
reimbursement for travel, meals, and lodging expenses. 

Amends Section 37-18-07 to provide that the commissioner of the Department of Veterans' Affairs is to be 
appointed by the Governor. The commissioner must qualify as a veteran as defined in Section 37-01-40 and 
is to serve at the pleasure of the Governor. 

Amends Section 37-18-12 to provide that the Department of Veterans' Affairs may accept and spend funds 
from any source, including federal or private sources, to be used to assist veterans in obtaining assistance 
and to pay other expenses incurred in carrying out programs of benefit and service for veterans with 
approval of the Emergency~ Commission. This section previously required authorization by the 
Administrative Committee on Veterans' Affairs. 

Amends Section 37-18.1-01 to reduce the size of the Administrative Committee on Veterans' Affairs from 15 
individuals to 5 individuals qualifying as veterans under the provisions of Section 37-01-40. 

Amends Section 37-18.1-02 to provide that a member of the Administrative Committee on Veterans' Affairs 
is to serve as the chairman. 

Amends Section 37-18.1-03 to revise the powers and duties of the Administrative Committee on Veterans' 
Affairs to remove supervision of the Department of Veterans' Affairs and the Veterans' Home and to provide 
that the committee is to create a strategic plan for the delivery of veterans' seNices. 

Amends Section 37-18.1-04 to provide that the members of the Administrative Committee on Veterans' 
Affairs may receive compensation of $135 per day and may be reimbursed for travel expenses, including 
meals and lodging expenses, in connection with their official duties with payment made by the Department of 
Veterans' Affairs. 
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11.9153.01000 Prepared by the North Dakota Legislative Council 
staff for Representative Grande 

February 2011 

SUMMARY OF AMENDMENTS (11.0599.02002) 
TO 2011 HOUSE BILL NO. 1379 

This memorandum provides a summary of 
amendments (11.0599.02002 to House Bill No. 1370). 
Major provisions of the bill: 

• Provide that the general supervision and 
governance of the Veterans' Home is vested in 
a Veterans' Home Governing Board, which 
consists of seven members ,appointed by the 
Governor. 

• Provide that the commissioner of the 
Department of Veterans' Affairs be appointed 
by'the·Governor. 

• Provide·that any employee of the Department of 
Veterans' Affairs may not be a conservator for a 

person receiving benefits or services from the 
department. 

• Reduce the size of the Administrative 
Committee on Veterans' Affairs from 
15 individuals to 5 individuals with a member 
appointed chairman by the Governor. 

• Revise the powers and duties of the 
Administrative Committee on Veterans' Affairs 
to remove supervision of the Department of 
Veterans' Affairs and the Veterans' Home and 
to ·provide that the committee is to create a 
strategic plan for the delivery of veterans' 
services in the state. 

PROPOSED ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE 

Appoint 

Commissioner 
(Department of Veterans' Affairs) 

9 
"' ;;; 
"' "' 

Department of Veterans' Affairs 

Governor 

)> 
"C 
"C 
0 

a 

Administrative Committee on 
Veterans' Affairs (5) 

Five individuals qualifying as 
veterans under North Dakota 

Century Code Section 37-01-40 

Appoint 

Veterans' Home Governing Board (7) 
Three individuals qualifying as veterans 

under Section 37-01-40 
Four other individuals 

)> 
"C 
"C 
0 

a 
Administrator (Veterans' Home) 

9 
"' ;;; 
"' "' 

Veterans' Home 



• 

• 

TESTIMONY ON HB 1379 
GOVERNMENT & VETERANS AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

LYLE SCHUCHARD, CHAIRPERSON 
ND AMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE ON VETERANS' AFFAIRS 

February 10, 2011 

GOOD MORNING MADAM CHAIRMAN GRANDE AND COMMITTEE 
MEMBERS. I AM LYLE SCHUCHARD, CHAIRMAN OF THE 
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE ON VETERAN'S AFFAIRS. 

I WILL GIVE YOU A BRIEF OVERVIEW OF HOW THE ACOVA WORKS 
AND WHY WE THINK IT SHOULD NOT BE CHANGED OR REPLACED. 

THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE ON VETERANS' AFFAIRS IS A 15 
MEMBER COMMITTEE APPOINTED BY THE GOVERNOR FROM 
NAMES SUBMITTED BY EACH OF THE STATE'S 5 MAJOR VETERANS 
ORGANIZATAIONS. THE FIVE ARE THE AMERICAN LEGION, 
DISABLED AMERICAN VETERANS, (DAV), VETERANS OF FOREIGN 
WARS (VFW), VIETNAM VETERANS OF AMERICA (WA), AND THE 
AMERICAN VETERANS (AMVETS). WE ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR 
OVERSEEING THE OPERATIONS OF THE NORTH DAKOTA 
DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS, VETERANS HOME, PWTF 
REQUESTS AND PROGRAMS, STAND DOWNS, AND 
TRANSPORTATION. FROM ND CC 37-18.1-03. THE COMMITTEE IS 
RESPONSIBLE FOR ORGANIZATION, POLICY, AND GENERAL 
ADMINISTRATION OF ALL VETERANS' AFFAIRS IN THE STATE OF 
NORTH DAKOTA. 

THE COMMISSIONER OF VETERANS AFFAIRS IS ACCOUNTABLE TO 
THE ACOVA AND IS ALSO ACCOUNTABLE TO THE VETERANS AND 
THE GOVERNOR. THE DEPARTMENT OF VETERAN'S AFFAIRS IS 
AUDITED EVERY BIENNIUM TO INCLUDE THE GRANT AND LOAN 
PROGRAMS. 

THERE ARE THREE EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS OF THE ACOVA AND THEY 
ARE: THE ND ADJUTANT GENERAL, DIRECTOR OF THE VA MEDICAL 
CENTER, AND THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF JOB SERVICE ND. 

1 
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THESE EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS, ORA MEMBER OF THEIR STAFF, BRIEF 
THE ACOVA AT OUR QUARTERLY MEETINGS THE ND TREASURERS 
OFFICE NORMALLY PROVIDES REPORTS AND INFORMATION TO THE 
ACOVA AT THEIR QUARTERLY MEETINGS UPON REQUEST THE 
ATTORNEY GENERALS OFFICE IS REPRESENTED AT THE ACOVA 
MEETINGS TO PROVIDE ADVICE AS NEEDED. 

THERE ARE FIVE SUB-COMMITTEES SET UP WITHIN THE ACOVA, 
THEY ARE: 

1. DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS - FIVE MEMBERS 
RESONSIBLE FOR THE SUPERVISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF 
VETERANS' AFFAIRS. 

2. BUi;?~ .. ~T·c;:efqryJIJJEE - SI~ IYl~MBERS 
MOt:JITORTHEDEPAR"J"MENT'S BUDGET AND REVIEW BIENNIUM 
· s'C]oGEJ REou·~s+s. · 

3 .. POST ,WA~ JRLJST FUND COMMITTEE - SIX MEMBERS 
REVIEWAND:>MAKE RECOMI\/IENDATIONS TO THE FULL 

·- . ~ ·. ' 

COMMIT:JiE1E ON REQUESTS 'FROM ENTITIES WISHING TO USE 
THE PWTF INTEREST EARNINGS FOR PROJECTS BENEFITTING 
ND VETERANS AND THEIR DEPENDENTS. 

4. APPEALS - SIX MEMBERS 
THE DEPARTMENT'S DECISIONS ON FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
PROGRAMS ARE APPEALABLE TO THE APPEALS COMMITTEE. 
THE DECISION OF THE APPEALS COMMITTEE IS FINAL. 

5. LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE - FIVE MEMBERS 
RESEARCHES AND MAKES RECOMMENDATIONS FOR 
LEGISLATION ON ISSUES THAT IMPACT VETERANS AND THEIR 
DEPENDENTS. 

THE SUB-COMMITTEES MEET THE NIGHT BEFORE AND THE MORNING 
OF THE FULL ACOVA MEETING AND CONDUCT THEIR BUSINESS AND 
PREPARE THEIR PRESENTATIONS FOR THE FULL ACOVA. SUB
COMMITTEES MUST KEEP MINUTES OF THEIR MEETINGS THAT ARE 
KEPT ON FILE IN THE COMMISSIONERS OFFICE. 
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THE ACOVA HAS A STRATEGIC BUSINESS PLAN (SBP) THAT IS 
UPDATED ON A QUARTERLY BASIS AND REVISED ON AN ANNUAL 
BASIS. 

THE EXPERTISE OF THE MEMBERS ON THE ACOVA IS EXTENSIVE AND 
THEY COME FROM A WIDE RANGE OF CAREER BACKGROUNDS, FOR 
EXAMPLE: THREE ARE CVSO, THERE IS A OPERATIONS & TRAINING 
OFFICER FOR THE ND NATIONAL GUARD, CENTRAL OFFICE MANAGER 
FOR A COMMUNICATIONS/TELEPHONE COMPANY, MANAGER OF GRAIN 
ELEVATORS AND LUMBER YARD, ELEMENTARY/MIDDLE SCHOOL 
PRINCIPAL, NG RETENTION/RECRUITING NCOIC, ND RETIRED COMMAND 
SERGEANT MAJOR, SPECIAL EDUCATION DIRECTOR, ATTORNEY 
SPECIALIZING IN VETERANS LAW AND ACCREDITED BEFORE THE 
DEPARTMENT OF VETERAN AFFAIRS AS AN ATTORNEY ADVOCATE, AND 
WAS ADMITTED TO THE BAR FOR THE COURT OF APPEALS FOR 
VETERAN CLAIMS IN WASHINGTON, D.C., A RETIRED BUSINESS 
OPERATIONS MANAGER FOR THE DOT, A MAINTENANCE SECTION 
SUPERVISOR FOR THE DOT, AND A CHIEF NURSE WITH 22 YEARS IN THE 
ARMY RESERVE WHO SERVED OVER FOUR YEARS ON ACTIVE DUTY. 
MANY ACOVA MEMBERS HAVE 20 TO 30 YEARS EXPERIENCE AS 
VETERANS OR WORKING WITH VETERANS. 

THE ACOVA HAS ALWAYS ASKED FOR ASISTANCE FROM ND HUMAN 
RESOURCE MANAGEMENT SERVICES WHEN PERSONNEL MATTERS 
NEED TO BE ADDRESSED. FOR EXAMPLE THEY WERE USED WHEN: THE 
ND COMMISSIONER OF VETERANS AFFAIR WAS RELIEVED OF HIS 
DUTIES, IN THE HIRING OF THE COMMISSIONER OF VETEANS AFFAIRS 
(AT WILL APPOINTMENT), AND WHEN THE AMINISTRATOR OF THE 
SOLDIERS HOME IN LISBON WAS HIRED. THE ACOVA WORKED HAND IN 
HAND WITH HUMAN SERVICES TO PROPERLY MAKE DECISIONS IN THE 
HUMAN RESOURCE AREA. I PERSONALLY HAVE OVER TWENTY FIVE 
YEARS OF HUMAN RESOURCES EXPERIENCE AND I AM COMFORTABLE 
WORKING IN THAT AREA. 
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THERE ARE CONCERNS THAT A FIFTEEN MEMBER ACOVA IS TOO 
LARGE AND THE NUMBER OF COMMITTEE MEMBERS SHOULD BE 
REDUCED. THE ACOVA RECEIVES INPUT FROM VETERANS ON A 
STATE WIDE BASIS. IT COMES FROM VETERAN'S LOCAL POST 
COMMANDERS, TO THE REGIONAL OR DISTRICT MEETINGS, AND 
THEN TO THE STATE CONFERENCES WHERE THEIR CONCERNS ARE 
ADDRESSED. ACOVA MEMBERS ARE MEMBERS OF THESE 
ORGANIZATIONS AND ,GET THE VETERANS NEEDS FIRST HAND. 
ACOVA MEMBERS BRING THIS INPUT FROM THEIR RESPECTIVE 
AREAS /\ND VETERANS ORGANIZATIONS TO OUR QUARTERLY 
MEETINGS. JO REDWCE THE,'NUIVIBER OF MEMBERS WOULD IN TURN 
REDUCE THE VALUABLE INPllJT THEY PRESENTLY BRING TO US. THIS 
SYSTEMVVGRKS.AND 00ES'NOTNEED TO BE CHANGED. ,,.., • -j 

A FIFTEEN MEMBER COMMITTEE IS NOT UNUSUAL FOR STATE 
COMMITTEES. A LIST THAT I HAVE HERE LISTS THE GOVERNORS 
BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OF SIMILAR OR LARGER SIZE THAN 
ACQVA AND OF THE FORTY ONE LISTED, SEVENTEEN ARE LARGER 
THAN :n,IE ACOVA. 

ONE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN,OTHER COMMITTEES AND ACOVA MEMBERS 
IS THAT WE DO NOT RECEIVE COMPENSATION FOR THE PERFORMANCE 
OF OUR OFFICIAL DUTIES. VOTING MEMBERS MAY BE REIMBURSED FOR 
TRAVEL EXPENSES AND MEALS AND LODGING EXPENSES IN 
CONNECTION WITH THEIR OFFICIAL DUTIES. BY CHOICE WE DO NOT GET 
THE DAILY STIPEND AS MOST OTHER COMMITTEES DO. IF YOU WANT TO 
BE A MEMBER OF THE ACOVA AND BE AN ADVOCATE FOR VETERANS 
AFFAIRS AND WORK FOR VETERANS AND THEIR FAMILIES IT WILL TRULY 
BE A VOLUNTARY COMMITMENT. 

AS CHAIRMAN OF THE ACOVA I MEET WITH A MEMBER OF THE 
GOVERNORS STAFF AT LEAST MONTHLY AND GIVE A BRIEFING ON 
ACOVA ACTIVITIES. I ALSO SUBMIT AN ANNUAL REPORT TO THE 

4 
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COMMANDERS AND ADJUTANTS OF EACH VETERAN'S ORGANIZATION 
REPRESENTED ON THE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE. 

THE SEVEN MEMBER GOVERNING BOARD FOR THE NORTH 
DAKOTA VETERANS HOME IS ALSO APPOINTED BY THE ACOVA 
CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY. PRESENTLY ON THE BOARD ARE: 
JOHN ADOLF, DARYL SCHROEDER, DEAN OVERBY, DUWAYNE 
TERNES, LEE FINSTAD, DARYL BEARD, AND NORRIS BRAATEN. MR. 
BRAATEN ALSO SERVES AS THE CHAIRMAN OF THE GOVERNING 
BOARD. 

IN SUMMARY I WILL JUST SAY THAT THE ACOVA IS TRULY A 
COMMITTEE THAT GOES ABOUT ITS WORK OF PROVIDING 
SUPPORT AND SERVICES TO VETERANS AND THEIR FAMILIES IN A 
VERYPROFESSIONAL MANNER. 

AS WE HAVE HEARD NO COMPLAINTS ABOUT OUR OPERATING 
PROCEDURES OR POLICIES, WE SEE NO REASON TO CHANGE A 
COMMITTEE THAT IS PERFORMING IN AN EXEMPLARY MANNER 
AND ASK THAT IT BE LEFT AS IS SO WE CAN CONTINUE TO 
PROVIDE SERVICES TO VETERANS AS PROVIDED BY LAW. 

THE FIFTEEN MEMBER ACOVA HAS VOTED UNANIMOUSLY TO NOT 
SUPPORT HB 1379 AND I RESPECTIFULLY ASK THAT THE 
COMMITTEE VOTE NO ON THIS BILL SO WE CAN PUT THIS ISSUE 
BEHIND US AND HOPEFULLY NOT HAVE TO ADDRESS IT AGAIN. 

I WILL TRY TO ANSWER ANY QUESTIONS YOU MAY HAVE. 

THANK YOU FOR ALLOWING ME TO TESTIFY TODAY. 

TESTIMONYONHB1739 

5 
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Testimony on House Bill 1379 

House Government and Veterans Affairs 

February 10, 2011 

Good Morning Madam Chair and members of the committee. 

My Name is Daryl Beard. 

I was appointed to the Administrative Committee on Veterans Affairs from 2001- 2006 and on 

the North Dakota Veterans Home sub-committee in 2002. 

In 2003 this sub-committee became the Veterans Home Governing Board of which I still serve. 

I take this job seriously as well as the other board members. 

I am very much a Veterans Advocate, as some veterans cannot speak for themselves. Having 

board meeting outside of Lisbon does not give the residents a chance for their voices to be 

heard. With the mental heath and addiction issues I do not think this wise. 

In 2005 I asked my wife who has worked in the field of mental health and is a social worker 

about getting a social worker to be part of the Governing Board in an advisory capacity. She 

said that no licensed professional would agree to that as they would not have a say in the 

outcome. 

I was not on the Administrative Committee of Veterans Affairs when the commissioner was 

dismissed but I cannot think the committee was not using the Human Resource Department as 

Senator Dever and Representative Grande's letter infers. 

This bill HB 1379 has two elected and one appointed offices over all Veteran Affairs and the 

Veterans Home. One of the reasons the Administrative Committee of Veterans Affairs consists 

of 15 members was to keep politics out of the process. 

I mentioned in previous testimony of addition dollars being secured for the home, I was told by 

an individual that worked with Medicaid that would not happen. This is the agency that is being 

proposed for the oversight of the Veterans Home. 

I am not in favor of HB 1379. 

This concludes my testimony and I will be glad to answer any questions this committee has. 
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TESTIMONY ON HB 1379 - ND VETERANS COORDINATING 
COUNCIL. 

A veteran is an individual that has signed a blank check in the amount 
of and up to including his or her life for their country. Good morning, 
my name is John L. Jacobsen. I am the Chairman of the Legislative 
Committee of the North Dakota Veterans Coordinating Council. I am 
also a member of the American Legion and the Veterans of Foreign 
Wars. 

I served in the North Dakota National Guard and the US Army Reserve 
for a total of 30 years. I retired in 1995 as a Colonel. I was mobilized 
for Active Duty in 1991 during Operation Desert Shield/Desert Storm. 
Like all mobilizations, I left my home and family to serve in the Persian 
Gulf, stationed in the United Arab Emirates. 

The Coordinating Council is made up of 15 members, 3 from each of the 
five Veterans Organizations in North Dakota: 

• American Legion 
• AMVETS 
• Disabled American Veterans 
• Veterans of Foreign Wars 
• Vietnam Veterans of America 

It is the policy of the Coordinating Council to support legislation that 
will benefit the welfare of the members of the Armed Forces. The 
committee MUST concur totally, that is all 15 members must agree on 
the legislation to be supported or else it does not get the support. 

In this case, I have been instructed to recommend to this legislative 
committee that a "DO NOT PASS" on HB 1379 is supported by the 
entire membership of the Veterans Coordinating Council. 
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Madame Chairperson, Distinguished members of the Committee, My 

name is Larry Vetter. I am the State Commander of the North Dakota 

American Legion, representing over 28,000 members of the Legion 

Family. 

The American Legion Department Executive Committee at its Winter 

Conference in Minot North Dakota held on February 4 thru 6, 2011 

passed a resolution opposing HB 1379. The resolution is as follows: 

HB 1379 RESOLUTION 

A Bill relating to the Administrative Committee on Veterans' Affairs 

Whereas, House Bill 1379 has been introduced by Representative 

Grande and Senator Dever to drastically change the Administrative 

Committee on Veterans' Affairs (ACOVA); and 

Whereas, Currently, The American Legion, the VFW, AMVETS, DAV and 

Vietnam Veterans of America each have three representatives on 

ACOVA; and 

Whereas, According to existing North Dakota Century Code Section 37-

18.1-03: ACOVA is responsible for organization, policy, and general 

administration of all veterans' affairs in the state of North Dakota; 

appoints a seven member board for administration of the Veterans' 

home; appoints a subcommittee to be responsible for supervision and 

government of the ND Department of Veterans' Affairs and appoints 

The Commissioner of the Department of Veterans Affairs; and has 

oversight responsibilities on the Post War Trust Fund; and 
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Whereas, House Bill 1379 eliminates the fifteen veterans on the 

Administrative Committee on Veterans' Affairs and replaces them with 

three state government officials: the State Treasurer (chair of the 

committee); the Director of Human Services; and the Secretary of State; 

and three non-voting (ex officio) members serving in an advisory 

capacity the: Executive Director of Job Service North Dakota, The 

Center Director of the Veterans' Administration and the Adjutant 

General, therefore be it 

Resolved, by the Department of North Dakota, meeting in Winter 

Conference in Minot, North Dakota, February 4-6, 2011 that the 

American Legion, Department of North Dakota, representing over 

28,000 members of the "Legion Family", is adamantly opposed to this 

bill because the Veterans who have served their Country feel Veterans 

should have input on issues affecting Veterans; Eliminating Veterans 

from the Administrative Committee to replace them with state 

officials is a serious blow to veteran input and involvement in 

providing services to The Veterans of North Dakota, and 

Be it further Resolved, that The Department of North Dakota urges 

rejection of HB 1379 in its entirety. 

In closing let me say that it is very important to have Veterans speaking 

for and representing other Veterans, who better to understand and 

relay to our State the needs of the Veteran than a Veteran. 

THANK YOU. 
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37-01-40. Veteran and wartime veteran defined - Uniform service dates for wartime 
eterans. 
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1. A "veteran" is an individual who has served on continuous federalized active military 
duty for one hundred eighty days or the full period for which the individual was called 
or ordered to active military duty for reasons other than training, and who was 
discharged or released under other than dishonorable conditions. A discharge 
reflecting "expiration of term of service" or "completion of required service" or words 
to that effect qualifies the shorter term of service as making the individual a veteran. 

2. A "wartime veteran" is an individual who served in the active military forces, during a 
period of armed conflict or who received the armed forces expeditionary or other 
campaign service medal during an emergency condition and who was discharged or 
released under other than dishonorable conditions. "Wartime veteran" also includes 
an individual who died in the line of duty in the active military forces, as determined 
by the armed forces. 

3. 

4. 

Period of service dates for a wartime veteran begins with the date of any declaration 
of war by the Congress of the United States or presidential proclamation beg inning 
hostilities or the beginning of an emergency condition recognized by the issuance of 
a presidential proclamation or a presidential executive order and in which the armed 
forces expeditionary medal or other campaign service medals are awarded 
according to presidential executive order and ending on a date prescribed by 
presidential proclamation or concurrent resolution of the Congress of the United 
States and dates determined by the United States department of defense . 

Current uniform period of service dates for periods of armed conflict include 

a. The period beginning December 7, 1941, through December 31, 1946, known 
as world war II; 

b. The period beginning June 27, 1950, through January 31, 1955, known as the 
Korean war; 

c. The period beginning August 5, 1964, through May 7, 1975, known as the 
Vietnam war; 

d. The period beginning August 2, 1990, through January 2, 1992, known as the 
gulf war; and 

e. The period beginning September 11, 2001, and ending on a date prescribed by 
presidential proclamation or by Congress as the last day of operation Iraqi 
freedom or operation enduring freedom, whichever occurs later. 

5. The department of veterans' affairs shall maintain a list of all period of service 
dates for emergency conditions in which the armed forces expeditionary medal 
has been awarded . 
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Estimating Future Grant Benefit Needs for North Dakota Veterans 

Study Summary 

The North Dakota Department of Veterans Affairs (DVA) manages a series of programs to 
provide benefits for veterans. One of the programs managed by DV A, and the subject of this 
study, is the hardship grant program, which is funded by the income generated from the Veterans 
Postwar Trust Fund (VPWTF). North Dakota State Treasurer Kelly Schmidt is the trustee of the 
VPWTF, and in order to determine the amount of income that the VPWTF would have to 
provide to the grant program over the next 10 years, she commissioned this study. 

In order to determine the future use of provided benefits, it was necessary to analyze the past use 
of the grant program in combination with the current and future veteran population in North 
Dakota. 

Population: 
• An estimated 55,768 veterans lived in North Dakota according to the 2006-2008 

American Community Survey (ACS). 
• That population is estimated to decrease 1 % on an annual basis through 2030 

mostly due to a higher number of deaths than the number of new veterans (1 % 
of 55,768=557.68 per year.) 

- Grant Program: 

Grant benefits, coverage levels, and eligibility criteria are all set at ACOV A's discretion. 
Currently, the grant program is used to cover unmet medical based needs. Dental, optical, 
hearing aids, dentures are all covered under current ACOV A policy. There is also a "special" 
category that is used at the commissioner's discretion. The Table below shows the grants 
available and the coverage level over time. 

years category limit annual cap 
hearing $ 500 ( 4 yrs. Interval) 
optical $ 300 (2 vrs. interval) $ 1,500 

1993-2006 dental $ 1,000 (one per calendar yr.) (per calendar year 
$ 1,000 /per applicant) 

special (Commissioner's Discretion) 
hearing $ 1,500 ( 4 yrs. interval) 
denture $ 3,000 (2 yrs. Interval) 

$ 1,500 
dental $ 1,000 (one per calendar yr.) 

2007-2009 
$ 1,000 

(per calendar year 

special (Commissioner's Discretion) 
/per applicant) 

optical $ 300 (2 yrs. interval) 
hearing $ 1,500 ( 4 yrs. interval) 
dental $ 1,000 (one per calendar yr.) $ 1.500 

2010+ $ 1,000 (per calendar year 
special (Commissioner's Discretion) /per applicant) 
optical $ 300 (2 vrs. interval) 



• For the purpose of this study, traumatic brain injury (TB!) benefits were considered. However, 
the data specific to North Dakota does not show a need for benefits related to TBI at this time. 

Usage of grant funds: 

The largest group of beneficiaries of these grants is the group representing single men 55 and 
older. Overall, the usage of.this program shows the following: 

• 1493 people were approved for grants from 1993 to 2010 ( 18 year period) 
• Out of the 1493 approved applicants, 963 people actually had grants paid (over 18 years 

= 53.5 people a year= .0009593 of the veteran population, or just less than 1/10 of 1 % ) 
• The grant program is generally used as a short-term benefit. However, there are a few 

individuals who have used the program as many as 18 times. 
o 82% of people applied 1-3 times 
o 16% of people submitted 4-6 applications 
o 2% of the beneficiaries submitted anywhere from 10-18 applications 

• Many approved grants are never used. 
o Of the 1493 people approved for grants, 530 (35%) people received no payments 

DVA data showing total usage of these benefits is questionable. Because of a series of data 
flaws, DVA and the analysts limited much of their analysis to years 2003-2009, a period which 
they felt was most accurate. The usage of the grant program over that time is shown in the table 
below. 

Age 
dental dentures hearing optical special 

Group 

18-34 6 0 0 5 I 

35-54 217 22 I 140 6 
55-64 215 31 2 104 16 

65-74 106 13 15 85 10 

75+ 142 19 42 98 2 

Eligibility 

ACOV A sets the eligibility criteria for the grant program. Currently, the eligibility is based on 
household size and income level. ACOV A has set the income thresholds higher than the 
Department of Human Services poverty guidelines. At a household size of one, ACOV A's range 
is $4,000 higher than DHS, but the discrepancy levels as the household size grows. By the 
highest level of household, seven, ACOVA's guidelines are $800 below DHS. (See Tables 3 and 
4 in full report). 

Projections: 

An assumed rate of increase in the population of ND veterans was found to be 3%. Additionally, 
a 3% rate of inflation was used for the benefit costs, which is reflected in the following table. 



• Projection of Benefit Needs for Veteran's Population in North Da_kota 

Category 7/1/09-6/30/11 7/1/11-6/30/13 7/1/13-6/30/15 7 /1 /15-6/30/17 7/1/17-6/30/19 7/1/19-6/30/21 

'(1)'DENTAL 

'.amt.paid $ 104,845 $ 111,230 $ 118,004 s 228,161 $ 242,056 $ 256,798 

- count 209 215 222 228 235 242 

'(2);DE_NTU_~E ._,·:,._: 
;$ - amtpaid $ 15,000 .154;5_00 $ 1s4;500· $ : 175,000 $i 180,250 $ 185,658 

- count 10 100 100 '·, 100 100 100 

'(3) HEAR ING 

- amt. paid $ 25,206 s 26,741 $ 28,369 $ 30,097 $ 31,930 $ 33,875 

- count 20 21 21 22 23 23 

'(4) OPTICAL 

- amt. paid $ 29,631 $ 31,436 $ 33,350 s 71,792 $ 76,164 $ 80,803 

- count 131 135 139 144 148 152 
'(5) SPECIAL 

- amt. paid $ 5,000 $ 5,305 $ 5,628 $ 10,927 $ 11,593 $ 12,299 

- count 10 10 11 11 11 12 

Total (1)-(5) $ 179,682 $ 329,211 $ 339,851 $ 515,978 $ 541,994 $ 569,431 

• 
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Estimating Future Grant Benefit 
Needs for North Dakota Veterans 

Spring 2011 

This study was commissioned by North Dakota State Treasurer 
Kelly Schmidt for the purposes providing an actuarial assessment 
of the future benefit need for veterans served through a hardship 

grant program managed by the ND Department of Veterans Affairs 
at the direction of the Administrative Committee on Veterans Affairs 

(ACOVA). The hardship grant program is funded by the income 
generated from the Veterans Postwar Trust Fund, for which the 

Treasurer serves as trustee. This study was completed by Tatjana 
Miljkovic and Reuben Tschritter . 
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Overview of presentation 

• National Projections 

• North Dakota Department of Veterans Affairs 
(ND DVA) 

• Analysis of ND DV A Data 

• Projections 

• Conclusion 
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National Projections- U.S. Department 
of Veterans Affairs 

• The U.S. Department of Ve_terans Affairs (DVA) project~d about 
57,703 living veterans in North Dakota as of 09/30/2008 

• Estimated decrease of l % on annual basis through 2030 mostly 
due to a higher number of deaths than the number of new veterans 

• The number of living veterans for the next year is calculated based 
on an iterative process: 

the count for the current year 

- the number of deaths 

+ new veterans (separated from active duty) 

+/- adjustment for state net migration 

= the estimated count for the next year 

4 
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National Projections-ACS 

• Estimated 55,768 veterans live in North Dakota according to the 
2006-2008 American Community Survey (ACS) 

• Veterans represent 11.4% of the total population of North Dakota 

• The total number of veterans has fallen by 9.1 % comparing to the 
2000 Census Report mostly due to mortality of those who served in 
World War II 

• Count of World War II veterans declined by 49% from 12,150 
reported in Census 2000 to 6,190 in 2006-2008 ACS 

• Count of Korea War veterans declined by 21 % since 2000 

• Count of Vietnam War veterans declined by 8.6% since 2000 

• Gulf War Veterans are the only group whose number has increased 
in past 20 years 

5 

ND Veterans by Age and 
"' so.ooo . Gender 
C: 
~ Qi 40.000 ..., Sll males 

· • 55,768 living veterans per ACS'08 
Qi > 30.000 females 

• 51,50 l males & 4,267 females .... 
0 ... 20.000 

• Males represent 92.3% 
Qi 

.&l 
E 

• Female represent 7.7% 
10,000 

::, 
z 

0 ~ 

18-34 35.54 55-64 65-74 75+ 

Age group 

Total 

• 55-64 age group has the largest 'c: 
share -26.3% ~ ... 

• 64%veterans are older than 55 ~ 
• % female veterans is increasing 

for younger age 
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Veterans' programs under the administration of the 
ND Department of Veterans Affairs 

• Under the supervision of the Administrative Committee of Veterans 
Affairs (ACOY A), DY A administers the following: 

- Housing benefits - veterans home 
- Educational benefits - tuition waiver 
- Veterans' Bonus - Monetary compensation for mobilized 

domestic and foreign service 
- Property Tax exemption- for certain disabled veterans 
- Other State Benefits - license plates , transportation, state park 

admissions 
- Financial Assistance Benefits0 hardship grant and loan program 

• Income from the Postwar Trust Fund pays for the hardship 
grant program, and those benefits are the focus of this study. 

7 

Hardship Grant Program Overview 

• The hardship grant program is funded by income from the 
Veterans Postwar Trust Fund. The State Treasurer is the trustee 
of the Veterans Postwar Trust Fund, and all income produced by 
the fund is to be paid to the DY A for programs benefiting 
veterans. 

• ACOV A determines what benefits the fund will address and 
determines the level of coverage and criteria for each benefit. 

• The current benefits, as determined by ACOV A, are categorized 
as follows: 

- dental 
- denture 
- hearing 
- optical 
- special 

8 
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Grant category and limits, by time period 

vears cate!'ory 

hearing 

optical 

1993-2006 dental 

. 
special 

hearing 

denture 

2007-2009 dental 

special 

optical 

hearing 

dental 
2010+ 

special 

optical 

limit 

$ 500 ( 4 yrs. Interval) 

$ 300 (2 yrs. interval) 

$1,000 (one.per calendar vr.) 

$ 1,000 

(Commissioner's Discretion) 

· $1,500 (4 yrs. interval) 

$3,000 (2 yrs. Interval) 

$ 1,000 ( one per calendar yr.) 

$ 1,000 

(Commissioner's Discretion) 

$ 300 (2 yrs. interval) 

$ 1,500 ( 4 yrs. interval) 

$ 1,000 (one per calendar vr.) 

$ 1,000 

(Commissioner's Discretion) 

$ 300 (2 yrs. interval) 

· arinual- cap 

!. )/;{_. . . ·. 
1'.sOo 

(percalendar year 

. /t,erapplicant) 

$1,500 

(per calendar year 

/per applicant) 

Current eligibility criteria, as determined by ACOV A 

• Veterans and their family members must be North Dakota 
Residents 

• Must meet certain income level and the family size requirements 
Household Size I 2 3 4 5 6 
Annual Income 

7 

Level $ 14,400 $ 16,800 $ 19,200 $ 21,600 $ 25,200 $ 28,800 $ 31,200 
• The 2007 household size and income level requirements set by ACOV A 

Household Size I 2 3 4 5 6 7 
Annual Income 
Level $ I 0,400 $ 14,000 $ 17,600 $ 21,200 $ 24,800 $ 28,400 $ 32.000 

• For comparison, the 2008 income threshold by family size, reported by the Department of Health and 
Human Services (HHS), for 48 contiguous states 

10 
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U11used Grants 

• An approved applicant is given 90 days from the approval date to 
use the grant 

• 1,588 ( 44.6%) of approved grant applicants (years: 1993 to mid-
2010) have not used the grant 

• More than 50% of the amount approved for grants has not been 
spent 

• Years 1998-2002 reported the largest number of unused 
applications 

11 

Grant dollars expended since 1993 

Category Amount approved for Amount paid for Difference 

e:rants annroved grants ' 
Dental $1,009,261 $440,285; 

_,,, . 
, ·_1,- .•,. $568,976 

Dentures $306,623 $183,212 $123,411 

Optical $300,381 $151,187 $149,193 

Hearing $164,656 $90,984 $73,672 

Special $40,113 $16,040 $24,073 

Transportation $13,902 $7,530 $6,372 

Housing $5,178 $2,660 $2,518 

Deposit Assist. $500 $320 $180 

Total $] ,840,614 $892,218 $948,396 

12 
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Grant dollars spent by fiscal year 
App. Year Amt aooroved for grants($) Amt used($) Difference ($) 

7 /1/93-6/30/94 63,579 1,000 i62,579 

7 /1/94-6/30/95 61,65 I 46,151 15,500 

7 /1/95-6/30/96 49,464 46,503 . 2;962 

7 /1/96-6/30/97 65,286 64,797 488 

7 /1/97-6/30/98 108,081 53,037 · 55,044 

7 /1/9.8-6/30/99 110,058 250 109,808 

7 /1/99-6/30/00 145,938 3,100 · · 142,838 

7 /1/00-6/30/01 48,147 4,259 43,888 

7/1/01-6/30/02 89,267 5,081 84,186 

7 /1/02-6/30/03 94,521 40,393 54,128 

7 /1/03-6/30/04 109,066 67,368. . · 41698 , . 

7 /1/04-6/30/05 101,419 70,785 30,634 

7/1/05-6/30/06 93,750 62,366 •, 31,384 

7 /1/06-6/30/07 152,350 90,323 62,027 

7 /1/07-6/30/08 277,283 178,300 . 98,983 

7 /1/08-6/30/09 221,303 126,265 95,038 

7 /1/09-6/30/10 49,450 32.240 17,210 

Total 1,840,614 892,218 948,396 

Veterans Postwar Trust Fund Liabilities 
Compared to ND DV A Expenditure Data 

/I) (2) (3)=(1 )-(2) ( 4)=(3)/(1) 

7/l/2001-6/30/2003 Difference ($$) % Difference 

PWTF NDDVA 

$ 160,000.00 $45,401.96 $ 114,598.04 71.6% 

7 /1 /2003-6/30/2005 

PWTF NDDVA 

$ 138,800.00 $135,788.19 $ 3,011.81 2.2% 

7 / l/2005-6/30/2007 

PWTF NDDVA 

$ 145,000.00 $151,098.58 $ (6,098.58) -4.2% 

7 /1/2007-6/30/2009 

PWTF NDDVA 

$ 310,000.00 $ 175,640.77 $ 134,359.23 43.3% 

7/1/2009-6/30/201 I (as of 4/30/2010) 

PWTF NDDVA 

$ 93.031.3 l S 32.240.32 $ 60,790.99 65.3% 

14 



• Reoeats 
No. 
People 

• 

Frequency of Grant Benefits 

.1 .. . 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 ,9 ·10'. 11 12 ,,13 . •14 :;,J5 
'' ,•· ' 

646 399 182 95 56 42 20 12 20 · 10 4 1 3 .1 ' ·:··•,1 

• There were 3560 applications issued to 1493 people, over 18-
year period 

• 82 % of people applied l -3 times 
• 16% of people submitted 4-6 applications 
• 2% of the beneficiaries submitted anywhere from 10-18 

applications 
• Most people need benefits on a short term basis, 1-3 years 
• 530 (35%) people received no payments 

Re eats 1 2 5 6 Total • 

No>"People 325 144 45 10 5 1 530 

15 

Gran.t benefit by age group: 2003-2009 

Age denture hearin 
dental optical special 

Group s I! 

18-34 6 0 0 5 1 

35-54 217 22 1 140 6 

55-64 215 31 2 104 16 

65-74 106 13 15 85 IO 

75+ 142 19 42 98 2 

• Dental and optical benefits are most commonly used 
for all age groups 

• People in age group 18-34 are hardly using any 
benefits 

• High need for denture benefit (2007-2009) 

16 
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• 
Assumptions used in projections 

• 3% annual increase in number of veterans 

• Average an1ount of benefit is based on VPWTF Liability Report 

• Grant liabilities by category are calculated based on DV A data 

• 3% future annual inflation rate 

• Denture benefits in 2011 and forward; 100 people/ per year 

• Raise limits/per person in 2015: 

- $1000 special 

- $500 optical 

- $1000 dental 

- $1750 denture 
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Projections to 2021 
Projection of Benefit Needs for Veteran's Population in North Dakota 

Category 7 /1 /09-6/30/11 7/1/11-6/30/13 7 /1 /13-6/30/15 7 /1 /15-6/30/17 7/1/17-6/30/19 7/1/19-6/30/21 
'(1) DENTAL 

- amt. paid $ 104,845 $ 111,230 $ 118,004 $ 228,161 $ 242,056 $ 256,798 
- count 209 215 222 228 235 242 

'(2) DENTURE 

- amt. paid s 15,000 $ 154,500 s 154,500 s 175,000 s 180,250 $ 185,658 
- count 10 100 100 100 100 100 

'(3) HEARING 
- amt. paid $ 25,206 $ 26,741 $ 28,369 $ 30,097 $ 31,930 $ 33,875 
- count 20 21 21 22 23 23 

'(4) OPTICAL 

- amt. paid $ 29,631 $ 31,436 $ 33,350 $ 71,792 s 76,164 $ 80,803 
- count 131 135 139 144 148 152 

- '(5) SPECIAL 

- amt. paid s 5,000 $ 5,305 $ 5,628 $ 10,927 $ 11,593 $ 12,299 
- count 10 10 11 11 11 ➔~ 

Total (1)-(5) $ 179,682 $ 329,211 s 339,851 s 515,978 s 541,994 s 569,431 
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• 
Conclusion 

• There are 57,703 living veterans in ND as of 2008 

• The ND veterans and their family members are offered varieties of 
state benefits 

• Post War Trust Fund supports veterans' grant progran1 

• A large number of applicants who were granted dental and optical 
benefits have not used them 

• 52% of money available for grants is not spent 

• Age group 18-34 is less likely to apply for benefits 

• High need for denture benefit 

• Since 1993 most people needed benefits 1-3 times (short term 
basis) 
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This study was commissioned by North Dakota State Treasurer Kellv Schmidt for the 

purposes providing an actum·ial assessment of the future benefit need for veterans served through 

a hardship grant program managed by the ND Department of Veterans Affairs at the direction of 

the Administrative Committee on Veterans Affairs (ACOVA). The hardship grant program is 

funded by the income generated from the Veterans Postwar Trust Fund, for which the Treasurer 

serves as trustee. This study was completed by Tatjana Miljkovic and Reuben Tschritter. 

Tatjana Miljkovic is a Lecturer in Statistics Department at Nmih Dakota State University. 

She holds her MS Degree in Actuarial Science from the University of Illinois and MBA from 

North Dakota State University. She teaches varieties of courses in statistics and actuarial risk 

analysis. Currently, she is pursuing PhD in Statistics. Her expertise lies mostly in the area of 

actuarial risk management. Prior to her teaching career, she has spent about thirteen years 

working for some of the top national insurance and catastrophe modeling companies in the 

industry (UNUM, ANPAC, and RMS). Her industry experience includes: financial risk based 

capital modeling, catastrophe risk modeling, product development, and risk management and 

actuarial pricing in the area of property and casualty insurance. She has also worked as a 

research associate at Montana State University and North Dakota State University on various 

research projects related to pricing and risk management of crop insurance. Tatjana serves on the 

board of the NDSU Women's Club as a Vice President for academic year 20 I 0-20 I I. 

Reuben Tschritter is an Engineering Specialist in the Institute for Business and Industry 

Development (IBID), which is a part ofNDSU Extension. He has a degree in Mechanical 

Engineering from NDSU and numerous business courses from various Universities. His work 

involves technical and business support to companies, entrepreneurs and inventors. Previous to 

working for NDSU, he worked for IBM in product design and development, manufacturing 

engineering and product management for thirty-three years. His experiences with lBM involved 

extensive travel to Europe, the Far East and South America providing technical and management 

support to IBM locations and foreign suppliers. Reuben is active with Minn-Oak Manufacturers 

Association, University Student Groups, NDSU Team Makers, Society of Manufacturing 

Engineers, Society of Quality Engineers, Church involvement as well as Bible Studies. 
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Executive Summary 

The objective of this project is to assist the North Dakota Office of State Treasurer in providing 

an actuarial assessment of the future benefit needs of veterans in North Dakota so that 

appropriate decisions can be made at state level to generate sufficient funds to pay for benefit 

programs available to eligible veterans and their families in the next 10-20 years. lt is projected 

that the total benefits provided in medical grants by 2021 will rise to $570,000. This amount 

includes a denture benefit that was eliminated and reinstated in 2010. Dental, denture, and 

optical benefits are top three categories of medical benefits in terms of their demand. When 

considering age groups, it was found that young veterans, less than 34-years old, do not use 

benefits at all. Most of the veterans who use benefits are single men. 

This report is organized in six large sections. First, we summarize the national projections of 

veterans' population in North Dakota. Second, we provide the overview of administrative 

functions of ND Department of Veterans Affair including the summary of benefits offered. Then 

we analyze the data by category of benefits. We discuss the cost and statistics for young 

population of Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder /and Traumatic Brain Injury veterans registered in 

North Dakota. Projections of benefit needs up to year 2021 are discussed in the next section. 

The final section provides the summary of the survey conducted with other states in order to 
discover how North Dakota's veterans program compares to other states. 

National Projections 

The U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs 

The U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs (DVA) projected about 57,703 living veterans in North 

Dakota as of 09/30/2008. The total number of veterans is expected to fall by 1 % on annual basis 

through 2030 mostly due to a higher number of deaths than the number of new veterans. The 

projection model developed by DY A is based on an iterative process for each year. The number 

of living veterans for the next year is calculated by taking the count for the current year, 

subtracting the number of deaths, adding new veterans (separated from active duty), and 

adjusting for state net migration. The 2000 Federal Census is used in the first iteration to 

develop current estimates from the actual surveys. Separations from active duty and reserve as 

well as actual deaths are estimated based on data from Defense Manpower Data Center. 

American Community Survey (ACS) is utilized to track interstate migration only. 

The state estimate developed by DVA is higher by 3.5% than that developed by American 

Community Survey (ACS). ACS is conducted on ongoing basis with a purpose to provide the 

demographic projections every 1-3 years instead of every 10 years, as designed by Census. 
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American Communitv Survev 

An estimated 55,768 veterans live in North Dakota according to the 2006-2008 American 

Community Survey (ACS). This figure represents 11 .4% of the total population ofN orth Dakota. 

The total number of veterans has fallen by 9. I% compared to the 2000 Census Report, mostly 

due to mortality of those who served in World War II. The number of veterans who served in 

World War II declined by 49% from 12,150 reported in Census 2000 to 6,190 in 2006-2008 

ACS. At the same time, the number of Korea War veterans declined from 9,082 reported in 

Census 2000 to 7,138 estimated in 2006-2008 ACS. The number of veterans from Vietnam War 

is estimated at 18,348 in the 2006-2008 ACS, showing 8.6% decline from Census 2000 counts. 

Gulf War Veterans are the only group whose number has increased in past 20 years. These 

veterans include those who served on active duty since August 1990 in Gulf Wars and 
Afghanistan. In 2006-2008 ACS, it is estimated that number of Gulf War veterans in North 

Dakota is about 1,578, which is more than double since year 2000. 

Most of veterans are men, representing 92.3% of the veterans' population. Sixty four percent of 
veterans are older than 55. The smallest number offemale veterans is between age 55 and 74. 
The percent of female veterans is increasing for younger age relative to percent of male veterans. 

Female veterans age 18-34 represent the largest share of younger veterans compared to only 

1.8% of those in the 55-64 age group. Table-I shows distribution of veterans by gender for 

different age groups. 

age group males females %males % females 

18-34 4,755 1,297 8.5% 2.3% 

35-54 12,231 1,681 21.9% 3.0% 

55-64 14.387 264 25.8% 0.5% 

65-74 9,467 345 17.0% 0.6% 

75+ I 0,661 680 19.1 % 1.2% 

Total 51,501 4,267 92.3% 7.7% 

Grand Total 55,768 
Table-!: D1stnbut10n of veterans by age and gender 

The ACS has a model for estimating number of veterans by state, age, gender, and period of 

service. Population of veterans is estimated based on counts in the decennial Census, further 

adjusted by adding annual discharges reported by Department of Defense, subtracting number of 

estimated deaths, and accounting for migration. Estimates are published on I-year and 3-year 

basis. 

Decennial Census estimates are based on the responses from a sample of the population (e.g., the 
2000 long fotm including a question on veteran status was distributed to 1 out of 6 households in 
the US). As with all surveys, estimates may vary from the actual numbers because of sampling 
variations and other factors. Since the decennial Census is conducted every ten years, in-between 
Census projections are developed using well developed projections methodologies. V-'hen 
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Census (or ACS estimates) data are combined with other data sources (e.g., data from Defense 
Manpower Data Center or data on nurriber of deaths based on the m01iality rates), uncertainty 
exists'in the data sources and the final results. For example, the reliability of the US DVA's 
projections will vary directly by geographic size and inversely by time. National estimates are 
more reliable than state estimates. However, the state estimates are more reliable than county 
estimates. Larger states will have more accurate estimates than smaller states. Estimates for more 
recent ye~rs are more reliable than future projection. The margin of error will also depend on the 
availab_ility of the county versus state level data in the projection model. In Census 2000, 
insufficient information on veteran population was available at county level; the US DVA had to 
allocate the state level estimates down to county level while maintaining characteristics of the 
general county population. These are some of the factors that will increase the uncertainty in the 
projections. 

In 2010, Census 2000 long fonn survey is replaced by American Community Survey 
Questionnaire on veterans. 

North Dakota Department of Veterans Affairs 

North Dakota Depm1ment of Veterans Affairs (ND DVA), working under the supervision ol'thc 

Administrative Committee of Veterans Affairs (ACOVA), administers various state benefit programs 
available to veterans and their families who reside in North Dakota. The Veterans Aid Loan Program 
provides loans up $5,000. The Transportation Program is designed to assist veterans in transponation to a 
Veterans Hospital. Currently, there are·five vans available for various routes in North Dakota. Hardship 
Grants Program provides aid to veterans for urunet medical needs. The Tuition Waiver Program is 
designed to provide waivers of the tuition to a member of the National Guard or a widower of the resident 
veteran who was killed in an action as a result ofa service connected cause. For elderly veterans and their 
spouses, the state offers a nursing home that is located in Lisbon, ND. Any wartime or peace time 
veteran is eligible for burial in a National cemetery. Some disable veterans are eligible for the Property 
Tax Exemption Program. Other state benefits include special license plates and state park admissions. 

The Hardship Grant program encompasses medical benefits for the following categories: dental, denture, 
hearing, optical, and special. The cost of this program is underwritten by Veterans Post War Trust Fund 
(VPWTF), managed by North Dakota Office of State Treasurer. The medical grants arc subject to a limit, 
and annual amount of benefits is capped. ACOV A evaluates eligibility benefit criteria and benefit 
categories periodically and makes adjustments as they detennine necessary. Since 1993, three 
modifications have been made to the medical benefits. Table-2 summarizes benefits by category and 
eligible amounts as provided by ND DY A. 

The benefit for denture was offered in years 2007-2009, but was eliminated in 2010. lt will be offered 
again in 2011. A limit of $300 on optical grant is applied on two-year interval (average $150/year). 
Limits on dental and hearing grants have not been raised since 2006. The annual cap on all benefits has 

remained constant, $1500, since 1993 . 
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• years category limit annual cap 
hearing $ 500 ( 4 yrs. Interval) 
optical $ 300 (2 yrs. interval) $ 1,500 

1993-2006 dental $ 1,000 (one oer calendar yr.) (per calendar year 
$ 1,000 /per applicant) 

special (Commissioner's Discretion) 
hearing $ 1,500 (4 yrs. interval) 
denture $ 3,000 (2 yrs. Interval) 

$ 1,500 
dental $ 1,000 (one Der calendar vr.) 

2007-2009 
$ 1,000 

(per calendar year 

special (Commissioner's Discretion) 
/per applicant) 

optical $ 300 (2 yrs. interval) 
heating $ 1,500 ( 4 yrs. interval) 
dental $ 1,000 (one per calendar yr.) $ 1,500 

2010+ $ 1,000 (per calendar year 
special (Commissioner's Discretion) /per applicant) 
optical $ 300 (2 yrs. interval) 

Table-2: Grants by category and eligibility amount 

Dental grants cover an exam, cleaning, and x-rays, if there is a medical need or pain to be addressed. 
Preventive medical procedures such as routine annual exam or cleaning are not covered. Gum disease 

treatment is not covered. Optical grants cover the regular eye glasses and eye exams. Items that are not 
covered include: progressive lenses, sunglasses, scratch coating and tint, unless there is a medical need 

supported by a doctor prescription. Hearing grants cover hearing exams and hearing aids. Special grants 
are issued for a life-threatening medical need and are subject to Commissioner's approval. 

Benefits offered through ND DV A apply to veterans, spouses, widows, and dependents. An applicant is 
required to apply individually for each grant. The application is reviewed by ND DV A administration and 
approved only if the applicant meets the eligibility criteria based on income and family size. Recent 2007 
income guidelines are provided in table below. 

Household Size 2 3 4 5 6 7 
Annual Inc. Level $ 14,400 $ 16,800 $ 19,200 $ 21,600 $ 25.200 $ 28,800 $ 31,200 

Table-3: Eligibility Requirements set by ACOVA 

The Bureau of Labor Statistics reported that in 2007, North Dakota had I 1.8% of total 

population living below the poverty level. The national average for the same period was 13%. 

The poverty guidelines are issued each year in the Federal Register by the Depai1ment of Health 

and Human Services (HHS). The 2008 income threshold by family size, reported by HHS, for 48 

contiguous states is summarized below. 

Household Size 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
Annual Inc. Level $ 10,400 $ 14,000 $ 17,600 $ 21,200 $ 24.800 $ 28.400 $ 32,000 

Table-4: Department of Human Services -Poverty Guidelines 

For family size 4- 7, income levels set by ACOVA are in line with the HHS guidelines. However, 

for family size 1-3, ACOVA has a higher income threshold than HHS. The largest percent 
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difference is observed for a single person household. The national threshold for a single person is 

$867 on monthly basis compared to $1,200 set by ACOV A. For the families of two and three 

members, the thresholds set by A COVA are 20% and 9% higher than I-II-IS thresholds 

respectively. The ND DY A data shows that 49% applications originated from family size 1-3. 

One percent of applications were submitted by those from larger families of 4- 7 members. The 

remaining 50% of the records are missing information about family size. 

When the applicant does not meet eligibility criteria set in the ACOVA guidelines, the ND OVA 

cancels the grant. There have been a total of 669 cancellations for period I 993-2010. Reasons 

and counts for cancellations are listed in table below. About 73% of all cancellations are primary 

due to: (I) higher income, (2) higher asset (in cash), and (3) violation ofNDCC 37-01-40 rule. 

Cancellations due to higher than required income level show applicant's income level 32%-

100% higher than required for a household size equal to one. There are 220 cancelled 

applications since 1993 due to higher than required income. The number of these cancel! at ions 

decreased after 2007 since the income level criteria has been raised. Prior to 2007 there were on 

average 14 cancellations per year due to income level. After 2007, this number dropped to about 

4 per year. 

Reason for Cancellations Count 

income exceeds the maximum allowed 220 

assets exceeds (cash) $2,000.00 156 

does not meet NDCC 37-01-40 110 

2 year interval requirement 55 

not an authorized expenditure 38 

other 33 

services provided prior to application 20 

incomplete application 19 

maintenance procedure 7 

residency requirement 5 

does not meet·NDCC 37-14.01-1 4 

5 year interval requirement 2 

Total 669 
Table-5: Cancellations 

Once the application is approved, the applicant is given 90 days to use the grant The ND DVA 

expects approved applicants to receive the services once they are approved. Even when the work 

is not completed in 90 days, it is still expected that the applicant starts the process and an 

extension can be granted if needed. The fact that about 1,588 (44.6%) of granted applications 

(years: 1993 to rnid-2010) have zero dollars paid out indicates big challenges that applicants face 

with this process. Table-6 below shows percent of applicants by category not using grants, even 
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.ough they have been approved. Dental and optical grants represent the highest percentage of 
unused grants. 

category Grants not Used% 

dental 52% 

denture 1% 

optical 38% 

hearing 5% 

transportation 2% 

special 2% 

Total 100% 

Table-6: Percent of unused grants by category 

Scheduling an eye, dental, or hearing exam can take several weeks, which may interfere with the 
timing of the grant. Medical exams may require additional follow-up work and cost exceeding 
the amount of grant. Since the applicants are responsible for the difference in payments, they 
may not have other funds to pay the balance and decide not to have any work done. The lowest 
percent of people using dental and optical grants are in the age group 18-34. The average of 
unused optical and dental grants across all other age groups is in the range of 19-33%. Table-7 

.elow shows percent of people who are not using dental and optical grants by age group. 

• 

Age group 
not used grants 

dental optical 

18-34 3% 3% 

35-54 29% 33% 

55-64 24% 20% 

65-74 24% 25% 

75+ 20% 19% 

total 100% 100% 

Table-7: Percent of unused grants by age group 

More than 50% of the amount available and approved for grants has not been spent. Dental 
grants are in the top category. Table-8 shows the difference between amount granted and amount 
paid by year and category. The data is sorted based on the difference in dollar amount. 
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Category Amount Granted Amount Paid Difference 
Dental $1,009,261 $440,285 $568,976 
Dentures $306,623 $183,212 $123,411 
Optical $300,381 $151,187 $149,193 
Hearing $164,656 $90,984 $73,672 
Special $40, l 13 $ I 6,040 $24,073 
Transportation $13,902 $7,530 $6,372 
Housing $5,178 $2,660 $2,518 
Deposit Assist. $500 $320 $180 
Total $1,840,614 $892,218 $948,396 

Table-8: Amounts Spent Smee 1993 

Amounts paid by year compared to the granted amounts are summarized in the Table-9 below. 

The data are generated based on the calendar year of the approval date of the app 1 ication. The 

largest number of unused applications is linked to approval years 1998-2002 with a large number 
of older applicants. 

Aoo. Year Amt Granted($) Amt Paid($) Difference($) 
1993 13,480 - 13,480 
1994 88,169 24,997 63,172 
1995 44,582 41,351 3,231 
1996 51,489 50,135 1,354 
1997 84, I 15 78,582 5,532 
1998 108,164 16,423 91,741 
1999 130,729 997 129,732 

2000 I 12,978 3,792 109,187. 
2001 61,192 4,563 56,629 
2002 77,305 3,860 73,445 
2003 110,922 67,185 43,736 
2004 112,855 74,473 38,381 
2005 83,750 62,407 21,343 
2006 l I 0,000 65,647 44,353 
2007 227,661 140,546 87,116 
2008 262,825 163,941 98,884 
2009 127,750 74,861 52,889 
2010 32,650 18,457 14,193 
Total 1,840,614 892,218 948,396 

Table-9: Amounts spent by approved year on calendar year basis 

The issue of missing payouts was discussed in a 9/27/10 meeting with ND DY A staff, and it was 

decided that the data for years prior to 2003 (1993-2002) should be excluded from the further 

analysis due to lack of credibility. A conversion to year 2000, personnel change, and data entry 

errors are some of the possible reasons for missing records, especially between 1999 and 2002. It 

is possible to manually impute back all the old records into the system, but it was decided not to 
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pursue this task since it is time consuming and would constrain the resources. A list of all data 

issues is provided in the Appendix. 

A similar summary is generated in Table-lO, considering a fiscal year rather than a calendar 

year. The fiscal year begins on July l, and ends June 30 th of the next year. In Table - I 0, 

summaries of amounts granted and paid are lined up following the same time period. The 
amount paid in one period may reflect the applications submitted in the previous time period. 

This timing issue will occur at the end of a fiscal year when the amount granted in one year can 

be paid in the next fiscal year. The lag in amount paid should be not be larger than 90 days 

considering that it takes 90 days to use the grant from the date of approval. 

App. Year Amt Granted($) Amt Paid($) Difference($) 
7 /1/93-6/30/94 63,579 1,000 62,579 
7/1/94-6/30/95 61,651 46,151 15,500 
7/1/95-6/30/96 49,464 46,503 2,962 
7 /1/96-6/30/97 65,286 64,797 488 
7 / 1/97-6/3 0/98 108,081 53,037 55,044 
7/1/98-6/30/99 110,058 250 109,808 
7 /1/99-6/3 0/00 145,938 3,100 142,838 
7/1/00-6/30/01 48,147 4,259 43,888 
7/1/01-6/30/02 89,267 5,081 84,186 
7 /1/02-6/30/03 94,521 40,393 54,128 
7/1/03-6/30/04 109,066 67,368 41,698 
7/1/04-6/30/05 101,419 70,785 30,634 
7/1/05-6/30/06 93,750 62,366 31,384 
7 /1/06-6/30/07 152,350 90,373 62,027 
7/1/07-6/30/08 277,283 178,300 98,983 
7/1/08-6/30/09 221,303 126,265 95,038 
7/1/09-6/30/10 49,450 32,240 17,210 
Total 1,840,614 892,218 948,396 

Table-] 0: Amount spent by fiscal year 

Further analysis of ND DVA benefit payments is performed using data years 2003-2009. The 

data for year 2010 were excluded since they reflect the first part of the year only. 

Analysis of ND DV A Data 

The ND DV A provided us with the liability repmis for the Veteran's Postwar Trust Fund 
(VPWTF). The reports are created once every two years, run as of June 30. They include 

liabilities broken-down by category (i.e., grants, operations, computers, transportations, etc.). 
The amounts tracked are also allocated to: committed, funded, and unfunded categories. Before 
we have proceeded with the analysis, we had perfonned liability validation for years 2003-2009. 
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• We compared total grant liabilities funded by the VPWTF to the paid amounts reflected in ND 

DY A data. The summary is presented in Table-I I. The ND DV A data was aggregated based on 

the approval data (i.e. 7/J/2003-6/30/2005). It is expected that small differences will occur due lo 

the timing issues and different ways the summary reports may have been run. 11 is easy to 

observe this for years (7/l/2003-6/30/2007) where the percent difference in total is about 2%. 

The largest difference in payouts is observed for years 7/l/2007-6/30/2009. This amount is 

reported at $134,359.23 and it represents 43.3% of the total liabilities paid by the VPWTF. The second 

largest difference of $114,598.04 or 71.6% is observed for years 7/1/2001-6/30/2003. The latest ND 
DVA report is also missing some records of payouts as the difference between estimated grant liabilities 
in the VPWTF and ND DVA is $60,790.99 or 65.3% of the VPWTF estimate as of 4/30/2010. 

Another method of data aggregation could be explored based on the voucher date/year, if the 

quality of data is improved, but the difference should not be large. This entry represents the date 

when the payment was made to the applicant. However, many records are missing a complete 

voucher date. It is important to emphasize that the grants included in the table below are: dental, 

denture, hearing, optical, and special. A few other grants for transportation and housing 

assistance were excluded since they are reported separately on VPWTF liability sheet. 

The large differences will need to be clarified by ND DY A. It comes down to recognizing the 

importance of managing accurate data records in the system. Running the internal reports on 

periodic basis and reviewing the data would help in managing funds and improving the 

communication with the Treasurer's office. Credible data records are crucial in making right 

decisions ~nd estimating future financial needs of the veterans' population. 

Veteran's· Postwar Trust Fund Liabilities vs. ND OVA (2001-2010 
(1 l (2) (3)=(1)-(2) (4)=(3)/(1) 

7 /1 /2001-6/30/2003 Difference ($$) % Difference 
PWTF ND DVA 

Grants $ 160,000.00 $ 45,401.96 $ 114,598.04 71.6% 

iffi:i•'Ri!tl1l!B~ 
·, · ~~~w~•'i,•~•.ai· -·~ill~ •~'«ili''i!it'"' l: , . .t..,. -, ·, ~.,}.f '; , ..: ,... -.. ~ ~ __ ,__ ·,. _ J;q '-•- ,~ . ·~· .ti,,,'_.· - ~M -~~;\i_~.\.!@tl 

7 /1 /2003-6/30/2005 
PWTF ND DVA 

Grants $ 138,800.00 $ 135,788.19 $ 3,011.81 2.2% 
!J11&i~~#:t»!lf1lftf4[f~:~1l~~W@xt~~r»:l\(}6JJ~~~~.@~1iIMil~il¥tilt«Wlf.fij~'.t¼~~Wil?,r1!?,f(t!~\~¥IY~1{'.--tJftl~lJ~ik1'i""\:.~1K~~ff?,~1t'.!~t~1-t~11fJif\:@;i%it1~1;1,•:it\l·;;;·;,;,;~tl 

7 /1 /2005-6/30/2007 
PWTF ND DVA 

Grants $ 145,000.00 $ 151,098.58 $ (6,098.58) -4.2% 
9;~114f~~'!F,~\1$f~1™1Y~i-+i~'ll'J#9W~~~~~l!$~%\~iffl~Afiii~,i;\1J~rtt,~1(1tt~)~lt8~f~'iS:i)~~.~';ih~~-mij¥;J'(t/N#'.,ntWlfii,1.Ht:~\!1J,1~:~t".t~~N!nJ¼i/:R,~I?,.~1::f A·i:W, >t/:•.' )P"i 

7 /1 /2007-6/30/2009 
PWTF ND DVA 

Grants $ 310,000.00 $ 175,640.77 $ 134,359.23 43.3% 
t'l;'f,&'likj'Jj'fi,/,l1~-,~~l~~-.,ff~'l,~~"""'"f(ii~~•-l'!11,'iiii'!/i1!:'rl/'"'''''"~lli'''J'AW'f&"'''''•''¼('''''''··••···•···.,,, ,.,,,, 1.J'h.J~.. ·1 . .-- ,\~~-'. , ,1, "· •• ' .• ;. ~ .r r ~ .:l'\1,.3 '. ~ i~ r ;1, ~- .~tilt, . ;1. ,,;!f L · ·i~t.cn:~,'1"' · .~i, .. ~;l~·ti;;tt,G,t,.~JW.i,i1~\1~,.,· ~tFtli/k.'.?1-~·;;_i/~~., .. ,Jt.i-\\1.;·;:.~t'.:,: 

7 /1/2009-6/30/2011 (as of 4/30/2010) 
PWTF ND DVA 

Grants $ 93,031.31 $ 32,240.32 $ 60,790.99 65.3% 
Table- I ! : Grant liabilities 
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• Freguencv of Benefits 

For modeling aggregate payment amounts, actuarial analysis typically includes both analysis of 
frequency as well as severity of payments. Ideally, we would like to know the total number of 
low income people who are eligible for benefits in the state of North Dakota. This number is 
unavailable, and we can only analyze counts of people who are already part of the benefit 
system. The OVA data shows how often people applied for benefits since 1993. Table-12 is 
generated by tracking a unique applicant's ID and summarizing the number of times it repeats in 
the database based on the amount of benefit paid since 1993. In addition to medical categories, 
housing, transportation, and deposit assistance benefits are also included in the total. There were 
3560 applications issued to 1493 people over anl8-year period. About 82% of people applied 1-3 
times during this 18-year period. About 16% of people submitted 4-6 applications during the 
same pe1iod. The remaining 2% of the beneficiaries submitted anywhere from 10-18 
applications. 

Considering a time span of 18 years, we infer that a very few people need benefits on a long term 
basis. Most people need benefits on a short tenn basis, 1-3 years. However, the highest number 
of people is reported not to be able to use the benefits granted to them. 

Reoeats 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 18 
No. 
People 646 399 182 95 56 42 20 12 20 10 4 1 3 1 1 

Table-12: Distribution of people based on number of applications 

It should be noted that not all 1493 people received the benefits granted to them. We ran a 
summary to find out the frequency of applications that resulted in no payments. Table-13 shows 
the total number of approved applicants who received no payments in past 18 years. This group 
represents 35% of the total. Most of them applied only once and received no payments, even 
though they were granted the benefits. Some people applied multiple times. One person was 
granted benefit 6 times and did not manage to use it at all. 

Repeats 1 2 3 4 5 6 Total 

No. Peoole 325 144 45 10 5 1 530 
Table-13: Number of people who received no payments 

In past 18 years, on average, about 54 people per year received payments for benefits. 
Considering the low amount of benefits, those who are approved and used the benefit managed 
to generate about one claim per year. A very few people filed two applications. Thus the 
frequency distribution for paid benefit applications has large probability mass at one and it 1s 
truncated at zero as the infom1ation about probability mass at zero is not available. The 
discrepancies between the VPWTF liabilities and the amounts paid in ND OVA data do not 
impact this part of the analysis since our focus is to analyze the frequency of applications granted 
by categories and age groups. \Vhile there is a belief that there are people who are eligible for 
benefits but file no claims, this count is unknown. We have also seen above that some granted 
applications did not result in paid benefits. 
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• Using statistical models to model benefit claim frequency is not working in this case since there 
are only a few points with highest probability mass at 1 and 2. Ideally, we would like to know 
the number of applicants eligible for benefits by year and category. This can be estimated using 
some other socioeconomics proxies (i.e. unemployment rate, statistics on pove1ty, etc.) 
Additional assumptions need to be made regarding prob a bi\ ity of veterans in this cohort. These 
assumptions are addressed later in the report. 

The frequency of benefits is analyzed using a.large two-way contingency table where frequency 
is cross-classified by benefit category (dental, denture, hearing, optical, and special) and age 
groups ( 18-34, 35-54, 55-64, 65-74, and 75+), and a statistical model, named Generalized Linear 
Model (GLM), was used to fit the data. The summary of data for years 2003-2009 is 
conveniently displayed in Table-14. The number of applications is aggregated by year and 
applicant. For example, an applicant may have filled 4 applications in year 2003 and I 
application in year 2004. This applicant will show up twice in the table below. In year 2003, the 
same applicant was 54 years old and in 2004 he was 55 years old. Thus this applicant moves 
across two age groups. Aggregation by year and category is necessary to be able to keep track o 1· 
different age groups. 

Age 
dental dentures hearing optical special 

Group 

18-34 6 0 0 5 1 

35-54 217 22 1 140 6 
55-64 215 31 2 104 16 
65'.74 106 13 15 85 10 
75+ 142 19 42 98 2 

Table-14: Benefit by age group 2003-2009 

When modeling significance of age group and benefit category, we find out that all age groups 
and all benefit categories are significant predictors for frequency of applications. In Figure-] the 
mosaic plot is generated first by dividing the area according to the frequency by age group and 
then within each age group the area is divided based on the frequency of benefit category. There 
are larger numbers of people using some benefits than others and there are larger numbers of 
people in some age groups·then others. Top two categories of benefits that are most commonly 
used are dental and optical for all age groups except 18-34. People in age group 18-34 are hardly 
using any benefits. 
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• 

Figure-I: Mosaic Plot of benefit category and age group 2003-2009 

- In order to find out how some of these combinations of age groups and categories are dependent, 
a correspondence analysis is done (Figure-2). There is a strong association benveen special 
benefit for age group 55-64 as these points show close together and far from the origin on tbc 
plot. A large negative association is observed when points are located diametrically apart on 
either side of tbe origin. This is the case with denture and hearing benefits that are not used at all 
for age group 18-34. Similar pattern of association is observed for dental and optical benefits 
since the points for these categories are close together. It is important to be rernided that denture 
benefits are included in this analysis althouth they are eliminated in 20 IO and they were not 
offered perior to 2007. Thus we see higher share of dental and optical benefits just because these 
have been offered for all years that we are using in the analysis. 
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Figure-2: Correspondence analysis of benefit category and age group 

A similar analysis was repeated considering the data for year 2008 only. Dot chart in Figure-3 
shows the counts of applications by age and category. From the chart we can observe that age 
group 55-64 submitted 29 applications in total for dental benefit. There is equal number of 

applications submitted for optical benefits for age 34-65. Optical, hearing, and special benefits 
have less demand than denture and dental benefits. There are more dental and denture 

applications combined than hearing and optical applications combined for age group 75 and 
above. 
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Figure-3: Dot chart for benefit category and age group 

The mosaic plot in Figure-4 shows the frequency for various benefits used in 2008. Based on the 
size of the mosaic blocs we can see that denture benefit was used more than optical, hearing, and 
special benefits. This indicates high demand for denture benefit. It would be beneficial to 
veterans and their families if this category of benefits is offered again. Hearing and optical 
benefits are not used as much as denture and dental benefits. Again, we observe that age group 
18-34 does not apply for denture, hearing, and special benefits. One application was reported for 
optical benefit and two applications for dental benefits for age 18-34. First, younger people are 
most likely to be capable of working and finding a job. Second, they may not have as many 
health issues as older people. 
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• 
18-34 35-54 55-64 65-74 75+ 

Figure-4: Mosaic Plot of benefit category and age group 2008 

T~e. !1e~/ step in .the analysis was ~one.t~ analyze the income level (family size) in addition to 

age group and category for years 2003-2009. Income level and family size are used as basic 

benefit eligibility criteria. The original DVA data provide number of dependents excluding the 

applicant. For example, the number of dependents for a single person is zero. Number of 

dependents coded as 5 indicate family size of 6. Many original records were missing number of 

dependents. If the record was missing number of dependents, we coded it as 9999 for the purpose 

of data analysis. About 27% of the data was missing the information about the number of 

dependents for the applicants. Single people submitted about 49% of the total number of 
applications. While 18% of applications came from family size two, 6% of the applications came 

from larger families (size 3-7). 

Severity of Benefit Pavments 

When modeling the severity of benefit payments, the amounts paid and granted by year are 

adjusted for inflation. Inflationary adjustment was estimated using historical data on Consumer 
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• Price Index (CPI) published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics. The average inflation rate over 7-

year period is 2.4%. For each category of benefits, basic summary of statistics are provided for 

the amount paid and amount granted. Histogram was generated for paid amounts to visually 

analyze the continuous distribution of amounts paid. The aggregation of the payment amount 

was done by applicant and year. 

• 

• 

• Dental Benefits 

Dental 1st Quartile Median Mean 3rd Quartile Max 
Amt. Granted $ 576.50 $ 590.30 $ 727.30 $ 1,024.00 $3,221.20 
Amt. Paid $ 170. 90 $ 539.40 $ 476.00 $ 590.30 $3,221.20 

Table-15: Basic statisl!cs for dental benefit 

Histogram of the Paid Amount 
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The distribution of dental payments bas a mean of $476 and median of$539.4. About 75% of the 

amounts paid are less than $590.30. Maximum amount paid to one individual was about 
$3,221.20 in 2007. This individual was reported as a single male veteran who lives in Fargo with 
birth year 1946. 

• Denture Benefits 

Denture 1st Quartile Median Mean 3rd Quartile Max 
Amt. Granted $ 3,072 $ 3.146 $ 3,096 $ 3.221 $ 3,221 
Amt. Paid $ 2,549 $ 2,265 $ 2,994 $ 3,221 $ 3,221 

Table- I 6: Basic statistics for denture benefit 
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The distrib,,tion of denture benefits is skewed left driven by some small payments. Eleven 

payments are less than $500 with a minimum payment of $66. Mean/and maximum for the 

denture benefits are close lo the maximum amount of $3,000 allowed for denture benefits on two 

year basis. 

Histogram of the Paid Amount 
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• Hearing Benefits 

Hearina 1st Quartile Median Mean 3rd Quartile Max 
Amt. Granted $ 864.7 $ 885.4 $ 1,652.5 $ 3,072.0 $3,221.20 
Amt. Paid $ 777.4 $ 875.1 $ 1,324.2 $ 1,973.4 $3,221.20 

Table-17: Basic statrstrcs for heanng benefit 
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• 

Histosrram of the Paid Amount 

The distribution for hearing benefits seems to have a discontinuity between $2,000 and $3,000. 
The average amount paid is $1,324.2. About 75% of the annual payments/per person are less 
than $2,000. There are several people who received maximum amount of $3,221.20 in today's 
dollars. These people include three veterans and one widower. 

• Optical Benefits 

Optical 1st Quartile Median Mean 3rd Quartile Max 
Amt. Granted $ 281.5 $ 288.2 $ 289 2 $ 307.2 $322.1 
Amt. Paid $ 208.8 $ 274.9 $ 232.5 $ 288.2 $2888.4 

Table-18: Basic statistics for optical benefit 
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• Histogram of the Paid Amount 
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About 75% of the annual optical payments are less than $307. This amount is expected 

considering that $300 is allowed on two year basis. The maximum amount close lo $3000 

indicates an outlier. We notice that there is a discrepancy between a max amount granted and 

paid for this category. By tracking down the data record it was found that there was one single 

veteran from Stutsman County, born in 1923, who applied for optical benefit in 2007. He was 

granted amount of$300 but received $2,690 at that time. If we account for inflation, the amount 

received today is worth $2,888.4. 

• Special benefits 

Soecial 1st Quartile Median Mean 3rd Quartile Max 

Amt. Granted $ 844.4 $ 1,048.6 $ 900.0 $ 1,073.7 $1,099.5 

Amt. Paid $ 91.9 $ 340.7 $ 412.6 $ 659.8 $1,099.5 

Table-19: Basic statistics for special benefit 
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• Histo11rnm of the Paid Amount 
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The average amount of special benefits is $412.60. Maximum amount granted was $1,099.50. 
The 3'd quartile is $659.80._On average, six people were granted average amount of$500 per 

year. 

.istribution of frequency and severity of benefits can be combined to develop an aggregate 
distribution of benefits by category. The central tendency of the aggregate benefit distribution 
can be calculated as a product of mean frequency and mean severity distributions. Variability of 
the aggregate claim distribution can be calculated based on the variability of both frequency and 
severity benefit distributions. 

Traumatic Brain Injury and Posttraumatic Stress Disorder 

Traumatic brain injury (TBI) is defined as disruption in bran function caused by head injury. 
Many post-deployment service members and veterans oflraqi and Afghanistan wars have high 
occunence ofTBI in range of"mild"-to-"severe" resulting from combat related injuries. TB! 
patients may develop posttraumatic stress disorders (PTSD), depression, anxiety, and substance 
abuse. Depending of severity of illness, TBI patients need diverse treatments. It is estimated that 
about 20% of veterans from Operating Enduring Freedom (OEF) and Operation Iraqi Freedom 
(OIF) experience some form ofTBI [Amalia Corby]. 

The question that we are trying to answer is whether or not it is necessary to consider TBI/PTSD 

counts into our projection. Fargo VA Hospital has about 4000 registered veterans from 

- OEF/OIF. About '.WOO registered veterans are seeking medical care. Out of 2000, about 700 are 
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diagnosed with PTSD and about 180 are diagnosed with TB!. All TBI/PTSD patients are age 3'i 
and younger [phone conversation with Debra Kunkel elated as oCJu\y 9, 2010.]. 

Annual cost ofmilcl TB! ranges from $27,259 to $32,759 per case estimated by Department of 

Defense Task force on Mental Health, 2007. Severe TBT costs range from $268,902 to $408,5 l 9 
per case. The infom1ation about the severity of TB! patients in ND is not available. Refer to the 

summary of another phone conversation with Debra Kunkel and Peggy Wheelclen (VA Hospital, 

Fargo). 

From the ND OVA data set we can observe that there were very few people in age group 18-34 

who were using grants over seven year period (2003-2009). None of the veterans in this age 

group used denture or hearing grants, which is expected for the young population not to heave 
these types of needs. The counts ofTBT/PTSD reported by Ms. Kunkel reflect age group 18-34. 
Even if this age group is eligible for the grants, we should expect a very few or no people to 
apply for dental or optical grants. However, without additional information about their eligibility 

status, we cannot incorporate this group into our projection. 

Projections 

It'is estimated that the VPWTF will generate about $200,000 in interest and dividends for 2009-

2011 on about $4.2 million of principal. The income of the fund is provided to Administrative 

Committee of Veterans Affairs (ACOVA) to fund benefit needs of veterans' population across 

North Dakota. We developed a projection of medical benefit payments up to year 2021. 

The following assumptions are used in the projections: 

• While the national projections for number of veterans in North Dakota are not accounting 
for additional growth in this cohort, we are assuming that 3% of growth is appropriate for 
North Dakota to account for: additional National Guard population and aging TBI/PTDS 
people who may not be using benefits at this time but will need them as they get older. 

This growth rate is in line with the unemployment rate of 3% in North Dakota. 

• The average amount of benefits is estimated using the YPWTF reports on liabilities and 

frequency of benefits based on ND OVA data. This was necessary in order to maintain 

the accuracy of the estimates. Using the paid amount reported by ND OVA data would 

lead to a biased estimate that would be significantly under project future payments. 

• The YPWTFreport does not provide us with the breakdown for grant category. All 
medical grants are combined. [n order to track the projection of individual grants, we 
allocated grant liabilities based on the distribution of amount paid by category observed 
in ND OVA data. 
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• • The inflation rate of 3 % is considered for future year. 

• We assume that the denture benefits are included in projection sta11ing with year 2011. lt 
is estimated that about 100 people per year would use denture benefits. The annual limit 

on denture benefits would be raised to $1,750 in year 201 5 to cope with the rising cost for 

medical services. 

• We assume that the average annual amount for special benefits would be raised to 

amount of $1000 per person in year 2015. 

• We assume that the average annual amount for optical benefits would be raised to amount 

of$500 per person in year 2015. 

• We assume that the average amount of dental benefits would be raised to amount of 

$1,000 per person in year 2015. Note, current limit on dental benefits is $1000 but on 
average about $500-$750 is used on annual basis. With increased cost for dental 

appointments and procedures, the benefit amount should increase by year 2015. 

- It is projected that the total amount of benefits allocated to medical grants will reach about 
$570,000 by year 2021. The breakdown by category is provided in table below. 

Projection of Benefit Needs for Veteran's Population in North Dakota: 
• r - - -

Category 7/1/09-6/30/11 7/1/11-6/30/13 7/1/13-6/30/15 7/1/15-6/30/17 7/1/17-6/30/19 7/1/19-6/30/21 
'(1/DENTAL 

I . - . . 

: - amt. paid $ 

l -count 
'(2)'. □ EN-rURE 

- amt. paid $ 
·: - count 

'(3/ HEARING 
' : aini. paid 
! - count 

'(4) OPTICAL 

$ 

' -amt. paid $ 

- count 
'(5) SPECIAL 

- amt. paid $ 
- count 

Total (1)-(5) $ 

104,845 $ 

209 

15,000 $ 

10 

25,206 $ 

20 

29,631 $ 

131 

5,000 $ 

10 
179,682 $ 

111,230 $ 
215 

154,500 $ 

100 

26,741 $ 
21 

31,436 $ 

135 

5,305 $ 

10 
329,211 $ 

118,004 $ 

222 

154,500 $ 
100 

28,369 $ 

21 

33,350 $ 

139 

5,628 $ 

11 
339,851 $ 

24 

228,161 $ 

228 

175,000 $ 

100 

30,097 $ 

22 

71,792 $ 

144 

10,927 $ 

11 
515,978 $ 

242,056 $ 

235 

180,250 $ 

100 

31,930 $ 
23 

76,164 $ 

148 

11,593 $ 

11 
541,994 $ 

256,798 
242 

185,658 
100 

33,875 
23 

80,803 
152 

12,299 
12 

569,431 



Comparison to Other States 

A questionnaire was developed and submitted through National Association of State Directors of 

Veterans Affairs (NASDVA) in order to compile a summary of veterans' benefits provided by 

other US states. The questions included in the questionnaire arc available in the appendix 

section. The response rate was around 30-35°/c, which is below the expected level. All questions 

were designed to be multiple choice questions. One of the choices was labeled as "Other" to 

allow respondents to answer it in other way/or comment if selections of other answers did nol 
apply to their state. These written responses were summarized below as "Comments provided 

as written responses", in further analysis of the survey responses. 

Following is the summary of the responses with the main points: 

• Other states offer, more or less, similar type of medical and non-medical benefits (dental, 
denture, optical, hearing, transportation, housing assistance, deposit rent assistance, 

other). One state indicated that they.offer behavioral health benefits. 

Comments provided as written responses: Florida does not offer state medical benefits 

to veterans and their eligible dependents. Oklahoma primarily has 3 programs of 

assistance available to honorably discharged wartime veterans; Long-tcm1 care funded 
partially by state revenue, federal per diem payments and veteran participation; 

emergency financial assistance - a small $750.00 one-time maximum per year to provide 
for rent, food and utilities on an emergency basis; and veterans service representatives 

covering all 77 Oklahoma counties to provide assistance in filing veterans benefits 
claims, both state and federal. In Alaska, this type of program is under social services. ln 
Montana, no medical benefit~. for veterans or any eligible dependents are state funded. 

• Six states spend more than $200,000 on grants and benefits to veterans. This is just the 

state money spent for grants that does not include administration, operating and staff 
costs. Two of these states spend 3 to 4 million dollars, one other states spend 1-2 million 

dollars, and two additional states spend between $500,000 and 1 million dollars. This 

spending exceeds the amount of spending in North Dakota most likely due to higher 
number of veterans per capita. 

• Due to confidentiality of the responses, we are unable to find out exact names of these 
six states in order to be able to compare them to North Dakota. However, we can obtain 

a partial a list of states that participated in the survey and left their email contact 

information: AK, FL, MA, MO, MS, MT, OK, SD, VA, WI, and WY. 
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• 

• Six states indicated that they evaluate the benefit eligibility criteria every years. Two 
other states do evaluation once in every two or five years. This is in line with ND DVA 
evaluation practices. 

• Eligibility criteria are based on income only in three states. One state indicated that they 

additionally consider the number of dependents. ND DVA considers both income and 

number of dependents. 

• Veterans Trust Fund is not available in fourteen states. Four out of 18 respondents 

indicated existence of Veterans Fund in their states. Two out of four of these states that 

have Veterans Fund received less than $50,000 in the annual return on investment 

generated by veterans Trust Fund. 

• Thirteen out of eighteen states feel that the current state funds are NOT sufficient to 

finance needs of veterans and their eligible dependents. Three out of eighteen states are 

satisfied with the funding. 

Comments provided as written responses: The state of Oklahoma has an excellent 
program of service for Oklahoma wartime Veterans; however, the additional funds are 

always needed to meet the demand for services. In Massachusetts there is a feeling that 
the current funds are sufficient except that cities/towns are finding it tough to pay the 

benefits up front due to falling local aid and real estate taxes. In Wyoming, no funds are 
accessible to families unless the military member is currently on Active Duty. 

• Four out of eighteen states consider additional sources of funding in the next five years to 

provide for unmet needs of the veterans and their dependents. Eleven out of eighteen 

states indicated that they do not consider additional funding. 

Comments provided as written responses: Many veterans, especially younger veterans, 

feel Oklahoma does not meet the supplemental educational needs of veterans. 
(Supplemental to GI Bill benefits.) . In Montana and Massachusetts, veterans need jobs. 
Unmet need of veterans in Virginia is immediate monetary assistance. Alaska needs a 

cemetery for veterans (will be developed next year). 

A dedicated sales tax as well as additional divisions of gaming monies is discussed as 

additional source of funding in Missouri. Massachusetts currently receives about $5 
million/year in federal DOL grants (HVRP/VWIP.) State would like to see VA/DOD 

financially support some of their outreach programs. Also they receive VASH Section 8 

vouchers for veterans. In Oregon, people are looking at a change in the State's 
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Constitution to allow the Veterans Department to receive funding from the State 

Lottery. 

In summary, the issue of funding seems to be common for many states. However, several states 

that acknowledge the problem do nothing to provide for additional funding. They are facing 

large budget deficits. Many states do not have a Veterans Trust Fund compared to North Dakota. 

Most states participating in the survey spend much larger amount ($200,000 to 4 million) on 

grants and benefit programs compared to North Dakota. In order to proceed with the further 

analysis, we would need to compare per/capita veterans expenditure for the states that we believe 

participated in the survey to the veterans expenditures per/capita for North Dakota. 
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Appendix 

Telephone Call with Debra Kunkel and Peggy Wheelden, Fargo, ND VA 

Date: Monday, October 4, 2010 

Talked with: Debra Kunkel, VA Social Work Executive-Room 1135 and Peggy Whee\dcn, VA 

Public Affairs, located at VA Hospital in Fargo, ND. 

Conversations: I sent Debra an email and talked to her on the phone to set up a meeting to 

discuss the VA Statistical Data that Tatjana Miljkovic had put together. She said she would put a 

meeting on her calendar for Wednesday, October 6. Later on Monday, October 4, I received a 

call from Peggy Wheelden and she said we could not meet until we wrote a hard copy letter to 

Michael Murphy, the director of the VA, and received his approval. The letter to Mr. Murphy 

had to state the purpose of our meeting and what we wanted to accomplish in our meeting. 

Peggy also stated that what NDSU was doing was for the state of ND which was a state project, 
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.nd the VA was federal entity. She said she didn't know if they would be able to provide any 

assistance to us because they are a federal and we are a state entity. 

Tatjana and I talked about this and we decided we would not write the letter and would do 

without them reviewing the veteran statistical data that was put together. We thought this 

correspondence would hold up the project. 

I called Lonnie Wan gen, ND Dept Veteran Affairs Commissioner, to give him this in fonnation. 

He said he has to go thru this formality for certain requests but has a pretty good working 

relationship with the VA. If there is some information we needed, we should contact him and 

probably he could get this for us. 

Mr Murphy's address: 

Mr Michael Murphy 

2101 North Elm 

Fargo, ND 58102 

Reuben Tschritter- October 5, 2010 

Questionnaire Sent to Other States 

Which of these state medical benefits are offered to veterans in your state regardless of the 

income level (excluding Federal benefits)? 

(a) Dental 

(b) Denture 

(c) Optical 

(d) Hearing 

(e) Other: _______________________ _ 

2. Which of these state medical benefits are offered to veterans in your stale ONLY if they 

qualify based on the income level (excluding Federal benefits)" 

(f) Dental 

(g) Denture 

(h) Optical 

(i) Hearing 

U) Other: ---------------------------
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3. Which of these state NON-medical benefits are offered to veterans in your state ( excluding 

Federal benefits)'/ 

(a)Transponation 

(b) Housing assistance 

( c )Deposit rent assistance 

(d) Other: ________________________ _ 

4. Which of these state NON-medical benefits are offered to veterans in your state ONLY if 

they qualify based on the income level (excluding Federal benefits)" 

( a)Transportation 

(b) Housing assistance 

(c)Deposit rent assistance 

(d) Other: _______________________ _ 

5. \Vhat was the amount of total veterans' state expenditure in the state on annual basis 

(excluding federal funds)? 

(a)Less than $ I 00,000 

(b) $100,000-$200,000 

( C )$200,000-$500,000 

(d) 500,000-l ,000,000 

(e)l.5 million -2 million 

(f) Above $2milion 

6. How often do you update the state benefit eligibility requirements 0 

( a) Every year 

(b) Once in two years 

(c) Once in 5 years 

( d) Every IO years 

(e) Other: ____________ _ 
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State benefit eligibility requirements are based on (you may provide brochure or eligibility 

worksheet, if available): 

(a)Income Only 

(b) Income and Number of dependents 

(c)Other: _________ _ 

5. Do you have a Veterans Trust Fund available in your state' 

(a) YES 

(b)NO 

6. What is the annual return on investment generated by Veterans Trust Fund ? 

(a) less than $50,000 

(b) $50,000-$100,000 

(c.) $100,000-200,000 

• (d) $200,000-$500,000 

( e )$500,000-$1,000,000 

(f) more than $1 million 

7. Do you feel that cmTent state funds are sufficient to finance needs of veterans in your state1 

(a) YES 

(b)NO 

(c.) Not sure 

8. What are unmet needs of the veterans in your state? 

9. Does your state consider any additional sources of funding in the next 5 years to provide for 

unmet needs' 

(a) YES 

(b)NO 
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List of NO OVA Data Issues 

1. A large number of' records show zero amount paid off. Granted amount is available. 

2. Missing records : 

2 records are missing birth year 

10 records are missing zip code 

32 records are missing monthly income 

1744( 49%) of records are missing number of dependents 

1552 (43%) of the records are missing voucher date (elate when the payment was 

made) 
1552 ( 43%) of the records are missing amount paid. These records are assumed to 

have zero payments. Additional 105 records have zero amounts for payout. 

3. Denture benefit is reported as "Dentures" and "Denture". These two names for a single 

category make it difficult to retrieve the data by category. 
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HB 1379 
Government and Veterans Affairs 
Testimony of Lonnie Wangen Commissioner of Veterans Affairs 

Madam Chairman Grande and Committee Members, 

I have been asked to provide an understanding of how the Grant program works in 
regards to the amounts granted, amount paid and the remaining difference as addressed in 
the "Estimating Future Grant Benefit Needs for North Dakota Veterans" study. There arc 
two areas which will need to be understood: 

• How the interest earnings are distributed for grant benefits 
• The hardship grant process of "Granted" "Paid" and where the "Difference" goes 

lo. 

The PWTF is managed by the Treasurer's office and interest earnings are 
provided to the Administrative Committee on Veterans Affairs (ACOVA) to use for 
veterans programs. The ACOV A authorizes certain amounts for the Grant program and 
the ND-DY A will make the request to the Treasurers office for these funds as needed. 

How PWTF funds are dispersed 

• ND-DY A requests the treasurer to transfer funds to a clearing 
account. 

• Using Peoplesoft voucher system, vendor bills arc paid out of the 
clearing account 

• This is the only way money is removed from the clearing account 

Grant program as found in study 

• Grants are submitted to ND-DY A 
• Eligible grants are approved 
• Veteran gets services needed 
• Service vendor sends billing to ND-DY A 
• Authorized bills will be approved for payment 
• Peoplesoft vouchers completed and payment is sent to vendor 
• When final billing is received and paid any remaining balance is 

made available for other grant applications 

* *The (Difference) in table IO page IO of the study are reallocated, never 
removed from PWTF or clearing account. 



Quarter Dental Denture Deposit Asst. Hearing Optical Special Transportation $ Totals · Total 

07/01/05 - 09/30/05 $10,048.00 $0.00 $0.00 $750.00 $4,704.00 $839.72 $500.00 $16,841.72 57 

10/01/05 -12/31/05 $8,527.00 $0.00 $0.00 $750.00 $2,151.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,428.00 41 

01/01/06 - 03/31/06 $10,864.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,369.98 $1,000.00 $0.00 $14,233.98 41 

04/01/C5 - 06/30/06 $15,803.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,750.00 $3,531.45 $0.00 $0.00 $23,084.45 53 

07/01/06 - 09/30/06 $9,982.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,207.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,189.00 27 

10/01/06 -12/31/06 $10,504.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,975.45 $619.80 $0.00 $13,099.25 37 

01/01/07 - 03/31/07 $10,299.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $2,231.98 $1,255.06 $614.70 $15,900.74 39 

04/01/07- 06/30/07 $17,865.00 $1,673.00 $0.00 $4,500.00 $3,248.96 $373.68 $474.90 $28,135.54 • 45 

07/01/07 - 09/30/07 $10,901.00 $16,270.00 $0.00 $995.00 $2,510.00 $2,340.47 $735.00 $33,751.47 45 

10/01/07 -12/31/07 $8,535.00 $14,725.00 $0.00 $10,500.00 $3,818.95 $0.00 $500.00 $38,078.95 48 

01/01/08 - 03/31/08 $14,077.00 $22,895.00 $320.00 $3,000.00 $7,749.58 $948.95 $250.00 $49,240.53 58 

04/01/08 - 06/30/08 $12,475.90 $29,152.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $2,263 5cf $824.56 $410.46 $46,626.42 45 · 

07/01/08 - 09/30/08 $23,594.00 $43,359.00 $2,510.00 $21,265.00 $6,594.00 $1,214.36 $0.00 $98,536.36 120 

10/01/08 - 12/31/08 $8,898.00 $13,797.00 $755.00 $9,000.00 $2,772.00 $953.68 $0.00 $36,175.68 43 

01/01/09 - 03/31/09 $7,450.00 $18,383.00 $1,755.00 $8,990.00 $1,628.00 $260.68 $0.00 $38,466.68 38 

04/01/09 - 06/30/09 $7,246.00 $11,179.00 $0.00 $3,275.00 $2,194.00 $0.00 $0.00 $23,894.00 35 

Totals $187,068.90 $171,433.00 $5,340.00 $69,775.00 $50,949.85 $10,630.96 $3,485.06 $498,682.77 772 

2005-2007 $93,892.00 $1,673.00 $0.00 $11,250.00 $21,419.82 $4,088.26 $1,589.60 $133,912.68 340 
2007-2009 $93,176.90 $169,760.00 $5,340.00 $58,525.00 $29,530.03 $6,542.70 $1,895.46 $364,770.09 432 
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11.0599.02006 
Title. 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Grande 

February 15, 2011 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1379 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and 
enact four new sections to chapter 37-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
governance of the veterans' home; to amend and reenact sections 37-15-03, 37-15-07, 
37-18-07, 37-18-12, 37-18.1-01, 37-18.1-02, 37-18.1-03, and 37-18.1-04 of the North 
Dakota Century Code, relating to county veterans' service officers, governance of the 
veterans' home, the commissioner of the department of veterans' affairs, and the 
administrative committee on veterans' affairs. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 37-15-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-15-03. Government of veterans' home. 

The general supervision and government of the veterans' home is vested in the 
admiRistrali,•e eommil!ee OR •;eleraRs' affairsveterans' home governing board. 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 37-15-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-15-07. Administrator of veterans' home -Appointment QualifieatioRs. 

The appoiRIFAeRI, ei~alifiealioRs, lerm of offiee, aRd salary of the aelmiRistrator of 
!he •;eteraRs' home m~st 13e as preseril3eel iR seelioR 37 18.1 03governor shall appoint 
the administrator. The administrator serves at the pleasure of the governor. The 
aelmiRislraliYe eommil!ee OR veleraRs' affairsveterans' home governing board may 
designate the administrator as commandant of the veterans' home if the administrator 
is an honorably discharged veteran. 

SECTION 3. Four new sections to chapter 37-15 of the North Dakota Century 
Code are created and enacted as follows: 

Veterans' home governing board - Membership - Appointment. 

1. The governing board for the veterans' home consists of seven voting 
members appointed by the governor. 

2. On August 1, 2011, the governor shall appoint seven members of the 
committee. Of the appointments, four members must qualify as a veteran 
under section 37-01-40. The governor shall appoint persons based on 
experience and qualifications. The governor shall appoint three of the 
members to a term of three years, two members to a term of two years, 
and two members to a term of one year, or until their successors are 
appointed and qualified . 
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3. On the first day of August in each year beginning in 2012. the governor 
shall appoint members·to fill the expiring terms of committee members. If a 
committee member with an expiring term qualifies as a veteran under 
section 37-01-40. the governor shall appoint a member qualifying as a 
veteran under section 37-01-40. 

4. Beginning in 2012. each appointment must be for a term of three years. or 
until a successor is appointed and .qualified. All terms begin on August first 
and end on July thirty-first in the year specified. 

5. If a position becomes vacant. the governor shall fill the vacancy for the 
unexpired portion of the term in the same manner as the initial 
appointment. 

Veterans· home governing board - Chairman - Duties - Meetings. 

l'he governor shall appoint the chairman of the veterans· home governing board 
from among the membership of the board. Meetings of the governing board must be 

. held,upon the call·ofthe chairman. ·at,such•times and places as ·may be selected by the 
chairman. and upon due notice to members by the chairman.'Meetinqs must also be 
called by the chairman upon the written request of any four voting members of the 
board. • · 

· Powers and•duties of-veterans'-home governing board. 

The governing board is responsible for the administration of the veterans· home. 
The governing board has all ordinary powers required of a governing board. The 
governing board shall assure compliance with applicable federal and state laws in the 
administration of the veterans· home. The governing board shall conduct an annual 

·. perforrnance•evaluation of the adrriinistrator·and create and implement a strategic plan 
for the veterans· home. The governing board annually shall report on the status of the 
strateqic1plan·to'the gbverridr and the legislative management. 

, .. , ' -. ., ; ' ' . i '' ~ ..,.'.. ' . 

Veterans· home goveming board - Compensation - Expenses. 

Theveterans"•home•qoverningiboardmembers may receive compensation of 
one hundred thirty-five dollars per day for the-performance of their official duties. 
Members may be reimbursed for travel expenses and meals and lodging expenses in 
connection with their official duties at the same rate and in the same manner as are 
elected officials and employees of the·state. Payment for compensation and expense 
reimbursement must be made by the veterans" home. The payment must be made by 
warrant-check drawn by the office of management and budget upon the submission of 
a paper voucher to it. signed by the administrator of the veterans· home. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18-07. Commissioner -Appointment- Qualifications - Term - Salary. 

The appaiAtrneAI. eiualifisatiaAs. teFrn af affise. a Rel salaF)' af the sarnrnissiaAeF 
FAust ee as pFessrieeet iA sestiaA 37 18.1 03governor shall appoint the commissioner. 
The commissioner must be a veteran as defined in section 37-01-40 and shall serve at 
the pleasure of the governor. The commissioner must 'be allowed such amounts for 
travel, clerkhire, and expenses as may be prescribed from time to time by legislative 
appropriations. 
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SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18-12 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18-12. Funding authority• Continuing appropriation. 

The department of veterans' affairs may accept and expend funds from any 
source, including federal or private sources, to be used to assist veterans or qualified 
veterans' spouses in obtaining assistance and to pay other expenses authorized by law 
incurred in carrying out programs of benefit and service for resident North Dakota 
veterans as autlcleFizeel by ttcie aelmiAistrntiYe sommittee oA •,•eteraAs' affaiFs with the 
approval of the emergency commission. However, all interest earnings from the 
veterans' postwar trust fund received by the department of veterans' affairs from the 
administrative committee on veterans' affairs are appropriated to the department on a 
continuing basis. 

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18.1-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18.1-01. Administrative committee on veterans' affairs • Membership • 
Appointment. 

Ttciere is heFeby sFeatea aA aamiRistrnti,,,e committee eA veteFaAs' affaim, whiotci, 
for J:lUFJ:loses ef this otciaJ:)teF, must hereiAafleF 13e releFFea le as the semmittee. The 
committee must oensist ef tlclree m< eflioie ReRveliA§ meml3eFs aRa fifteen ,,,etin§ 
meml3eFs. Ttcie aeljutaRt §eReFal, ttcie oeRter airecter el the vetemAs' aamiRistratioR, aRa 
ttcie el<eoutive aireolor el jol3 service ~lerlA Dalrnta are the me offioie Ren~•etiR§ members 
wtcie slclall serve iR aR aa•;isery oaJ:)aoity to ttcie committee. OR er 13elere JuRe 20, 1971, 
ttcie AmerioaR le§ioR, ttcie •;eteraRs el lerei§R waFs, ttcie aisal3Iea AmerioaR •;eternAs, the 
•;eterans of Werle \1\/aF 11, Korea, ana Vietnam, (amvets), ana VielAam •;eteFaRs el 
Amerioa, iRGOFJ:lOFatea, SAall eaoA J:)FeJ:laFe a list 60RlaiAiR§ IAe names el Sil< J:leFSORS 
eiualifyiR§ as veteFans unaer ttcie J:!Fevisiens el sectien 37 01 40, fer aJ:JJ:leintmeAI as 
votiR§ meml3ers el ttcie committee. On eF 13efoFe July 1, 1971, ttcie §O',•emeF stciall select 
fifteeR RomiRees, three !rem eaotci lict, five el 'NAem must be aJ:lJ:)Ointeel te a Imm of 
three years, fi,,,e of wham must 13e aJ:lJ:)Ointea to a term of t>,,;e years, aRa fr;e ef wham 
FAust 13e OJ:lJ:leintea to a term of oRe year, eF uRtil ttcieir suooessoFs are aJ:JJ:leintea ana 
eiualifieel. On eF 13efore ttcie twentieth aay ef June in each year, 13e§iAnin§ in the year 
1072, eaotci el the al3eve listea nemiAaliR§ er§anizations stciall sul3mit a list oentainin§ 
the names el two J:)eFseRs 1•,tcie eiualify as veterans uneleF the J:1F0 11isions ef seotieR 
37 01 40, te ttcie §Ovemor fer aJ:lJ:)Ointment OF reaJ:lJ:)Ointment as •;otin§ meml3ers el the 
sommittee. On or 13elore the first aay el July in eaotci year, 13e§inniA§ iA the yeaF 1972, 
the §Ovemor shall select one nominee from eaetci list, a total of fiYe nominees, to !ill 
el<J:)iFiR§ terms el votiR§ meml3eFs of the sommittee. Eastci sustci aJ:)J:)Ointment must 13e 
for a term el three years, er until a successor is aJ:lJ:)Ointea aRa eiualifiea. All terms 13e§iR 
on the first day of July ana ena on the ttciirtieth aay of June in the year SJ:lesifiea. In 
ease el the inal3ility or failure of any votiR§ meml3eF of the sommittee le serve, the 
§e•,emor stciall aJ:)J:)eint another meml3er from a list ef two J:)ersons eiualifyiR§ as 
Yeterans unaer ttcie J:lFOYisions of sectien 37 01 40, sul3mittea 13y ttcie nominatiA§ 
or§anizalien reJ:)resenlea 13y !Re meml3er who was unal3Ie er failea to serve. Suetci 
aJ:lJ:)OintmeRts must 13e maae feF the Femainaer of lhe uReJCJ:)iFea term. 

1. There is created an administrative committee on veterans' affairs, which for 
the purposes of this chapter, is referred to as the committee. The 
committee consists of five voting members and three ex officio nonvoting 
members. The five voting members are members appointed by the 
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governor. The adiutant general. director of the department of human 
services. and the executive director of iob service North Dakota are ex 
officio nonvoting members of the committee . 

2. On August 1. 2011. the governor shall appoint five members of the 
committee. Each member must qualify as a veteran under section 
37-01-40. The governor shall appoint members based on experience and 
qualifications while attempting to fairly represent the state's veterans" 
population. Any organization or citizen may nominate an individual for 
appointment to the·governor. '!"he governor shall appoint two of the 
members to a term ·of three years, two of the members to a term of two 
.years, and two· of the members to a term of one year, or until their 
successors are appointed and qualified. 

3. On the first day of August in each year beginning in 2012. the governor 
shall:appoint memt:iers•to'.fill;the exbiring·terms cifthe committee members 
in the same manner as the initial appointment. 

4. Beginning in 2012, 'each appciintment·must be for a term of three years. or 
until a successor is appointed and qualified. All terms 'begin on August first 
and end on July thirty-first in the year specified. ' . ' . . .. 

5. lf:a,voting·member position becomes vacant, the governor shall fill the 
·.• ·· vacancy·.fonthe·unexpired :portion of'tt'ie term iri•the same manner as the 

jnitial :appoiritment.''•'· • · 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18.1-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18.1-02,·Chairman ,SeoFetary .. Duties TeFms Meetings. 

AoRaiFrAan aAd a seeFetary.ef.,tRe eerArAillee rAusUie appeinted by the 
ge•10Fner fFerA aRieng !Re vetin~ .rAerAbeFSRip ef the. eerArAillee. Seieh appeintrAent 
rAust be rAade anneially, witR the teFrA ef effiee le begin en !Re firat Elay ef July ef the 
yeaF speeifieEl anel te eAd en !Re thiFlieth day ef JeiAe ef !Re fellewiAg yeaF. The governor 
shall appoint the chairman of the committee from the membership of the committee. 
Meetings of the committee must be held upon the call of the chairman, at such times 
and places as may be selected by the chairman, and upon due notice to committee 

.. members. by .the seeFetarychairman.- Meetings must also be called by the chairman 
l:JPOQ:\l:1!3°Vi,tni~~~-regue!>t.of.,a[1y feuftwo voting members of.the committee. A majority of 
the.members of,the committee,is. requiredJor a-quorum. and a majority of the members 

. present. voting in favor thereof is required for any ,action . 
. ,. 

SECTION .8. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18.1-03 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

37-18.1-03. Powers and duties of committee CFeatieR ef sulloemmittee 
aREI ge•~erning lleaFEI. 

The committee is Fespensible ·teF eFgaAii!alien. pelioy, and general 
adFl'li11is!FalioA of all ..,eleFans' affaiFs in !Re slate ef NeFIR Daketa. It has the following 
powers and duties: 

1. The oRairrAan and seerelary ef !Re eerArAiltee, acting jointly, sRall ap13eint a 
se..,en rAerAber ge..,eming beaFd fer adrAinislralien ef the ·1eteFans' horAe, 
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2. 

frnm witRin or ol:llsiele tRe sommiltee, Sl:lejeet lo Fatiliealion of a majority 
vote of tRe eommittee, anel sRall estaBlisR term len!jtRs for serviee on !Re 
!J0'1ernin!J Boarel. TRe !J0'1ernin!J Boarel Ras all orelinary powers reeil:lireel of 
a !JO..,ernin!J Boarel, insll:lelin!J !Re po111er to eslaBlisR Ell:lalifisations for anel 
seleetion of an aelministrator anel to estaBlisR an appropriate salary 
strl:letl:lre, sl:113jeet to limitations of le§islati..,e appropriation. TRe 
aelminislralor serves at !Re pleasl:lre of \Re §o,•ernin§ Boarel. 

TRe eRairman anel sesrelary of !Re eommittee jointly sRall appoint a 
Sl:IBeommittee to Bo responsiBle for sl:lpervision anel §0vernment of !Re 
elepartment of veterans' affairs. Onee a13pointeel, a st1Bsommiltee memBer 
may eonlin1,1e lo serve as lon!J as !Re memBer remains a ,•otin§ memBer of 
!Re sommittee, 1,1nless remo•,eel from !Re st1Bsommittoe By joint aetion of 
!Re eommittee sRairman anel sesrelary. /\ memBer of !Re Sl:IBeommillee 
may no! serve on !Re §o•,ernin§ Boarel of !Re .,.elerans' Rome. EaeR 
nominalin§ or§ani.:alion lisleel in seetion 37 18.1 01 rnt1sl Ra•,e al least one 
votin!J memBer norninateel By !Re or§ani.:ation servin§ on !Ro 
StlBSOFRmittoe. TRe StlBSOFRFRiltee SRall soleet BY majority \/Ole of !Re 
mernBers a sRairrnan lo presiele for !Re term of one year. 

3. TRe sommittee sRall a13poinl !Re sommissionor of !Re elopartmonl of 
,•oterans' affairs. TRe sommissionor mt1sl Bo a Bona fielo resielent of IA□ 
slate, anel rnt1st eit1alify as a veteran as elefineel in sestion 37 01 40. TRe 
sornmissionor servos at !Ro 13loast1ro of IA□ sommittoe. TRe somrnittoe 
SRall eletermine IA□ salary 13aiel to !Re eommissionor of !Re elepartment of 
veterans' affairs witRin !Re limits of le§islati>,e a13propriation. TRe 
sommissioner of •1eterans' affairs sRall serve as !Re e>Eeel:ltive sesretary for 
!Re Sl:IBsornmittee. TRe sornmissioner Ras no •1ote in !Re affairs of !Re 
Sl:IBSommiltee. 

4.--The committee shall, t1neler resommenelation from !Re Boarel or !Re 
Sl:IBsommittoe, present any matters needing attention and action to the 
appropriate board, commission, agency, or department of the state,-af\El 
!Re NertR Dakota veterans' seorelinatin!J set1nsil. 

&.-2. Tho committee shall asst1re eemplianse •,vitR a1313lisaBle feeleral anel state 
laws in tRe aelministratien ef BOIR !Re elepartment ef vetemns' affairs anel 
!Re ~lortR Dal(ota •,eterans' Reme anel sRall enersise its res13onsiBilities in 
all IRiR§S nesessary te sarry et1t !Re 13revisiens ef this SRapter in F0§arel to 
er!Jani.:atien, 1301isy, anel !j □neral aelministratien ef the a§ensios serveel anel 
in11elveel in the eonelt161 of •;eterans' affairs. TR□ Bearel !jevernin!J the 
veterans' homo anel tR□ st1Bsommiltee !J0vornin§ the elepartmenl ef 
veterans' affairs shall senell:161 an annt1al performanse evalt1atien of the 
aelministrator anel somrnissiener, rospoetively, witR the evall:lation 
presenteel to tR□ sornmittee. The eoarel anel Sl:lesommittee sRall create-afl€1 
implement a strategic plan for the ·,eterans' Rome anel !Re elepartmenl of 
veterans' affairs, respesti·,elydelivery of veterans' services by the 
commissioner. Tho eearel anel !Re sl:lesomrnilteecommittee annually shall 
report as to the status of the respestive strategic plan to the eornmillee. 
After reseivin!J a report, !Re eornmittee sRall st1Bmit the report to the 
governor. 

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 37-18.1-04 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 
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37-18.1-04. Committee members net te Fesei'le sempensatien_ 

Compensation - Expenses permitted . 

CommitteeVotinq members may-net receiv9-aRY compensation of one hundred 
thirty-five,dollars per day·for the performance of their official duties. Voting members 
may,be reimbursed for travel expenses and meals and lodging expenses in connection 
with their official duties at the same rate and in the same manner as are elected 
officials and employees of the state, wi!R 13ayment to. Payment of compensation and 
expense ;reimbursement must be made .by the department of veterans' affairs anel !Re 
'leterans' Rome to eaoR of-lReir res13eotive s1,1eoommiltee memeers ino1,1rrin!J !Re 
e1E13enses. The ,payment must be made by warrant-check drawn by the office of 

,management and.budget,upori,the submission of a proper voucher to it, signed by the 
· commissioner of veterans' affairs ortRe aelministrator of !Re •;eterans' Rome, as tRe 
ease may ee.'' 

Renumber accordingly 
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11.9153.02000 Prepared by the North Dakota Legislative Council 
staff for Representative Grande 

February 2011 

SUMMARY OF AMENDMENTS (11.0599.02006) 
TO 2011 HOUSE BILL NO. 1379 

This memorandum provides a summary of 
amendments (11.0599.02006 to House Bill No. 1370). 
Major provisions of the bill: 

• Provide that the general supervision and 
governance of the Veterans' Home is vested in 
a Veterans' Home Governing Board, which 
consists of seven members appointed by the 
Governor and the Governor appoints the 
administrator. 

• Provide that the commissioner of the 
Department of Veterans' Affairs be appointed 
by the Governor. 

• Provide that any employee of the Department of 
Veterans' Affairs may not be a conservator for a 

person receiving benefits or services from the 
department. 

• Reduce the size of the Administrative 
Committee on Veterans' Affairs from 
15 individuals to 5 individuals with a member 
appointed chairman by the Governor. 

• Revise the powers and duties of the 
Administrative Committee on Veterans' Affairs 
to remove supervision of the Department of 
Veterans' Affairs and the Veterans' Home and 
to provide that the committee is to create a 
strategic plan for the delivery of veterans' 
services in the state. 

PROPOSED ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE 

Appoint 

Commissioner 
(Department of Veterans' Affairs) 

0 
iii 
;;, 
ro 
ro 

Department of Veterans' Affairs 

Governor 

Administrative Committee on 
Veterans' Affairs (1) 

Five individuals qualifying as 
veterans under North Dakota 

Century Code Section 37-01-40 

Appoint 

Administrator (Veterans' Home} and 
Veterans' Home Governing Board (7) 
Four individuals qualifying as veterans 

under Section 37-01-40 
Three other individuals 

0 
< ro 
;;, 
ro ro 

Veterans' Home 



11.9153.02000 

• Section 1 

Section 2 

Section 3 

Section 4 

Section 5 

Section 7 

Section 8 

Section 9 

Section 10 

2 February 2011 

BILL SECTION SUMMARY 

Amends Section 37-15-03 to provide that the general·supervision and governance of the Veterans' Home is 
vested in the Veterans' Home Governing Board. 

Amends Section 37-15-07 relating to the administrator of the Veterans' Home to provide that the Veterans' 
Home Governing Board, not the Administrative Committee on Veterans' Affairs, may designate the 
administrator as commandant of the Veterans' Home if the administrator is an honorably discharged veteran 

Creates four new sections to Chapter 37-15 to: 
Establish a veterans' Horne Governing Board consisting of seven voting members appointed by the 
Governor. Of the members, four must qualify as veterans under Section 37-01-40. 

· ·• Provide that the GoVerno(is to appoint a chairiilan of the go\lerning board. 
• PrOViOe that the governing board is respohsible for the administration of the Veterans' Home and the 

Governor.-appoints the administrator. 
• Provide that ·the ·governing board members may receive compensation of $135 per day and 

reimbursement for travel, meals, and lodging expenses. 

Amends :section 37-18-07 to provide that the commissioner of the Department of Veterans' Affairs is to be 
appointed by the:Governor. The commissioner must qualify as a veteran as defined in Section 37-01-40 and 
-is to serve at the pleasure of the Governor. 

Amends Section 137-18-12 to provide that the Department of Veterans' Affairs may accept and spend funds 
from any source, including federal or private sources; to be used to assist veterans in obtaining assistance 
and to pay other expenses incurred in carrying out programs of benefit and service for veterans with 
approval of the !=mergency Commission. This section previously required authorization by the 
Administrative Committee on Veterans· Affairs. 

Amends Section 37•18.1-01 to reduce the size of the Administrative Committee on Veterans' Affairs from 15 
individuals to-$ individuals qualifying as veterans under the provisions of Section 37-01-40 

Amends Section 37 -18.1-02 to provide that a member of the Administrative Committee on Veterans' Affairs 
is to serve as the chairman. 

Amends Section 37-18.1-03 to revise the powers and duties of the Administrative Committee on Veterans' 
Affairs to remove supeivision of the Department of Veterans' Affairs and the Veterans' Home and to provide 
that the committee is to create a strategi_c plan for the delivery of veterans' seivices. 

Amends Section 37~18.1-04 to.Prot'ide that the me~bers of the Administrative Committee on Veterans' 
Aff8irs' may. r8C8ive compensatiorl Of ,$135 per d8y and may be reimbursed for travel expenses, including 
meaiS'"a'r1d lodQin'g expenses, in°.COnriSdion with their official duties with payment made by the Department of 
vete'ra'rls' Affairs. 



• Proposed Amendments to House Bill No. 1379 

PAGE NO. 2 -VETERAN'SHOME GOVERNING BOARD- COMPENSATION -
EXPENSES 
... The payment must be made b1; 1,.;arrant check drawn by the office of 
management and budget upon the subffiission of a paper voucher to it, signed 
upon approval of l::ly the administrator of the veteran's home. 

PAGE NO. 6-37-18.1-04 
... The payment must be made by ,.,,arrant check drawn by the office of 

ffianageffient and budget upon the subffiission of a proper voucher to it, signed 
upon approval of l::ly the commissioner of veterans' affairs. 
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11.0599.02007 
Title. 

- 7'-'1 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for / ' ' 
Representative Boehning 

February 16, 2011 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1379 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for an 
audit of the veterans' postwar trust fund. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AUDIT OF VETERANS' POSTWAR TRUST FUND. During the 
2011-12 interim, the state auditor shall conduct a financial audit of the veterans' 
postwar trust fund and every entity's transaction authorizing an expenditure from that 
fund." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 11 0599 02007 
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Title. 
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Prepared by the Leg is ati'ie Co~ncil staff for 
Representative Boehning 

February 16, 2011 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1379 

Page 1, line 1, after "A Bill" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a 
legislative management study of veterans' benefits and the veterans' benefits delivery 
system. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. LEGISLATIVE STUDY -VETERANS' BENEFITS AND DELIVERY 
SYSTEM. During the 2011-12 interim, the legislative management shall consider 
studying veterans' benefits and the delivery system for veterans' benefits, including 
benefits from federal and state sources and in particular from the national guard and 
the department of veterans' affairs. The legislative management shall report its findings 
and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the 
recommendations, to the sixty-third legislative assembly." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 11 0599 02008 
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37-01-40, Veteran and wartime veteran defined - Uniform service dates for wartime \. 
7 

• veterans, 

1. A "veteran" is an individual who has served on continuous federalized active military 
duty for one hundred eighty days or the full period for which the individual was called 
or ordered to active military duty for reasons other than training, and who was 
discharged or released under other than dishonorable conditions. A discharge 
reflecting "expiration of term of service" or "completion of required service" or words 
to that effect qualifies the shorter term of service as making the individual a veteran. 

• 

2. A "wartime veteran" is an individual who served in the active military forces, during a 
period of armed conflict or who received the armed forces expeditionary or other 
campaign service medal during an emergency condition and who was discharged or 
released under other than dishonorable conditions. "Wartime veteran" also includes 
an individual who died in the line of duty in the active military forces, as determined 
by the armed forces. 

3. Period of service dates for a wartime veteran begins with the date of any declaration 
of war by the Congress of the United States or presidential proclamation beginning 
hostilities or the beginning of an emergency condition recognized by the issuance of 
a presidential proclamation or a presidential executive order and in which the armed 
forces expeditionary medal or other campaign service medals are awarded 
according to presidential executive order and ending on a date prescribed by 
presidential proclamation or concurrent resolution of the Congress of the United 
States and dates determined by the United States department of defense . 

4. Current uniform period of service dates for periods of armed conflict include: 

a. The period beginning December 7, 1941, through December 31, 1946, known 
as world war II; 

b. The period beginning June 27, 1950, through January 31, 1955, known as the 
Korean war; 

c. The period beginning August 5, 1964, through May 7, 1975, known as the 
Vietnam war; 

d. The period beginning August 2, 1990, through January 2, 1992, known as the 
gulf war; and 

e. The period beginning September 11, 2001, and ending on a date prescribed by 
presidential proclamation or by Congress as the last day of operation Iraqi 
freedom or operation enduring freedom, whichever occurs later. 

5. The department of veterans' affairs shall maintain a list of all period of service 
dates for emergency conditions in which the armed forces expeditionary medal 
has been awarded. 
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Subject: 

Brad Maasjo [maasjos@cableone.net] 
Wednesday, February 16, 2011 10:16 PM 
Grande, Bette B . 
WE SUPPORT HB 1379 

Dear Chairman Grande, 

We collectively have some considerable experience and insight into the management of 
Veterans Affairs within North Dakota. 

We want you to know that we support HB 1379 as amended, and we support HB 1429 without 
the amendment that would remove continuing national training requirements for CVSOs. 

We applaud your efforts to modernize the functions and management of the AC OVA; it is long 
overdue and desperately needed. 

No doubt the ACOVA and Commissioner will be mounting a campaign to overwhelm you with 
responses from local groups - do not be dissuaded; most of those who send you a form letter 
will not be able to explain their opposition, they will just know they were asked to send a 
letter. 

We can provide a lot of additional information if you wish, but don't think it is necessary yet -
Aou obviously have studied the issues deeply and are committed to doing what is right for 
Wlr ultimate customer - those who have held up their hand in a contract with our country and 

now need our help. 

We all agree and wholeheartedly support what you are doing. Feel free to share this with your 
committee. 

Sincerely, 

Darrol Schroeder, Major General, USAF (Ret), member of NDVH Governing Board 

Mike Dobmeier, former State and National Commander, Disabled American Veterans 

Greg Seurer, National Service Officer, Disabled American Veterans 

Jerry Balzer, former Director, Job Service North Dakota, former Chairman, ACOVA 

Brad Maasjo, Colonel, USAF (RET), former Chairman, ACOVA, former Chairman, NDVH 
Governing Board 

-m Brent, former CVSO, Cass County 
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WRITTEN TESTIMONY ON HB 1379 c/4'. -71 

GOVERNMENT & VETERANS AFFAIRS COMMITTEE /1 'J 
LYLE SCHUCHARD, CHAIRPERSON 

ND AMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE ON VETERANS' AFFAIRS 
February 16, 2011 

Madam Chairperson Grande and Committee members. I am Lyle 
Schuchard chairman of the Administrative Committee on Veteran's Affairs. 

The testimony I presented to the Government & Veterans Affairs 
Committee on February 10, 2011, is still the considered to properly address 
HB 1379 and the ACOVA still supports that testimony. 

On February 15, 2011, the ACOVA held a telephone conference to discuss 
HB 1379 as amended on February 10, 2011. The following are areas of 
concern the ACOVA had concerning HB 1379 as amended: 

1. It strips the state Veterans service organizations of any authority to 
appoint ancl oversee veteran affairs and the soldier's home. The 
Administrator of the Soldiers Home in Lisbon would be a political 
appointee . 

2. It makes th1:l position of Commissioner of Veterans' Affairs a political 
appointee. 

3. Under the tiill the new five member committee has no authority and 
would be a lobbying entity to other agencies. 

4. Non Veteran organizations or any citizen can nominate an individual for 
appointment to the governor. This could take Veterans out of the 
nominating process. 

5. Veterans organizations and the ACOVA did not have input into the 
writing of this bill or the amendments. 

Based on the above the ACOVA voted to not support HB 1379 as 
amended. They respectfully ask that the committee vote no on HB 1379 as 
amended. 

Thank you for allowing me to submit this testimony today. 

Written TESTIMONY! 379Febl 7 

1 
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TESTIMONY ON HB 1379 - ND VETERANS COORDINATING 
COUNCIL. 

A veteran is an individual that has signed a blank check in the amount 
of and up to including his or her life for their country. Good morning, 
my name is John L. Jacobsen. I am the Chairman of the Legislative 
Committee of the North Dakota Veterans Coordinating Council. I am 
also a member of the American Legion and the Veterans of Foreign 
Wars. 

I served in the North Dakota National Guard and the US Army Reserve 
for a total of 30 years. I retired in 1995 as a Colonel. I was mobilized 
for Active Duty in 1991 during Operation Desert Shield/Desert Storm. 
Like all mobilizations, I left my home and family to serve in the Persian 
Gulf, stationed in the United Arab Emirates. 

• The Coordinating Council is made up of 15 members, 3 from each of the 
five Veterans Organizations in North Dakota: 

• American Legion 
• AMVETS 
• Disabled American Veterans 
• Veterans of Foreign Wars 
• Vietnam Veterans of America 

It is the policy of the Coordinating Council to support legislation that 
will benefit the welfare of the members of the Armed Forces. The 
committee MUST concur totally, that is all 15 members must agree on 
the legislation to be supported or else it does not get the support. 

In this case, I have been instructed to recommend to this legislative 
committee that a "DO NOT PASS" on HB 1379 is supported by the 
entire membership of the Veterans Coordinating Council. 
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Testimony on HB 1379 
February 10, 2011 

House Government & Veterans Affairs Committee 
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My Name is Robert Evans, Secretary North Dakota Veterans Coordinating Council, and State Adjutant for 
the Disabled American Veterans. I have served these organizations since 1986 in various positions. 
I have read with interest the letter from Rep. Grande and Senator Dever regarding their reasons for 

introducing HB 1379. If this is not intended to eliminate the input of the veterans, then where is the 

input???? There are no veterans listed on the committee. 

If their concern is the appointment of the Commissioner then lets address that issue. Democracy is not 

meant to silence the veterans but strengthen their voice. Remember only fifteen veterans at this point 

speak for the veteran population of North Dakota and these fifteen members are already appointed by 

the Governor, Democracy in action. 

They seem very concerned about the dismissal of the previous Commissioner, implying that the process 

was not handled according to the State H.R. policy. I believe that the HR people were contacted for 

input into the dismissal process. Imagine that, the veterans following state policy. 

The ACOVA already has ex officio members listed (The Adjutant General, Center Director of the Veterans 

Administration and the Executive Director of Job Service. These people are key as they are directly 

related to veterans and providing services to veterans). Believe me when I say we use their input quite 

a bit. Why recreate the advisory committee as they are already doing the job as directed by Century 

Code, ask the Attorney General. 

This bill not only eliminates the ACOVA but in doing so also eliminates the Governing Board of the North 

Dakota Veterans Home as the ACOVA has the appointing authority, all this with the Governor having 

oversight, based on ACOVA committee appointment. 

If they want to improve advocacy for veterans in North Dakota then let's sit down face to face and work 

on improving just that, Advocacy. I just do not understand the rationale in destroying the one voice the 

veterans of North Dakota has in providing programs and services to the states veteran population. In the 

twenty seven years I served as the Williams County Veterans Service Office this is the most blatant 

attack on veterans since the pillaging of the Post War Trust Fund. 

In Closing I must oppose HB 1379 . 


